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Consolidated Balance Sheets
as at December 31, 2009 and 2008
(unaudited — US$ millions)

2009 2008
Assets
Holding company cash, short term investments and marketable securities (including assets pledged for
short sale and derivative obligations — $78.9; 2008 — $19.7) ......ccvviiriiiiiireiieree s 1,251.6 1,564.2
Ao oo 8 S TNV Lo (=T a0 [ 11 T 1,855.4 1,688.7
Recoverable from reinsurers (including recoverables on paid losses — $255.1; 2008 — $298.9) .......cccccvveerininnen. 3,809.1 _4,234.2
6916.1 _7.487.1
Portfolio investments
Subsidiary cash and short term investments (cost $3,230.6; 2008 — $5,492.3)........ccccvvrriirinnienennieseese e 3,244.8 5,508.5
Bonds (cost $10,742.0; 2008 — $8,302.1) ....cvererviieririeieririiieresieearessesessesseesse st ese sttt bttt b e enennenes 10,918.3 8,425.8
Preferred Stocks (COSt $292.4; 2008 — $AL.2) ....ocveiiiriiiiiiieietisieete sttt bbbt e 292.8 38.2
Common stocks (Cost $4,040.4; 2008- $3,964.1).......cueiririiiriiieirieneisie ettt 4,853.1 3,816.9
Investments, at equity (fair value $646.2; 2008 — $575.3) ...ccerveireriiiiieinesiee et 475.4 219.3
Derivatives and other invested assets (oSt $122.5; 2008 — $157.3) ....cvciririiriiiiriiisieeseseese e 142.7 398.0
Assets pledged for short sale and derivative obligations (cost $149.2; 2008 — $8.3)........ccccovrreerrriennsienereeeens 151.5 8.3
20,078.6 18,415.0
Deferred premium aCqUISTLION COSES........iiiiiiirtiieirt ettt ettt b bbbt b et b et eb e nnenes 332.3 321.9
FULUIE TNCOMIE TAXES ...ttt sttt ettt stttk et b et b e bt bt eb e st e a e £ e e H e e ke e b e e b £ e b e e me e s b et e ke nbeebenb e e bt eb e e e enbenbenbenrs 318.7 699.4
Premises and EOUIPIMENT..........ciiiiiit ettt e bbbt e e bt bbb e bt s bbbt b s bbb s bt b bt e eb e s 168.6 133.1
GoOodWIll and INTANGIDIE ASSEES......c.eiuiieiiciri bbbttt 438.8 123.2
L@ 1 T=] g T £SO 149.7 125.7
28,402.8 27,305.4
Liabilities
Y0 LY [0 1T T AT 10 (=1 o) 0 g SRS 12.1 21.1
Accounts payable and acCrued HabIIITIES ..........cccviiiieiice e sreseenne s 1,202.2 1,326.5
INCOME TAXES PAYADIE .....cveeeeiisie ettt ettt e s e e e e e s ee st e e Reeseese e st e eeseenteaaeereeneeneeneenrenre e 70.9 656.3
Short sale and derivative obligations (including at the holding company — $8.9; 2008 — $9.2).........cccceceivrieririnnns 57.2 29.4
Funds withheld payable tO FEINSUIEIS.........oi ittt bbb b nnenes 354.9 355.1
1697.3 _2,388.4
PrOVISION FOF CIAIMS ...iviiiii ettt ettt e et e et e e sabe e e beeeabe e sabeesabeesabeesabessabeesabeesabeesabesanreesarens 14,7471 14,7284
UNEAINEA PIEIMIHUMS ...ttt etieteete sttt ettt s et e besbesbesbe e st esee s e beebeeb e et e eaees e e es e besbeeb £ eEeemeesbeebeebenbeebeebe e bt abe e e enbeneesbents 1,920.1 1,890.6
Long term debt — holding COMPaNY DOITOWINGS .......c.civiiiiiieiieieese et 1,236.9 869.6
Long term debt — subsidiary COMPany DOMTOWINGS ........cviiieiiirieiese ettt sbe e b seese b e 891.3 889.1
Other long term obligations — holdiNGg COMPANY ........cviiiiiiiiiie e 1735 187.7
18,968.9 18,565.4
T TRl oTo 0 (o] T L= =T SRS 117.6 _1,382.8
Contingencies (note 10)
Shareholders’ Equity
(0] 1214 [o] g IES) (0]¢1 -GS 3,058.6 2,124.9
TFEASUNY SEOCK, AL COST.... vttt ittt ettt bbbtk b etk b etk b ekt s b et b e e b et b e e bt e bt bt et nb et et n e (28.7) (22.7)
PIEFEITEA STOCK ... ettt ettt bbbt bt bt b e e et e bt e b e e b e e Rt e b e e e e b e nbeebenb e bt ebe e e e nbenbenbentas 227.2 102.5
] T T=To =T g T[T KOOSO U U POUSUUPTRPR 3,468.8 2,871.9
Accumulated other comprenensive INCOME (10SS)......ccuvruiruireriitireeieiee ettt ettt seesbe b sne 893.1 (107.8)
7,619.0 _4,968.8
28,402.8 27,305.4

See accompanying notes.



Consolidated Statements of Earnings
for the three and twelve months ended December 31, 2009 and 2008
(unaudited — US$ millions except per share amounts)

Fourth quarter Year ended December 31,
2009 2008 2009 2008

Revenue
GroSS PremiUumS WITEEEN ...o.voviiviieiiiieieesie e 1,165.7 1,149.7 5,094.0 5,061.4
NEt Premiums WITTEEN ......oviiiiiiee e 990.5 964.2 4,286.1 4,332.2
Net Premiums €arNEd........cveveieieririe e e e e 1,115.1 1,122.3 4,422.0 4,529.1
Interest and diVIAENTS........ccovireierii s 172.4 146.0 712.7 626.4
Net gains (10sses) 0N iNVeStMENts™ ...........cc.ccoevevriericreeeeeeeeee e (30.3) 681.0 9445 2,570.7
OFNEI TEVENUE ..ottt sttt sttt e e 150.1 99.4 556.4 99.4
1,407.3 2,048.7 6,635.6 7,825.6

Expenses
L.0SSES ON ClAIMS™Y .......oviieiceeecee e 839.2 913.9 3,186.9 3,559.1
Operating EXPENSES™ ..o 210.9 207.1 831.7 835.8
COMMISSIONS, NEL ...vviiviecetii ettt e e e s e e sbee e sbaeesbee e sbaeenbee e e 182.7 180.4 701.1 729.8
INEEIEST EXPEINSE .. e eeeee ettt e e ree e te e te e ee e sreesneesaaenneenneens 49.3 40.3 166.3 158.6
Oher BXPENSES ..e.vevrereereeiereeste e ste e e e e e st re e et e et sresreaneere e e eneees 142.0 98.0 544.0 98.0
1,424.1 1,439.7 5,430.0 5,381.3
Earnings (loss) from operations before income taxes ..........coccoveveivncrnnne (16.8) 609.0 1,205.6 2,444.3
INCOME TAXES ...vvvvivirietesieeete ettt ettt sttt sa et et ss st e e ene s s (100.0) 247.3 214.9 755.6
Net earnings before non-controlling iNterests...........ccooovvvvieiviniciciicienene 83.2 361.7 990.7 1,688.7
NON-CONErOITING INTEIESES. ...t (3.8) (14.9) (133.9) (214.9)
NEE BAININGS ...ecvveiiieie et re e re e e e s bestesresreeneeneeseens 79.4 346.8 856.8 1,473.8
Net earnings PEI SNAIE.........c.c.ceieveeeee ettt $ 166 $ 1973 $ 4399 $ 8038
Net earnings per diluted SNAIE ...........cccccveiiiiicice e $ 165 $ 1962 $ 4375 $ 7953
Cash dividends paid per SNAre...........ccccovceeiieiieeiice e $ —  $ — 800 $ 5.00
Shares outstanding (000) (weighted average).........ccouvreerereieneneieseseeennns 20,177 17,498 18,301 18,037

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
for the three and twelve months ended December 31, 2009 and 2008
(unaudited — US$ millions)

Fourth quarter Year ended December 31,
2009 2008 2009 2008
NEL BAMMINGS «..vvevveeeie ettt et e e e e e e e e e bestesresreeneeneeseens 79.4 346.8 856.8 1473.8
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of income taxes
Change in net unrealized gains (losses) on available for sale securities'”..... (23.3) (92.8) 804.5 (548.0)
Reclassification of net realized (gains) losses to net earnings'”..................... (78.0) 100.9 (37.9) 248.6
Change in unrealized foreign currency translation gains (losses)™............... 39.0 (116.2) 227.0 (186.6)
Reclassification of foreign currency translation (gains) losses on
disposition of INVEStEE COMPANY ......cveveierierereeeeeee e — 24.9 — 24.9
Change in gains and losses on hedges of net investment in foreign
SUDSTAIAIY™ ..ottt (11.9) (7.2) (25.5) (7.2)
Other comprehensive income (l0ss), net of income taxes...........ccocvveevreenane, (74.2) (90.4) 968.1 (468.3)
COMPIreNeNSIVE INCOME.......ci i 5.2 256.4 1,824.9 1,005.5

(1) Reflects certain reclassifications of foreign exchange gains and losses in the fourth quarter and year ended December 31, 2008 as described in note 2.

(2) Net of income tax recovery of $20.9 (2008 — $25.9) and income tax expense of $353.9 (2008 — income tax recovery of $213.4) for the fourth quarter and year
ended December 31, 2009, respectively.

(3) Net of income tax recovery of $39.5 (2008 — income tax expense of $36.7) and $43.8 (2008 — income tax expense of $86.1) for the fourth quarter and year ended
December 31, 2009, respectively.

(4) Net of income tax expense of $6.9 (2008 — $24.5) and income tax recovery of $12.4 (2008 — income tax expense of $45.3) for the fourth quarter and year ended
December 31, 2009, respectively.

(5) Net of income tax recovery of $1.2 (2008 — $2.8) and $2.8 (2008 — $2.8) for the fourth quarter and year ended December 31, 2009, respectively.

See accompanying notes.



Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008
(unaudited — US$ millions)

Common stock -

Subordinate voting shares — beginning of year ...
Issuances during the Year.........cccoovecvvererisieneneie e
Issuances on conversion of convertible senior debentures....
Purchases for cancellation ...........cccccoevvevreinieicenecneseen,
Subordinate voting shares —end of year....................
Multiple voting shares — beginning and N OF YA ...........coiiiiiieiciie ettt ne e erenne s
(00 0] 0010] 0 K3 (0]t P

Other paid in capital — DeginNiNG OF YEAI..........cciriiiiii bbb
Conversion of convertible senior debentures..
Other paid iN Capital — N0 OF YEAI ..ottt ettt

Treasury shares (at cost) — DEGINNING OF YEA ........ccciiiiiiiiiiii ettt
Net aCqUISITIONS ......cvvrveeeeerceese e
Treasury shares (at cost) — end of year

Preferred stock —

SErieS A — DEGINNING OF YEAT ....uvviiiiie ettt ettt et e Ee st et e s e e b e s ee e e s e ebe st e e e benee e e s e abeneeneeneabenaeeenennens
Purchases for cancellation ......
Series A —end of year ............
Series B — beginning of year...
Purchases for cancellation.......
Series B —end of year.............
Series C — beginning of year...
Issuances during the year........
Series C —end of year.....
PUEIEITEU SEOCK ... vttt b bbb b bR bbb E bbb Rt bbbt b bt bbbt bbb bbb

Retained earnings — BegiNNING OF YEAI ..........ciiiiiiie et bbbttt
Net earnings for the YEar ..........cccvcvvreiiinneicise e
Excess over stated value of common shares purchased for cancellation....
Excess over stated value of preferred shares purchased for cancellation...
Common share diVIAENTS ..........cceeiirriiiiii e
Preferred share dividends...............
Retained earnings — N0 OF YEAI ..ottt

Accumulated other comprehensive income (10ss) — beginNiNg Of YEAr..........cccciiiiiiiiiiii s
Application of the equity method of accounting
Other comprehensive income (10SS) ........cccouvvrvrirrirrnnsiicccnnes
Accumulated other comprehensive iNCOmMe (10SS) — €N OF YEAT .........cocueiiiiiiieiii e

Retained earnings and accumulated other comprehensive iNCOME (10SS) ........ccriiiiiriririninns s
TOtal SNArENOIAETS™ EOUILY ....eviviieiiteie ettt b et bbb bbbkt b ket b bbbt bbbttt

Number of shares outstanding

Common stock —

Subordinate voting Shares — DEgINNING OF VBT ........ccccviiiiieieici ettt et sestesae e enestesaeeerennens
Issuances during the year.............cocoeveeeinniciiinins
Issuances on conversion of convertible senior debentures....
Purchases for cancellation ............ccccvevirieinneiennece,
Net treasury shares acquired..........c..c.ccoe....
Subordinate voting shares —end of year....................
Multiple voting shares — beginning and end Of YEar ............ccocvrviiiiereicinnene e
Interest in shares held through ownership interest in shareholder — beginning and end of year.
Common stock effectively outstanding — €N OF YEAI........ccccviiiiiriicce e enenre s

Preferred stock —

Series A — beginning of year
Purchases for cancellation......
Series A—end of year ............
Series B — beginning of year...
Purchases for cancellation......
Series B —end of year.............
Series C — beginning of year...
Issuances during the year........
SEIIES € — BNA OF YRAI ...ttt b e bbb bbbttt

See accompanying notes.

2009 2008
2,121.1 2,063.6
989.3 —
— 192.3
(55.6) (134.8)
3,054.8 2,121.1
3.8 3.8
3,058.6 2.124.9
— 57.9
— (57.9)
(22.7) (22.6)
(6.0) (0.1)
(28.7) (22.7)
38.4 51.2
(38.4) (12.8)
— 38.4
64.1 85.4
(64.1) (21.3)
— 64.1
227.2 —
227.2 —
227.2 102.5
2,871.9 1,658.2
856.8 1,473.8
(67.3) (147.2)
(41.3) (13.9)
(140.8) (88.9)
(10.5) (10.1)
3,468.8 2.871.9
(107.8) 360.5
32.8 —
968.1 (468.3)
893.1 (107.8)
4,361.9 2.764.1
7,619.0 4,968.8
16,738,055 16,918,020
2,881,844 —
— 886,888
(360,100)  (1,066,601)
(19,699) (252)
19,240,100 16,738,055
1548000 1,548,000
(799.230) _ (799,230)
19.988.870 _ 17,486,825
2,250,000 3,000,000
(2,250,000) __ (750,000)
— 2,250,000
3,750,000 5,000,000
(3,750,000) _ (1,250,000)
— 3,750,000
10,000,000 —
10,000,000 —




Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
for the three and twelve months ended December 31, 2009 and 2008
(unaudited — US$ millions)

Fourth quarter

Year ended December 31,

2009 2008 2009 2008
Operating activities
Earnings before Non-controlling iNtEreStS.........ccvveiiiiiiiiiceieec e 83.2 361.7 990.7 1,688.7
Amortization of premises and equipment and intangible assets ... 8.2 4.2 35.8 224
Net bond diSCOUNT AMOITIZALION.........ccviiieieeiieese e (8.3) (8.4) (29.5) (3.9)
(Earnings) 10sses 0N iNVESTMENLS, @t EQUILY ......cveeiireieieiee et (1.6) 24.3 (23.3) 49.4
FULUIE INCOME TAXES ... .eeneeeeetieteste ettt ettt et b e ee e sa e e e e ene et e abenee s b e nneneene e (101.2) (329.7) 12.8 (342.9)
Net (gains) losses on significant COMMUEATIONS ...........ccoerireiicieniiee e (17.5) — 3.6 84.2
Net (gains) losses on available for sale SECUFILIES............cooiriieiiiiie e (139.3) 150.5 (111.2) 386.2
Other net (gains) 10SSES 0N INVESIMENTS.........coviiiiiieiiiie ettt 169.6 (831.5) (833.3) (2,956.9)
(6.9) (628.9) 45.6 (1,072.8)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities (NOte 16) ........cccceeerieieieiiieneieiee e (163.0) 159.0 (764.8) 1,192.7
Cash provided by (used in) operating aCtiVitieS........cccvevveiiiiiiiiicrie e (169.9) (469.9) (719.2) 119.9
Investing activities
Net sales of assets and liabilities classified as held for trading..........c.ccocvviviieiiiiieniiee 161.1 1,790.2 320.4 3,157.3
Net purchases of securities designated as held for trading ...........ccoceoreierieiniineicecee (2,035.6) (3,376.3) (2,657.0) (3,814.6)
Available for sale SECUrtieS — PUIFCHASES. .......coiiire s (800.3) (7,567.6) (7,048.6) (15,306.1)
= SAIBS. et ene s 1,644.0 8,142.1 10,363.0 16,443.9
Net decrease (increase) in restricted cash and cash equivalents ...........cccoocereieiniencienesieneee 36.3 (21.1) 38.9 196.3
Net sales (purchases) of iNVESIMENtS, At BQUILY ........oovrriiiireie e (4.5) 11.7 (58.4) (54.2)
Net purchases of premises and equipment and intangible assets..........c.ccoovereieiiiiencienenn (32.1) (10.6) (49.1) (23.7)
Purchase of subsidiaries, net of cash aCqUIred..............coeeriiiriiiiinene e (1,015.9) (74.8) (1,643.6) (11.0)
Cash provided by (used in) INVESEING ACtIVITIES ......ccvvveiieiiiciiece e (2,047.0) (1,106.4) (734.4) 587.9
Financing activities
Subsidiary indebtedness
ISSUBINCES. ...ttt ettt b etk h etk et e e bt et e ke e s e s bt e st e be e st b et nbe et 0.4 — 8.2 —
REPAYMENT ...ttt e et e st b e bt et e e b e ee e e e s e e s e ebesbeeae et et e e eneene e (4.6) (13.2) (21.0) (13.2)
Long term debt — holding company
ISSUBINCES. ...ttt ettt ettt b ettt b b bt et b et e bt e e ekt e st e nb e e he e ke e neenbe e e e eneenras — — 362.0 —
Debt issuance costs... 0.4) — (3.4) —
REPAYIMENT ...ttt bbb et b bbb bbb — — (13.8) (62.1)
Long term debt — subsidiary companies
ISSUAINCES. ...t — 3.3 — 3.3
REPAYMENT. ...ttt bbbt b et b bbbt b et (0.5) — (1.4) (118.6)
Other long term obligations — holding company repayment............ccocveevereriereeisiesesesieseeeenns (1.3) 1.2) (10.9) (4.9)
Net (repurchases) issuances of sSubSidiary SECUFILIES .........coovvervieiieiiniercee e 3.2 (25.7) (96.6) (419.5)
Subordinate voting shares
ISSUBINCES. ... eteee ettt e ettt ettt e ettt e e ettt e e e e tt e e e et e e e etteeeetteeesabee e e seeeeassteeesabeeesbaeeeasseeeeaabeeasassaaeanes — — 1,000.0 —
ISSUBINCE COSES ...ttt etttk bbbtk e bt bt e b e b e et e nb e et e be et e sbe e e e eneennas (0.8) — (17.0) —
REPUICINIASES. ... ettt ettt b et e sttt e bt b e b e e et e s e e R e et e eb e be et et e neeneene e (112.4) (8.6) (122.9) (282.0)
Preferred shares
ISSUBINCES. ...ttt bbb bbbttt bbb e bbbt e n e ne s 232.3 — 232.3 —
ISSUBNCE COSES ...ttt sttt b bbbt b bbb bt e bt e bt bt st bt e e e b (7.3) — (7.3) —
REPUICNESES ... vttt bbbttt na e (143.8) — (143.8) (48.0)
Purchase of Shares fOr trEASUNY .........cviiiiiicieec e ens — — (12.8) 0.2)
Common share dividends ... — — (140.8) (88.9)
Preferred share diVIdENAS ...........oviiiiiiieieee ettt (4.6) (2.6) (10.5) (10.1)
Dividends paid to NON-CoNtrolling INTErESTS.........oiviieiiiieiee e — (6.9) (7.3) (25.6)
Cash provided by (used in) finaNCiNG aCtIVItIES.........c.cviiiieiiriie e (39.8) (53.9) 993.0 (1,069.8)
Foreign currenCy tranSIAtioN ............couiiiiie e (14.8) (183.6) 91.8 (224.8)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash eqUIVAIENTS............cccceviiiciiieii i (2,271.5) (1,813.8) (368.8) (586.8)
Cash and cash equivalents — beginning of PEriod ..........c.cccevveiieiiiicie i 4,428.4 4,339.5 2,525.7 3,112.5
Cash and cash equivalents — end of PEriod...........ccoeiiiiiiineice e 2,156.9 2,525.7 _2,156.9 2,525.7
Cash and cash equivalents are included in the consolidated balance sheet as follows:
Holding company cash and short term inVESEMENTS..........ccooviriiiiiieinieeesee e 139.9 293.8 139.9 293.8
Subsidiary cash and short term INVESIMENTS .........ccoveiiiiiie e 2,093.3 2,338.8 2,093.3 2,338.8
Subsidiary cash and short term investments pledged for short sale and derivative obligations.. — 8.3 — 8.3
Subsidiary restricted cash and short term iNVEStMENLS ............ccoce i (76.3) (115.2) (76.3) (115.2)
21569 25257 _21569 25257
Supplementary information
INEEIESE PRI ...ttt bbbt b bt b et et 63.7 65.8 148.5 160.2
TAXES PRI ..ttt bbbt bt bbb bbbt b bt b e et 80.1 189.7 823.3 483.8

See accompanying notes.



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the three and twelve months ended December 31, 2009 and 2008
(unaudited — in US$ and $ millions except per share amounts and as otherwise indicated)

1. Basis of Presentation

These consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the company’s consolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2008. These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) using the same accounting policies as were used for the company’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2008 except as described in note 2, but they do not include all disclosures
normally provided in annual financial statements prepared in accordance with Canadian GAAP.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following summary describes significant changes to accounting policies during 2009, including changes resulting from recent
accounting pronouncements.

Application of the Equity Method of Accounting

The company began acquiring common shares of Singapore Reinsurance Corporation Limited (“Singapore Re”) in 1999 and until
December 24, 2009 accounted for its investment in 17.5% of the common shares of Singapore Re as available for sale at fair value. On
December 24, 2009, the company increased its interest in Singapore Re to 20.0% and determined that it had obtained significant
influence, and accordingly, the company changed the accounting treatment of its investment in Singapore Re from available for sale to
the equity method of accounting on a prospective basis.

The company began acquiring units of The Brick Group Income Fund (“The Brick”) in 2006 and until November 27, 2009
accounted for its interest of 12.8% in The Brick as available for sale at fair value. The company determined that the 12.8% interest,
combined with certain other events occurring during the fourth quarter of 2009, effectively resulted in the company being deemed to
exercise significant influence over The Brick. Accordingly, on November 28, 2009, the company changed its accounting treatment of
its investment in The Brick from available for sale to the equity method of accounting on a prospective basis. Factors considered by
the company in making this determination included: (1) a potential fully diluted voting interest of 29.1% as the result of ownership of
45.3 million warrants, each of which entitle the company to purchase one unit of The Brick at a discount to the average trading price
of those units during the fourth quarter; (2) the expiration of a standstill agreement on November 28, 2009 which precluded the
company from exercising the warrants, acquiring additional units or seeking to influence management; and (3) the appointment of an
individual related to the company to the board of directors of The Brick, in addition to one board member already representing Fairfax
by virtue of its 12.8% interest.

The company began acquiring common shares of International Coal Group, Inc. (“ICG”) in 2006 and until December 31, 2008
accounted for its investment in 19.7% of the common shares of ICG as available for sale at fair value. During the first quarter of 2009,
the company increased its interest in ICG to 23.8%. Accordingly, on February 20, 2009, the company changed the accounting
treatment of its investment in ICG from available for sale to the equity method of accounting on a prospective basis. During the fourth
quarter of 2009, the company further increased its interest in ICG to 27.7%.

The impact on the consolidated balance sheet at the date of the application of the equity method of accounting to the investments
described in the preceding paragraphs was as follows:

Singapore Re The Brick ICG Total

Date equity method commenced: December 24, 2009 November 28, 2009 February 20, 2009
Portfolio investments:

Investments, at eqQUItY .......ccccevvereieiercrieecn i 19.6 4.2 119.3 143.1

CommOoN SEOCKS ......ccevveiiieeiiciesieie e (22.8) (8.7) (55.5) (87.0)
FUture inCOMe taXes........ccverenerererenireneseeeie 1.0 14 (21.0) (18.6)
Non-controlling iNterests..........cocoveveiennniencnienn 1.2) — 5.9 4.7
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) .. (1.0) (3.2) 36.9 32.8



Change in Presentation of Foreign Currency Gains (Losses)

The company reclassified realized and unrealized foreign currency gains and losses in its consolidated statements of net earnings
to enhance the transparency of its financial reporting by removing distortions to underwriting results caused by volatility in foreign
currency rates and by giving recognition to the economic hedging relationship that exists between claims liabilities and portfolio
investments denominated in foreign currencies within the same operating company. Prior year comparative figures have been
reclassified to be consistent with the current year’s presentation, resulting in the reclassification in the fourth quarter of 2008 of $148.3
of net realized and unrealized foreign currency losses ($161.8 in the twelve months of 2008) and $12.8 of net realized and unrealized
foreign currency gains ($12.0 in the twelve months of 2008) from losses on claims and operating expenses respectively to net gains
(losses) on investments. The following table presents the pre-tax foreign currency effect on certain line items in the company’s
consolidated financial statements for the fourth quarter and year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008:

Fourth guarter Year ended December 31,
2009 2008 2009 2008
Net gains (losses) on investments
UNAEIWEIING ACTIVITIES ...ttt ettt et besee e (20.2) (134.0) 14.3 (147.9)
INVESEING ACHIVITIES.....eiviiieitiitisici ettt sttt ettt b e e e e eteabeeaesresrens 21.1 74.3 (31.9) 102.5
Foreign currency gains (losses) included in pre-tax net arnings ..........occcceveeerieneiereieienesenens 0.9 (59.7) (17.6) (45.4)
Other comprehensive income — investing activities foreign currency gains (I0SS€S) .........ccccovrvee. 16.3 66.1 (39.3) 41.6
17.2 6.4 (56.9) (3.8)

Financial Instruments

Effective October 1, 2009, the company adopted the amendments made to Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (“CICA”)
Handbook Section 3862, Financial Instruments — Disclosures, which required enhanced disclosures on liquidity risk of financial
instruments and new disclosures on fair value measurements of financial instruments. These required new disclosures will be included
in the company’s 2009 annual consolidated financial statements. Since these amendments relate to disclosure only, there is no impact
on the company’s financial position as at December 31, 2009 or its results of operations for the fourth quarter and year then ended.

Effective October 1, 2009, the company adopted the amendments made to CICA Handbook Section 3855, Financial Instruments —
Recognition and Measurement, which required certain amendments to Canadian GAAP to achieve consistency with international
standards on impairment of debt securities. The amendments include changing the categories into which debt instruments are required
and permitted to be classified and eliminating the distinction between debt securities and other debt instruments. As a result, debt
instruments not quoted in an active market may be classified as loans and receivables and subsequently assessed for impairment using
the incurred credit loss model. The incurred credit loss model requires recognition of an impairment loss equal to the difference
between the carrying amount and the estimated realizable amount when there is no longer reasonable assurance of timely collection of
future cash flows. The estimated realizable amount is the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The amendments also required the reversal of an impairment loss relating to an available for sale debt
instrument in the instance when, in a subsequent period, the fair value of the instrument increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the loss was recognized. The adoption of these amendments was applied retroactively to January 1,
2009 and did not have an impact on the company’s financial position as at December 31, 2009 or its results of operations for the
fourth quarter and year then ended.

Effective July 1, 2009, the company adopted the amendment made to CICA Handbook Section 3855, Financial Instruments —
Recognition and Measurement, concerning the assessment of embedded derivatives upon reclassifications occurring after July 1, 2009
of financial assets out of the held for trading category. No such reclassifications have been effected by the company.

In June 2009, the company adopted the amendment made to CICA Handbook Section 3855, Financial Instruments — Recognition
and Measurement, which clarified the application of the effective interest method to a financial asset subsequent to the recognition of
an impairment loss. The adoption of this amendment did not have an impact on the company’s financial position as at December 31,
2009 or its results of operations for the fourth quarter and year then ended.



Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Effective January 1, 2009, the company adopted CICA Handbook Section 3064, Goodwill and Intangible Assets, which replaced
Section 3062, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets and Section 3450, Research and Development Costs. Section 3064 established
standards for the recognition, measurement and disclosure of goodwill and intangible assets. The adoption of this guidance did not
result in a change in the recognition of the company’s goodwill and intangible assets.

Credit Risk

Effective January 1, 2009, the company adopted the CICA’s Emerging Issues Committee Abstract EIC-173, Credit Risk and the
Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (“EIC-173"), which provides additional guidance on how to measure financial
assets and liabilities by taking into account the company’s own credit risk and the credit risk of the counterparty. The adoption of EIC-
173 did not have an impact on the company’s financial position as at December 31, 2009 or its results of operations for the fourth
quarter and year then ended.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In June 2009, the CICA amended CICA Handbook Section 3855, Financial Instruments — Recognition and Measurement to
clarify the conditions for determining when a prepayment option embedded in a debt host instrument is closely related to the host for
accounting purposes. The amendment is effective for the company’s 2011 interim and annual consolidated financial statements. The
company is currently in the process of evaluating the impact of adopting this amendment.

3. Cash and Investments

Cash and short term investments, marketable securities, portfolio investments and short sale and derivative obligations by
financial instrument classification are shown in the table below:

December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Classified as Designated as Classified as Total Classified as  Designated as Classified as Total
held for held for available carrying held for held for available carrying
trading trading for sale Other value trading trading for sale Other value
Holding company:
Cash and short term investments................... 115.4 2275 285 — 3714 275.4 — 521.1 — 796.5
Cash and short term investments pledged
for short sale and derivative obligations ..... 245 30.0 24.4 — 78.9 184 — 13 — 19.7
Bonds — 368.5 347 — 403.2 —_ 216.6 12.2 —_ 228.8
Preferred stocks. — 64.8 — — 64.8 — — 12.1 — 12.1
Common stocks. . — 17 234.1 — 235.8 — — 4243 — 4243
DErIVALIVES ..o s 975 — — — 97.5 82.8 — — — 82.8
2374 692.5 321.7 — 1,251.6 376.6 216.6 971.0 — 1,564.2
Short sale and derivative obligations............. (8.9) — — — (8.9) (9.2) — — (9.2)
228.5 692.5 321.7 — 1,242.7 367.4 216.6 971.0 — 1,555.0
Portfolio investments:
Cash and short term investments.................... 2,093.3 803.8 347.7 — 3,244.8 2,338.8 355.2 2,814.5 — 5,508.5
BONAS ... . — 6,628.2 4,290.1 — 10,918.3 —_ 4,463.3 3,962.5 —_ 8,425.8
Preferred stocks. — 261.1 317 — 292.8 — — 38.2 — 38.2
Common stocks..... — 90.4 4,762.7 — 4,853.1 — 80.7 3,736.2 — 3,816.9
Investments, at equity ... — — — 475.4 475.4 — — — 219.3 219.3
Derivatives................ . 127.7 — — — 127.7 372.7 — — — 372.7
Other invested assetS.........ocueerrrrrrreeninens — — — 15.0 15.0 — — — 25.3 25.3
2,221.0 7,783.5 9,432.2 490.4 19,927.1 2,711.5 4,899.2 10,551.4 2446 _18,406.7
Assets pledged for short sale and
derivative obligations:
Cash and short term investments.................... — 4.6 — — 4.6 8.3 — — —_ 8.3
BONGS ..o — 84.1 62.8 — 146.9 — — — — —
— 88.7 62.8 — 1515 8.3 — — — 8.3
2,221.0 7,872.2 9,495.0 490.4 20,078.6 2,719.8 4,899.2 10,551.4 2446 18,415.0
Short sale and derivative obligations............ (48.3) — — (48.3) (20.2) — — (20.2)

_2,172.7 _1.872.2 MEJ&QAMM A;BB_QE 105514 2446 18,3948

Restricted cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2009 of $76.3 was comprised primarily of amounts required to be
maintained on deposit with various regulatory authorities to support the subsidiaries’ insurance and reinsurance operations. Restricted
cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2008 of $115.2 consisted primarily of cash and cash equivalents pledged to the Society and
Council of Lloyd’s (“Lloyd’s”) to support the underwriting capacity of subsidiaries’ Lloyd’s syndicates. Cash and cash equivalents
pledged to Lloyd’s at December 31, 2008 was substantially replaced by debt securities at December 31, 2009. Restricted cash and
cash equivalents are included in the consolidated balance sheets in holding company cash, short term investments and marketable
securities, or in subsidiary cash and short term investments and assets pledged for short sale and derivative obligations in portfolio
investments.



The company classified U.S. state and municipal bonds of $996.6 (2008 — $979.7) which were purchased prior to September 30,
2008 as available for sale. U.S. state and municipal bonds of $4,501.2 (2008 - $3,124.9) which were acquired subsequent to
September 30, 2008 have been designated as held for trading.

The consolidated balance sheet includes $825.7 (2008 — $499.5) of convertible bonds containing embedded derivatives
(sometimes referred to as hybrid financial instruments) which the company has designated as held for trading.

Gross unrealized gains and losses on investments classified as available for sale by type of issuer, including assets pledged for
short sale and derivative obligations, were as follows:

December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Cost or Gross Gross Total Cost or Gross Gross Total
amortized unrealized unrealized carrying amortized unrealized unrealized carrying
cost gains losses value cost gains losses value
Holding company:
Short term investments:"
Canadian government 244 — — 244 136.7 — 1.4 135.3
U.S. trEASUMY ...ttt 28.5 — — 28.5 387.1 — — 387.1
52.9 — — 52.9 523.8 — (1.9) 522.4
Bonds:
U.S. trEASUMY ...t — — — — 12.0 — — 12.0
U.S. states and municipalities . 225 0.8 — 23.3 — — — —
Corporate and Other..........cccccevvvvrrecierernrinenns 10.9 0.5 — 114 0.4 — (0.2) 0.2
334 1.3 — 34.7 12.4 — 0.2) 12.2
Preferred stocks:
Canadian ......ccoevieiireeie s — — — — 11.8 0.3 — 121
Common stocks:
CanAdian .......cooevnrnicce 39.5 18.9 — 58.4 58.4 — (11.1) 47.3
. 80.7 44.2 (1.5) 123.4 397.2 124 (56.8) 352.8
38.2 14.1 — 52.3 20.0 4.2 — 24.2
1584 77.2 (1.5 234.1 475.6 16.6 (67.9) 424.3
Portfolio investments:
Short term investments:
Canadian government...........ccccoeveeeeirernnenns 15.5 0.5 — 16.0 196.9 — (0.1) 196.8
U.S. treasury.............. 1925 — — 192.5 2,307.9 — (3.4) 2,304.5
Other government.. 1255 13.7 — 139.2 297.1 16.1 — 313.2
333.5 14.2 — 347.7 2,801.9 16.1 (3.5) 2,814.5
Bonds:
Canadian government..........ccccevvrrieeeeerenas 596.6 39.6 0.1) 636.1 928.1 57.0 — 985.1
U.S. treasury 490.1 12.3 (41.4) 461.0 739.2 140.4 — 879.6
U.S. states and municipalities ........................ 938.6 38.0 (3.3) 973.3 999.7 12.7 (32.7) 979.7
Other government..........c.ccccovivnicninininennn, 848.8 215 (27.6) 842.7 856.8 243 (66.6) 814.5
Corporate and Other ...........ccceevrnniiiecnnenns 1,239.7 138.3 (1.0 1,377.0 315.0 7.2 (18.6) 303.6
41138 249.7 (73.4) 4,290.1 3,838.8 241.6 (117.9) 3,962.5
Preferred stocks:
Canadian ......cccoevieerirriei e — — — — 10.2 — — 10.2
ULS. s 0.1 — — 0.1 0.6 — (0.5) 0.1
OFNET .. 31.2 0.4 — 31.6 304 — (2.5) 27.9
31.3 0.4 — 31.7 41.2 — (3.0 38.2
Common stocks:
CaNAdian ......ceerierieie e 476.9 230.8 — 707.7 535.8 43.6 (66.4) 513.0
U.S. s 2,716.2 398.5 — 3,114.7 2,731.1 95.8 (250.9) 2,576.0
OtheT .o 756.9 188.8 (5.4) 940.3 616.5 44.2 (13.5) 647.2
3,950.0 818.1 (5.9 4,762.7 3,8834 183.6 (330.8) 3,736.2
Assets pledged for short sale and derivative
obligations:
Bonds:
Canadian government..........ccccoovvrrieiecerenns 1.0 0.1 — 11 — — — —
U.S. treasury.............. 0.4 — — 0.4 — — — —
Other government.. . 54.1 1.7 — 55.8 — — — —
Corporate and Other............ccceeevernccneierinen 5.0 0.5 — 55 — — — —
60.5 2.3 — 62.8 — — — —

(1) Includes $24.4 (December 31, 2008 — $1.3) of short term investments included in assets pledged for short sale and derivative obligations.



Net gains (losses) on investments include the following gross gains and losses realized on the sale of securities classified as
available for sale:

Fourth quarter Year ended December 31,
2009 2008 2009 2008
Gross realized gains from SalES..........ccccvvvvviiviie s s 159.4 499.5 538.6 660.7
Gross realized 10SSES oM SAIES.........c.eeviveiiii et (11.5) (22.6) (87.4) (35.1)
147.9 476.9 451.2 625.6

At each reporting date, and more frequently when conditions warrant, management evaluates all available for sale securities with
unrealized losses to determine whether those unrealized losses are other than temporary and should be recognized in net earnings
(loss) rather than in other comprehensive income (loss). If management’s assessment indicates that the impairment in value is other
than temporary, or the company does not have the intent or ability to hold the security until its fair value recovers, the security is
written down to its fair value at the balance sheet date, and a loss is recognized in net gains (losses) on investments in the consolidated
statement of earnings. Net gains (losses) on investments for the fourth quarter and twelve months of 2009 included $8.6 (2008 —
$627.4) and $340.0 (2008 — $1,011.8) respectively of provisions for other than temporary impairments. After such provisions, the
unrealized losses on such securities at December 31, 2009 were $6.9 (2008 - $398.7), nil (2008 - $3.0) and $73.4 (2008 - $118.1) with
respect to common stocks, preferred stocks and bonds respectively. The company had investments in six debt securities primarily
other government debt securities classified as available for sale which were in unrealized loss positions for a period greater than
twelve months at December 31, 2009. The unrealized loss of $25.7 on these securities at December 31, 2009 was primarily due to the
effect of fluctuations in foreign currency translation rates.

Bonds designated or classified as held for trading and classified as available for sale are summarized by the earliest contractual
maturity date in the table below. Actual maturities may differ from maturities shown due to the existence of call and put features.

December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
cost value cost value
DUE iN 1 YEAI OF 1855 ....viitiiiieieiet ettt re e bbb 779.5 726.3 804.7 825.7
Due after 1 year through 5 YEArS .......cccooiiiiiiieiicee e 2,4455 2,199.3 2,048.0 1,567.0
Due after 5 years through 10 YEArS ........ccoverririieiieeceiee e 5,412.7 6,039.4 5,099.5 5,235.4
DUE AFEEr 10 YBAIS. ...c.eiitiitiieeie ettt ettt bbbttt 2,476.9 2,503.4 943.6 1,026.5

11,1146 -11,468.4 8,895.8 8,654.6

The fair value and carrying value of investments, at equity were as follows:

December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Fair Carrying Fair Carrying
value value value value
Portfolio investments:
Investments, at equity
ICICI Lombard General Insurance Company Limited ..........ccoceveieieiiniennieneieeeeen 204.4 75.9 428.5 73.1
Cunningham Lindsey Group LIimited .........ccccvvereiiiieiiiiiiiiese e 159.5 134.8 83.9 83.9
International Coal Group, INC. .......cooiiiiiiiiiie e 173.9 163.0 — —
Singapore Reinsurance Corporation Limited 22.9 20.9 — —
The Brick Group INCOMe FUNd........ccovviiiiiiieie e 8.9 4.2 — —
Partnerships, trusts and OhEr..........cocoiueeiiii e 76.6 76.6 62.9 62.3
646.2 4754 575.3 219.3

The company is responsible for determining the fair value of its investment portfolio by utilizing market driven fair value
measurements obtained from active markets where available, by considering other observable and unobservable inputs and by
employing valuation techniques which make use of current market data. Considerable judgment may be required in interpreting
market data used to develop the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, actual values realized in future market transactions may differ
from the estimates presented in these consolidated financial statements. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation
methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated fair value. The company uses a fair value hierarchy to categorize the inputs
used in valuation techniques to measure fair value. A description of the inputs used in the valuation of financial instruments at
December 31, 2009 is summarized as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical instrument — Inputs represent unadjusted quoted prices for identical
instruments exchanged in active markets. The fair value of the majority of the company’s common stocks and equity call
options (including in prior periods, the S&P 500 index-based Standard & Poor’s Depositary Receipts (“SPDRs”) short
position) and positions in securities sold but not yet purchased are determined based on quoted prices in active markets
obtained from external pricing sources.



Level 2 - Significant other observable inputs — Inputs include directly or indirectly observable inputs other than quoted
prices included within Level 1. These inputs include quoted prices for similar instruments exchanged in active markets;
quoted prices for identical or similar instruments exchanged in inactive markets; inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable for the instruments, such as interest rates and yield curves.

The company’s investments in government securities (including federal, state, provincial and municipal bonds), corporate
securities, private placements and infrequently traded securities are priced using publicly traded over-the-counter prices or
broker-dealer quotes. Market observable inputs such as benchmark yields, reported trades, broker-dealer quotes, issuer
spreads and bids are available for these investments.

The fair values of derivatives such as equity total return swaps, equity index total return swaps and S&P index call options
are based on broker-dealer quotes. The fair values of warrants are based on quoted market prices or broker-dealer quotations
where available. Otherwise, valuation techniques are employed to estimate the fair value of warrants on the basis of pricing
models that incorporate the quoted price, volatility and dividend yield of the underlying security and the risk free rate. To
assess the reasonableness of pricing received from broker-dealers, the company compares the fair values supplied by broker-
dealers to industry accepted valuation models, to observable inputs such as credit spreads and discount rates and to recent
transaction prices for similar assets where available.

The fair values of credit default swaps are based principally on third party broker-dealer quotes that are derived from market
observable inputs, with current market spreads being the primary observable input. In addition, the company assesses the
reasonableness of the fair values obtained from these providers by comparing these fair values to values produced using
individual issuer credit default swap yield curves, by referencing them to movements in credit spreads and by comparing
them to recent market transaction prices for similar credit default swaps where available. The fair values of credit default
swaps are subject to significant volatility arising from the potential differences in the perceived risk of default of the
underlying issuers, movements in credit spreads and the length of time to the contracts’ maturity.

The company has investments of $1,231.4 (2008 - $463.1) in certain private placement debt securities and preferred shares
which have been designated as held for trading or classified as available for sale depending on the characteristics of the
security. The fair values of these securities are determined based on industry accepted valuation models, which are sensitive
to certain assumptions, specifically share price volatility and credit spreads of the issuer.

Level 3 - Significant unobservable inputs — Inputs include unobservable inputs used in the measurement of financial
instruments. Management is required to use its own assumptions regarding unobservable inputs as there is little, if any,
market activity in these assets or liabilities or related observable inputs that can be corroborated at the measurement date.

The company values its Level 3 investments, which are comprised primarily of mortgage-backed securities purchased at
deep discounts to par during 2008 (fair value of $30.1 at December 31, 2009 (2008 - $151.7)), using an internal discounted
cash flow model. The cash flow model incorporates actual cash flows on the mortgage-backed securities through the current
period and projects the remaining cash flows from the underlying mortgages, using a number of assumptions and inputs that
are based on the security-specific collateral. The company assesses the reasonableness of the fair values of these securities
by comparing to industry accepted valuation models, by reference to movements in credit spreads and by comparing the fair
values to recent transaction prices for similar assets where available.

10



The company’s use of quoted market prices, internal models using observable market information as inputs and internal models
without observable market information as inputs in the valuation of securities and derivative contracts were as follows:

December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Significant Significant
other Significant other Significant
Total fair Quoted observable unobservable  Total fair Quoted observable  unobservable
value asset prices inputs inputs value asset prices inputs inputs

_(liability) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) (liability) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Cash and cash equiValents ............ccoevienienece e 2,233.2 2,233.2 — — 2,640.9 2,640.9 —

Short term investments:
Canadian goVErNMENT ..........cccovuiuerrrereeieeeee s 71.8 71.8 — — 334.9 334.9 —

U.S. Treasury............ 1,196.5 1,196.5 — — 2,947.5 2,946.7 0.8 —
Other government..... . 177.2 135.0 422 — 409.7 381.4 28.3 —
Corporate and Other ... 21.0 — 21.0 — — — — —
1,466.5 1,403.3 63.2 — 3,692.1 3,663.0 29.1 —
Bonds:
Canadian goOVErNMENT ..........ceuiriurriieireeierniee s 1,538.5 — 1,538.5 — 1,726.3 — 1,726.3 —
U.S. Treasury ......ccoeveveee . 541.4 — 541.4 — 985.0 — 985.0 —
U.S. states and municipalities.. 5,497.8 — 5,497.8 — 4,104.6 — 4,104.6 —
Other government................. 919.7 — 919.7 — 853.4 — 852.4 1.0
Corporate and other . 2,689.3 — 2,672.2 17.1 833.6 — 819.7 139
Mortgage backed securities - residential ................cccoccorivininns 281.7 — 251.6 30.1 151.7 — — 151.7
11,468.4 — 11,421.2 47.2 8,654.6 — 8,488.0 166.6
Preferred stocks:®
CaANAATAN <. 1104 — 1104 — 10.1 10.1 — —
us. ... . 215.6 — 215.6 — 0.1 —_ 0.1 —_
Oher . 316 — 31.6 — 28.0 — 28.0 —
357.6 — 357.6 — 38.2 10.1 28.1 —
Common stocks:
CANAGIAN ... 755.5 740.2 15.3 — 560.3 548.0 12.3 —
S . 3,226.6 3,187.6 38.6 0.4 2,798.0 2,750.6 474 —_
980.8 710.3 267.1 34 705.8 518.1 183.9 3.
4,962.9 4,638.1 3210 3.8 4,064.1 3,816.7 243.6 3.8
Derivatives and other invested assets .........oveeverirreiveireeieiennens 240.2 41.6 198.6 — 480.8 39.4 441.4 —
Short sale and derivative obligations............cccccvevinnicnicnns (57.2) — (57.2) — (29.4) (20.1) (9.3) —
Holding company cash, short term investments and marketable
securities and portfolio investments measured at fair value........ 20,671.6 _8316.2 12,3044 ___ 510 19,541.3 10,150.0 9,220.9 170.4
100.0% 40.2% 59.5% 0.3% 100.0% 51.9% 47.2% .9%

(1) Excluded from these totals are available for sale investments of $66.4 (nil at December 31, 2008), nil ($12.1 at December 31, 2008) and $59.6
($177.1 at December 31, 2008) in common shares, preferred stocks and partnership trusts respectively which are carried at cost as they do not
have quoted market values in active markets.

A summary of changes in fair values of Level 3 financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis for the years ended
December 31 follows:

December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Common Common
Bonds stocks Total Bonds stocks Total

Balance — beginning Of YEar...........ccoi i 166.6 3.8 170.4 23.3 10.6 33.9
Total realized and unrealized gains (losses)

Included in net gains (10SSeS) 0N INVESEMENTS........coveiriiieieiecieeec e (12.5) — (12.5) (35.9) 7.9 (28.0)

Included in other comprehensive income.... 11 (0.9) 0.2 (1.5) — (1.5)
PUFCINESES. ...ttt bbb 44.2 0.9 45.1 188.1 4.8 192.9
SIES ...t bbbttt (56.7) — (56.7) (7.9) (17.0) (24.4)
Transfer out of category (95.5) — (95.5) — (2.5) (2.5)
Balance — end OF YEAI ..o 47.2 _38 51.0 166.6 3.8 170.4

A net gain for the fourth quarter of $2.8 (2008 — a net loss of $27.5) and a net loss for the twelve months of 2009 of $19.8 (2008 —
$29.2) representing the change in fair value of the company’s investments still held as at December 31, 2009 (principally mortgage-
backed securities purchased at deep discounts to par) priced using Level 3 inputs was recognized in net gains (losses) on investments
in the consolidated statements of earnings. During 2009, as the result of an increase in market liquidity, broker quotations and
observable market transactions became available for certain of the company’s mortgage-backed securities where fair value was
previously determined using Level 3 inputs. Accordingly, $95.5 of these securities were transferred from the Level 3 category to the
Level 2 category.
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4, Short Sale and Derivative Transactions

The following table summarizes the notional and fair value of the company’s derivative instruments and securities sold but not yet
purchased:

December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Notional Fair value Notional Fair value
Cost value Assets  Liabilities Cost value Assets _Liabilities

Equity derivatives:

Equity index total return swaps — short positions................. — 155827 9.2 — — — — —

Equity total return swaps — short positions.............c.ccecoevene — 232.2 — 1.2 — 13 — —

Equity total return swaps — long positions............c.ccccevvevene — 214.6 8.7 7.7 — — — —

Equity and equity index call options...........ccccceceveevnercnenne 46.2 79.3 46.0 — 0.1 518.4 — —

WAITANTS ... 10.1 127.5 71.6 — — — — —
Credit derivatives:

Credit default SWapS .......cccceireiineicec e 114.8 5,926.2 71.6 — 161.5 8,873.0 415.0 —

WaAITANES ... 15.8 340.2 2.8 — 19.2 342.6 0.6 —
Foreign exchange forward contracts.............ccooeveveiniencnennns — — 1.6 48.0 — — 394 20.1
OtNET e — — 13.7 _03 — — 0.5 _93
TOTAL e 225.2 57.2 455.5 29.4

The company is exposed to significant market risk through its investing activities. Market risk is the potential for a negative
impact on the consolidated balance sheet and/or statement of earnings resulting from adverse changes in the value of financial
instruments as a result of changes in certain market variables including interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices and credit
spreads. The company’s derivative contracts, with limited exceptions, are used for the purpose of managing these risks. Derivative
contracts entered into by the company are considered economic hedges and are not designated as hedges for financial reporting
purposes.

The fair value of derivatives in a gain position are presented on the consolidated balance sheet in derivatives and other invested
assets in portfolio investments and in the cash, short term investments and marketable securities of the holding company. The fair
value of derivatives in a loss position and obligations to purchase securities sold short are presented on the consolidated balance sheet
in short sale and derivative obligations. The initial premium paid for a derivative contract, if any, would be recorded as a derivative
asset and subsequently adjusted for changes in the market value of the contract at each balance sheet date. Changes in the market
value of a contract are recorded as net gains (losses) on investments in the company’s consolidated statement of net earnings at each
balance sheet date, with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying value of the derivative asset or liability.

Equity contracts

Short positions in equity and equity index total return swaps are held primarily to provide protection against significant declines
in the value of the company’s portfolio of common stocks. The company’s equity and equity index total return swaps contain
contractual reset provisions requiring counterparties to cash-settle on a quarterly basis any market value movements arising
subsequent to the prior settlement. Any cash amounts paid to settle unfavourable market value changes and, conversely, any cash
amounts received in settlement of favourable market value changes are recognized by the company as net gains (losses) on
investments in the consolidated statements of net earnings. To the extent that a contractual reset date of a contract does not correspond
to the balance sheet date, the company records net gains (losses) on investments in the consolidated statements of net earnings to
adjust the carrying value of the derivative asset or liability associated with each total return swap contract to reflect its fair value at the
balance sheet date. Final cash settlements of total return swaps are recognized as net gains (losses) on investments net of any
previously recorded unrealized market value changes since the last quarterly reset date. Total return swaps require no initial net
investment and at inception, their fair value is zero.

The company holds significant investments in equities and equity-related securities, which the company believes will
significantly appreciate in value over time. The market value and the liquidity of these investments are volatile and may vary
dramatically either up or down in short periods, and their ultimate value will therefore only be known over the long term. During the
third quarter of 2009, as a result of the rapid increase in the valuation level of worldwide equity markets, the company determined to
protect a portion of its equity and equity-related holdings against a potential decline in equity markets by way of short positions
effected through equity index total return swaps. At the inception of the short positions, the resulting equity hedge ($1.5 billion
notional amount at an average S&P 500 index value of 1,062.52) represented approximately one-quarter of the company’s equity and
equity-related holdings ($6,517.9). At year-end, as a result of decreased equity and equity-related holdings of $6,156.5 and increased
short positions, the equity hedges had increased to approximately 30%. The company believes that the equity hedges will be
reasonably effective in protecting that proportion of the company’s equity and equity-related holdings to which the hedges relate,
however, due to a lack of a perfect correlation between the hedged items and the hedging items, combined with other market
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uncertainties, it is not possible to estimate the reasonably likely future impact of the company’s economic hedging programs related to
equity risk.

During much of 2008 and immediately preceding years, the company had been concerned with the valuation level of worldwide
equity markets, uncertainty resulting from credit issues in the United States and global economic conditions. As protection against a
decline in equity markets, during this period the company had held short positions effected by way of equity index-based exchange-
traded securities including the SPDRs, U.S. listed common stocks, equity total return swaps and equity index total return swaps,
referred to in the aggregate as the company’s equity hedges. The company had purchased short term S&P 500 index call options to
limit the potential loss on U.S. equity index total return swaps and the SPDRs short positions and to provide general protection against
the short position in common stocks. During the fourth quarter of 2008, following significant declines in global equity markets, the
company revised the financial objectives of its economic hedging program on the basis of its assessment that the formerly elevated
risks in the global equity markets had moderated and subsequently closed substantially all of its equity hedge positions, realizing net
pre-tax gains of $1,272.0 and $714.0 for the fourth quarter and year ended December 31, 2008 respectively. During the remainder of
the fourth quarter of 2008, the company significantly increased its investments in equities as a result of the opportunities presented by
significant declines in equity valuations.

At December 31, 2009, the fair value included in portfolio investments and in the cash, short term investments and marketable
securities of the holding company of assets pledged as collateral was $230.4 ($28.0 at December 31, 2008), of which nil ($3.9 at
December 31, 2008) was restricted cash; the remainder of the assets, although pledged, may be substituted with similar assets. Total
assets pledged of $230.4 is comprised of collateral primarily for equity and equity index total return swap obligations of $206.0 and
assets pledged for the Cdn$25.0 standby letter of credit of $24.4 as described in note 10 under the heading Financial guarantee.

A limited number of long positions in equity total return swaps were entered into during the first quarter of 2009 for investment
purposes based on attractive valuation levels following the significant declines in the global equity markets during the fourth quarter
of 2008.

Equity and equity index call options include derivative purchase contracts and call options relating to U.S. publicly traded
common stock and indices.

Equity warrants were acquired in conjunction with the company’s investment in debt securities of various Canadian companies
during the second quarter of 2009. The warrants have expiration dates ranging from 4 years to 5 years.

Credit contracts

The company has credit default swaps, referenced primarily to various issuers in the banking and insurance sectors of the
financial services industry, which serve as an economic hedge against declines in the fair value of the company’s financial assets.
These credit default swaps have a remaining average life of 2.4 years (3.3 years at December 31, 2008) and a notional amount and fair
value as shown in the table above. As the average remaining life of a contract declines, the fair value of the contract (excluding the
impact of credit spreads) will generally decline. The initial premium paid for each credit default swap contract was recorded as a
derivative asset and was subsequently adjusted for changes in the market value of the contract at each balance sheet date. Changes in
the market value of the contract were recorded as net gains (losses) on investments in the company’s consolidated statement of net
earnings at each balance sheet date, with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying value of the derivative asset.

During the fourth quarter of 2009, the company sold nil (2008 — $3,363.9) notional amount of credit default swaps for proceeds of
nil (2008 — $378.0) and recorded net gains on sale of nil (2008 — $43.8) and recorded net mark-to-market losses of $10.0 (2008 — $4.6)
in respect of positions remaining open at year end. During 2009, the company sold $3,042.9 (2008 — $11,629.8) notional amount of
credit default swaps for proceeds of $231.6 (2008 — $2,048.7) and recorded net gains on sale of $46.2 (2008 — $1,047.5) and recorded
net mark-to-market losses of $160.8 (2008 — net gains of $238.9) in respect of positions remaining open at year end. Sales of credit
default swap contracts during 2009 and 2008 caused the company to reverse any previously recorded unrealized market value changes
since the inception of the contract and to record the actual amount of the final cash settlement through net gains (losses) on
investments in the consolidated statements of net earnings.

The company holds, for investment purposes, various bond warrants that give the company an option to purchase certain long
dated corporate bonds. The warrants have expiration dates averaging 37 years.
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Foreign exchange forward contracts

A significant portion of the company’s business is conducted in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. The company is also
exposed to currency rate fluctuations through its net investments in subsidiaries that have a functional currency other than the U.S.
dollar. Long and short foreign exchange forward contracts primarily denominated in the pound sterling and the Canadian dollar are
used to manage certain foreign currency exposures arising from foreign currency denominated transactions. The contracts have an
average term of less than one year and may be renewed at market rates.

Counterparty risk

The company endeavours to limit counterparty risk through the terms of agreements negotiated with the counterparties to its total
return swap, credit default swap and other derivative securities contracts. Pursuant to these agreements, the company and the
counterparties to these transactions are contractually required to deposit eligible collateral in collateral accounts for either the benefit
of the company or the counterparty depending on the then current fair value or change in fair value of the derivative contracts.

The fair value of the collateral deposited for the benefit of the company at December 31, 2009, all of which consisted of
government securities that may be sold or repledged by the company, was $23.2. The fair value of the collateral deposited for the
benefit of the company at December 31, 2008, all of which consisted of government securities, was $285.1, of which $107.6 was
eligible to be sold or repledged by the company. The company had not exercised its right to sell or repledge collateral at December 31,
2009.

The fair value of the collateral deposited for the benefit of counterparties at December 31, 2009 was $206.0, of which $156.4 was
collateral required to be deposited to enter into such derivative contracts and $49.6 of which was collateral required to be deposited
due to changes in fair value. The fair value of collateral deposited for the benefit of counterparties at December 31, 2008 was $28.0.

Financial performance

The following table summarizes the impact of investments classified or designated as held for trading on net gains (losses) on
investments recognized in the consolidated statements of earnings. Common stock and equity index positions includes positions in
securities sold but not yet purchased, equity and equity index total return swaps and equity and equity index call options. Other is
primarily comprised of foreign exchange forward contracts, credit warrants, futures contracts and other derivative securities.

Classified as held for trading Designated as held for trading
Common
stock and Credit
equity index default Equity Preferred and
positions swaps warrants _Other Total Bonds common stocks Total
For the three months ended December 31, 2009
Inception-to-date realized gains (losses) on positions
closed in the Period ... 26.4 — 1727 (10.1) 189.0 31.2 7.0 38.2
Mark-to-market (gains) losses recognized in prior periods
on positions closed in the Period.............cocoeevvnrnnnnennn. (95.3) —  (152.9) 0.2 (248.0) (10.4) (5.3) (15.7)
Mark-to-market gains (losses) arising on positions
remaining open at period end...........cccccoevniniiicceinnnns 6.9 (10.0) (0.9 (1.6) (5.6) (155.5) 27.7 (127.8)
Net gains (I0SSES) .....c.cveuerrrriririirieeitieieieresr e (62.0) (10.0) 18,9 (11.5) (64.6) (134.7) 29.4 (105.3)
For the three months ended December 31, 2008
Inception-to-date realized gains (losses) on positions
closed in the Period ... 1,305.4 306.2 — 53.6 1,665.2 (1.4) — (1.4)
Mark-to-market (gains) losses recognized in prior periods
on positions closed in the period..........ccccccoeeenirrccicninnene. (251.8) (262.4) — (13.0) (527.2) 0.1) — (0.1)
Mark-to-market gains (losses) arising on positions
remaining open at period end..........c.coeverirnrecieninnneenes 14 (4.6) — 4.5 1.3 (191.9) (21.3) (213.2)
Net gaiNS (I0SSES) ...c.cvverereiiririeieieerrs s 1,055.0 39.2 — 45.1 1,139.3 (193.4) (21.3) (214.7)
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Classified as held for trading Designated as held for trading

Common
stock and Credit
equity index default Equity Preferred and
positions swaps _ _warrants _Other Total Bonds common stocks Total
For the year ended December 31, 2009
Inception-to-date realized gains (losses) on positions
closed iNthe Year.........ccoeverieriereeeree e (15.5) 185.4 172.7 (26.1) 316.5 58.8 9.2 68.0
Mark-to-market (gains) losses recognized in prior years on
positions closed in the Year ... 0.1 (139.2) — (18.8) (157.9) 28.8 — 28.8
Mark-to-market gains (losses) arising on positions
remaining open at year end ...........ccccoeevnneniciiceeiens 8.8 (160.8) 58.2 (27.3) (121.1) 604.1 504 654.5
Net gains (I0SSES) .....c.cveuerrvriririirieiiieieieresr s (6.6) (114.6) _2309 (72.2) 37.5 691.7 59.6 751.3
For the year ended December 31, 2008
Inception-to-date realized gains (losses) on positions
Closed IN the YEAT........oceiiirieee e 1,994.2 1,801.5 — 62.4 3,858.1 (2.0) — (2.0
Mark-to-market (gains) losses recognized in prior years on
positions closed in the Year .........cccooveeeinniccnereeens 84.7 (754.0) — 2.9 (666.4) 0.1 — 0.1
Mark-to-market gains (losses) arising on positions
remaining open at year end ...........cocoveeerininneeeneenseenes (0.2) 238.9 — (1.9) 236.8 (348.1) (21.3) (369.4)
NEt gaINS (I0SSES) ..vvvvvvverereriiriereeeerereseeie e seeseeens 2,078.7 1,286.4 — 63.4 3,428.5 (350.0) (21.3) (371.3)

Hedge of net investment in Northbridge

In a net investment hedging relationship, the gains and losses relating to the hedged portion of the underlying asset or liability (the
effective portion of the hedge) are recorded in other comprehensive income (loss). The gains and losses relating to the ineffective
portion of the hedge are recorded in net gains (losses) on investments in the consolidated statements of net earnings. In the case of a
hedged net investment in foreign operations, gains and losses previously recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
are recognized in net earnings when the hedged net investment in foreign operations is reduced.

In the first quarter of 2009 Northbridge, which conducts business primarily in Canada, became a wholly owned subsidiary of
Fairfax as described in note 5. As a self-sustaining operation with a Canadian dollar functional currency, the net assets of Northbridge
represent a significant foreign currency exposure to Fairfax. In keeping with the company’s foreign currency risk management
objective of mitigating the impact of foreign currency rate fluctuations on its financial position, in August 2009 the company
designated the carrying value of its Canadian dollar denominated senior notes due August 19, 2019 as a hedge of a portion of its net
investment in Northbridge for financial reporting purposes. In the fourth quarter and year ended December 31, 2009, the company
recognized $8.9 and $18.3 respectively of foreign currency movement on the senior notes in changes in gains and losses on hedges of
net investment in foreign subsidiary in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The foreign currency exposure deferred
in the currency translation account in accumulated other comprehensive income will remain until such time that the net investment in
Northbridge is reduced.

5. Acquisitions and Divestitures
Subsequent to December 31, 2009

On February 18, 2010, the company announced an agreement with Zenith National Insurance Corp. (“Zenith™) pursuant to which
the company will acquire all of the outstanding shares of Zenith common stock, other than those shares not already owned by Fairfax
and its affiliates, for $38.00 per share in cash and pursuant to which Zenith will become a wholly owned subsidiary of the company.
The aggregate cash consideration payable under the merger agreement for the shares that are not already held by Fairfax is estimated
to be approximately $1.3 billion. The company intends to finance the acquisition with a combination of holding company cash and
subsidiary dividends, and also intends to raise $200.0 through a common equity issue prior to the closing. Following the completion of
the acquisition, the company expects to continue to maintain approximately $1.0 billion in cash, short term investments and
marketable securities at the holding company level. The transaction is expected to close in the second quarter of 2010, subject to the
approval by Zenith shareholders and receipt of customary regulatory approvals. Zenith is engaged, through its wholly owned
subsidiaries, in the workers’ compensation insurance business throughout the United States.
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Year ended December 31, 2009
Establishment of New Brazilian Insurer

At December 31, 2009, the company had invested initial capital of $39.9 (71.2 million Reais) in a newly established, wholly-
owned Brazilian property and casualty insurance company, Fairfax Brasil Seguros Corporativos S.A. (“Fairfax Brasil”). Fairfax Brasil
is headquartered in S&o Paulo, Brazil and plans to commence underwriting in the first quarter of 2010, subject to receipt of approvals
by Brazilian insurance regulatory authorities, in all lines of commercial business, with a primary focus on Brazilian property, energy,
casualty, surety, marine, financial lines, special risks, hull and aviation.

Privatization of OdysseyRe

On September 23, 2009, the company announced a tender offer to acquire the 27.4% of the outstanding common shares of
OdysseyRe that the company did not already own for $65.00 in cash per share (the “OdysseyRe Offer”), representing an aggregate
cash purchase price of approximately $1.0 billion. On October 27, 2009, the company paid for and acquired the 14.2 million
OdysseyRe shares which had been tendered at the expiry of the OdysseyRe Offer, increasing the company’s ownership of OdysseyRe
to 96.8% (71.9% at June 30, 2009). On October 28, 2009, in accordance with the terms of the related merger agreement, all of
OdysseyRe’s common shares held by the remaining minority shareholders were cancelled and converted into the right to receive
$65.00 per share in cash and OdysseyRe became a wholly owned subsidiary of the company. The result of this transaction is
summarized in the table that follows.

Privatization of Advent

On October 17, 2009, the company completed the acquisition of all of the outstanding common shares of Advent, other than those
common shares already owned by the company, for aggregate cash consideration of $59.5 (£35.8 million), pursuant to a previously
announced tender offer. The result of this transaction is summarized in the table that follows.

Privatization of Northbridge

On January 13, 2009, the company purchased 24.8% of the outstanding common shares of Northbridge for an aggregate cash
purchase price of $374.0 (Cdn$458.4) pursuant to a previously announced offer to acquire all of the outstanding common shares of
Northbridge other than those common shares already owned by the company (the “Step 1" acquisition). Immediately following the
February 19, 2009 approval by Northbridge shareholders of a going private transaction, Northbridge redeemed the remaining 11.6% of
its outstanding common shares for an aggregate cash consideration of $172.4 (Cdn$215.9) (the “Step 2” acquisition). The result of
these transactions is summarized in the table that follows.

Acquisition of Polskie Towarzystwo Reasekuracji Spolka Akcyjna (““Polish Re™)

On January 7, 2009, the company completed the acquisition of 100% of the outstanding common shares of Polish Re, a Polish
reinsurance company, for cash consideration of $57.0 (168.3 million Polish zloty), pursuant to a previously announced tender offer.
The assets and liabilities and results of operations of Polish Re have been included in the company’s consolidated financial reporting
in the Reinsurance — Other reporting segment. This investment increased the company’s exposure to the Central and Eastern European
economies and has established a platform for business expansion in that region over time. The result of this transaction is summarized
in the table that follows.

The OdysseyRe, Advent, Northbridge and Polish Re acquisitions were accounted for using the purchase method. The total
intangible assets acquired of $37.9 and $90.8 in the OdysseyRe and Northbridge acquisitions have been included in the company’s
financial reporting in the Reinsurance — OdysseyRe and Insurance — Northbridge reporting segments respectively. The customer and
broker relationship intangible assets are amortized on the straight-line basis over periods ranging from 8 to 20 years and the resulting
amortization expense is included in OdysseyRe and Northbridge’s operating results, while the brand names have indefinite lives and
are not amortized. The OdysseyRe and Northbridge acquisitions decreased non-controlling interests in the consolidated balance sheet
by $950.2 and $398.5 respectively. The purchase price allocation of the OdysseyRe acquisition is preliminary and may be revised
when estimates and assumptions are finalized and the valuations of assets and liabilities are finalized within twelve months of the
purchase date.
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OdysseyRe Advent Northbridge Polish Re
Step 1 acquisition Step 2 acquisition Total

Acquisition date ..........ccccvrreiiennncie October 21, 2009  September 2, 2009  January 13, 2009 February 20, 2009 January 7, 2009
Percentage of common shares acquired ..... 27.4% 36.5% 24.8% 11.6% 36.4% 100%
Cash purchase consideration ............c......... 1,017.0 59.5 374.0 1724 546.4 57.0
Fair value of assets acquired:
Tangible assets™..........coovvrrvernrerrreinnernnens 3,028.7 368.3 1,070.2 496.0 1,566.2 141.0
Intangible assets:
Customer and broker relationships......... 27.9 — 53.5 26.1 79.6 —
Brand Names.........ocooveveeeinnniniieeiens 10.0 — 7.5 3.7 11.2 —
GOOAWIIl ... 64.6 — 51.5 29.1 80.6 13.8
Total fair value of assets acquired............... 3,131.2 368.3 1,182.7 554.9 1,737.6 154.8
Total fair value of liabilities assumed ........ (2,114.2) (308.8) (808.7) (382.5) (1,191.2) (97.8)
Net assets aCqUIred ........ccoouvveererrrrieeenene. 1,017.0 59.5 374.0 172.4 546.4 57.0

(1) Ofthe $141.0 of tangible assets acquired in the Polish Re transaction, $31.9 comprised cash and cash equivalents.
Other
Investment in Alltrust

On August 31, 2009, the company announced the purchase of a 15.0% interest in Alltrust Insurance Company of China Ltd.
(“Alltrust”) for cash consideration of $65.9. The closing of this purchase was subject to final approval by the Chinese Insurance
Regulatory Commission, which was received on September 29, 2009. Alltrust is headquartered in Shanghai and provides a full range
of primary insurance products and services in China, including property insurance, liability insurance, surety bonds, short-term health
insurance, accident insurance, motor insurance and reinsurance. The company recorded its investment in Alltrust at cost within the
available for sale classification as Alltrust does not have a quoted price in an active market.

On February 11, 2009, the company made an additional investment of $49.0 in its equity affiliate Cunningham Lindsey Group
Limited (“CLGL") to facilitate that company’s acquisition of the international operations of GAB Robins, a provider of loss adjusting
and claims management services. The company’s ownership of CLGL at December 31, 2009 was 43.6% (45.7% at December 31,
2008).

Year ended December 31, 2008

During November 2008, the company, directly and through its operating companies, purchased 9,412,095 common shares of
Ridley (a 67.9% interest), primarily from Ridley’s Australian parent, Ridley Corporation Limited. In exchange for total cash purchase
consideration of $68.4 (Cdn$79.4), the company acquired assets of $231.0 (including $2.0 of cash and cash equivalents), assumed
liabilities of $114.9 and recorded $48.8 of non-controlling interests and $1.1 of goodwill. The assets and liabilities and results of
operations of Ridley have been included in the company’s consolidated financial reporting in the Other reporting segment. Ridley is a
commercial animal nutrition company with operations throughout North America.

On September 11, 2008, the company, directly and through its operating companies, acquired an additional 14.0% interest in
Advent for $17.3 (£9.5 million), increasing the company’s total ownership of Advent to 58.5% from 44.5%. Prior to this acquisition of
a controlling interest, the company accounted for Advent using the equity method of accounting. Following the transaction, the assets
and liabilities and results of operations of Advent have been included in the company’s consolidated financial reporting in the
Reinsurance — Other business segment. On various dates during the fourth quarter of 2008, the company, directly and through its
operating companies, purchased an additional 8.1% interest in Advent for cash of $8.3 (£5.4 million), increasing the company’s total
ownership in Advent to 66.6% at December 31, 2008. Advent is a reinsurance and insurance company, operating through Syndicate
780 at Lloyd’s, focused on specialty property reinsurance and insurance risks.

On August 29, 2008, the company through OdysseyRe purchased certain assets and liabilities associated with the crop insurance
business previously produced by CropUSA Insurance Agency, Inc. (“CropUSA™) for cash consideration of $8.0. Since 2006,
CropUSA has acted as managing general underwriter for OdysseyRe in the crop insurance sector.

On June 13, 2008, CLGL, a new holding company formed in December 2007 to facilitate the disposition of the Cunningham
Lindsey Group Inc. (“CLGI”) operating companies, repaid a Cdn$125.0 promissory note payable to CLGI using funds received from
its new bank credit facility. CLGI used the proceeds received to repay its 7.0% unsecured Series B debentures (Cdn$125.0), as
described in note 6. During the second quarter of 2008, CLGI increased its investment in CLGL by Cdn$23.0 by contributing Cdn$5.9
in cash and by converting a Cdn$17.1 promissory note due from CLGL to equity. Subsequent to this investment, CLGI’s interest in
CLGL increased to 45.7%. On December 5, 2008, the assets of CLGI were liquidated into Fairfax, triggering the recognition of a loss
of $24.9 in net gains on investments in the consolidated statement of earnings related to the release of cumulative foreign currency
translation losses, with the result that the equity accounted investment in CLGL was owned directly by Fairfax through an
intermediate holding company.
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In June 2008, the company through one of its subsidiaries purchased a 19.8% interest in Arab Orient Insurance Company (“Arab
Orient”) for cash consideration of $10.4. Arab Orient is a publicly traded insurance company based in Amman, Jordan. The company
recorded its investment in Arab Orient at fair value within the available for sale classification.

Repurchases of shares

During 2009, OdysseyRe repurchased for cancellation on the open market 1,789,100 (nil in the fourth quarter) of its common
shares with a cost of $72.6 (nil in the fourth quarter), as part of its previously announced common share repurchase programme. These
transactions increased the company’s ownership of OdysseyRe to 72.6% (2008 - 70.4%), and decreased non-controlling interests by
$89.6 (nil in the fourth quarter) prior to the previously described going private transaction in the fourth quarter of 2009. During 2009,
Northbridge did not repurchase any of its common shares for cancellation except for those shares repurchased as part of the going
private transaction described previously.

During 2008, Northbridge repurchased for cancellation on the open market 2,340,000 (1,035,400 in the fourth quarter) of its
common shares with a cost of $65.4 ($25.7 in the fourth quarter), and OdysseyRe repurchased for cancellation on the open market
9,480,756 (nil in the fourth quarter) of its common shares with a cost of $351.4 (nil in the fourth quarter), as part of their previously
announced common share repurchase programmes. These transactions increased the company’s ownership of Northbridge and
OdysseyRe to 63.6% (60.2% at December 31, 2007) and 70.4% (61.0% at December 31, 2007), and decreased non-controlling
interests by $63.8 ($24.5 in the fourth quarter) and $362.0 (nil in the fourth quarter) respectively at December 31, 2008.

6. Subsidiary Indebtedness, Long Term Debt, Other Long Term Obligations and Capital
Subsequent to December 31, 2009

On February 1, 2010, the company issued 8,000,000 cumulative five-year rate reset preferred shares, Series E for Cdn$25.00 per
share, resulting in net proceeds after commissions and expenses (net of tax of $1.7) of $183.1 (Cdn$195.3). The Series E preferred
shares have a dividend rate of 4.75% per annum until March 31, 2015 and thereafter an annual rate to be reset every five years equal
to the then current five-year Government of Canada bond yield plus 2.16%. The Series E preferred shares have a liquidation
preference of Cdn$25.00 per share and are redeemable by the company on March 31, 2015 and on March 31 every five years
thereafter at Cdn$25.00 per share. Holders of unredeemed Series E preferred shares will have the right, at their option, to convert their
shares into Series F floating rate cumulative preferred shares on March 31, 2015, and on March 31 every five years thereafter. The
Series F preferred shares (of which none are currently issued) will have a dividend rate equal to the three-month Government of
Canada Treasury Bill yield current on March 31, 2015 or any subsequent five-year anniversary plus 2.16%.

Year ended December 31, 2009

On December 1, 2009, the company repurchased for cancellation 2,250,000 and 3,750,000 Series A and B preferred shares
respectively. The company paid $53.9 to repurchase $38.4 (Cdn$56.2) of the stated capital of the Series A preferred shares and $89.9
to repurchase $64.1 (Cdn$93.8) of the stated capital of the Series B preferred shares. These redemptions resulted in a charge to
retained earnings of $41.3, representing the excess of the redemption amount paid (stated capital of Cdn$150.0) over the balance sheet
carried value of the redeemed shares, the difference arising as a result of the movement in the Canadian-U.S. dollar exchange rate
between the date the company commenced financial reporting in U.S. dollars and the redemption date.

On October 5, 2009, the company issued 10,000,000 cumulative five-year rate reset preferred shares, Series C for Cdn$25.00 per
share, resulting in net proceeds after commissions and expenses (net of tax of $2.2) of $227.2 (Cdn$244.5). The Series C preferred
shares have a dividend rate of 5.75% per annum until December 31, 2014 and thereafter an annual rate to be reset every five years
equal to the then current five-year Government of Canada bond yield plus 3.15%. The Series C preferred shares have a liquidation
preference of Cdn$25.00 per share and are redeemable by the company on December 31, 2014 and on December 31 every five years
thereafter at Cdn$25.00 per share. Holders of unredeemed Series C preferred shares will have the right, at their option, to convert their
shares into Series D floating rate cumulative preferred shares on December 31, 2014, and on December 31 every five years thereafter.
The Series D preferred shares (of which none are currently issued) will have a dividend rate equal to the three-month Government of
Canada Treasury Bill yield current on December 31, 2014 or any subsequent five-year anniversary plus 3.15%.

On September 25, 2009, the company purchased $1.0 principal amount of its senior notes due 2012 for cash consideration of $1.0.
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On September 11, 2009, the company completed a public equity offering and issued 2,881,844 subordinate voting shares at
$347.00 per share, for net proceeds after commissions and expenses (net of tax of $6.3) of $989.3.

On August 18, 2009, the company completed a public debt offering of Cdn$400.0 principal amount of 7.50% unsecured senior
notes due August 19, 2019 at an issue price of 99.639 for net proceeds after discount, commissions and expenses of $358.6
(Cdn$394.8). Commissions and expenses of $3.4 (Cdn$3.7) were included as part of the carrying value of the debt. The notes are
redeemable at the company’s option at any time at the greater of a specified redemption price based upon the then current yield of a
Government of Canada bond with a term to maturity equal to the remaining term to August 19, 2019 and par. The company has
designated these senior notes as a hedge of a portion of its net investment in Northbridge.

On April 28, 2009, the company purchased $8.8 principal amount of its trust preferred securities for cash consideration of $5.5.
On the maturity date, January 28, 2009, the company repaid the outstanding $12.8 of its 6.15% secured loan.
Year ended December 31, 2008

Effective November 4, 2008, the company consolidated the revolving term facilities and long term debt of Ridley pursuant to the
transactions described in note 5. The interest rates on the revolving term facilities are the bankers acceptance rate for Canadian dollar
debt and LIBOR for U.S. dollar debt plus a margin of 1.00% to 1.50% based on a specific debt ratio.

Effective from September 11, 2008, the company consolidated all the assets and liabilities of Advent pursuant to the transaction
described in note 5, including Advent’s long term debt with an aggregate principal amount of $96.8 and total carrying value of $93.4.

On June 16, 2008, Crum & Forster Holdings Corp. (“Crum & Forster”) redeemed for cash all $4.3 principal amount of its
outstanding notes due 2013 for total consideration of $4.5.

On June 16, 2008, Cunningham Lindsey repaid the outstanding Cdn$125.0 of its Series B debentures which matured on that date.
This transaction decreased subsidiary company borrowings by $118.6, net of $8.1 of these debentures owned by the company.

On April 15, 2008, the company repaid the outstanding $62.1 principal amount of its notes which matured on that date.

On January 9, 2008, the company called for redemption all of its 5.0% convertible senior debentures due 2023. On February 13,
2008, $188.5 principal amount of these debentures were converted by their holders into 886,888 subordinate voting shares of the
company and the company paid a nominal amount of cash to redeem the unconverted debentures and in lieu of fractional shares. The
conversion was recorded as a $192.3 increase of common stock and a $134.4 and $57.9 reduction of long term debt and other paid in
capital respectively.

Repurchases of shares

Under the terms of normal course issuer bids, during the fourth quarter of 2009 the company repurchased for cancellation 315,600
(2008 — 34,700) subordinate voting shares at a net cost of $112.4 (2008 — $8.6), of which $62.4 (2008 — $4.2) was charged to retained
earnings. During 2009, the company repurchased for cancellation 360,100 (2008 — 1,066,601) subordinate voting shares at a net cost
of $122.9 (2008 — $282.0), of which $67.3 (2008 — $147.2) was charged to retained earnings.

During 2008, the company repurchased for cancellation 750,000 (nil in the fourth quarter) and 1,250,000 (nil in the fourth
quarter) Series A and Series B preferred shares respectively. The company paid $18.3 to repurchase $12.8 (Cdn$18.8) of the stated
capital of the Series A preferred shares and $29.7 (nil in the fourth quarter) to repurchase $21.3 (Cdn$31.3) of the stated capital of the
Series B preferred shares. These transactions resulted in a charge to retained earnings of $13.9 (nil in the fourth quarter), representing
the excess of the redemption amount paid (stated capital of Cdn$50.0) over the balance sheet carried value of the redeemed shares, the
difference arising as a result of the movement in the Canadian-U.S. dollar exchange rate between the date the company commenced
financial reporting in U.S. dollars and the redemption date.

Dividends

On January 5, 2010, the company declared a cash dividend of $10.00 per share on its outstanding multiple voting and subordinate
voting shares, payable on January 26, 2010 to shareholders of record on January 19, 2010 for a total cash payment of $201.2.

On January 6, 2009, the company declared a cash dividend of $8.00 per share on its outstanding multiple voting and subordinate
voting shares, payable on January 27, 2009 to shareholders of record on January 20, 2009 for a total cash payment of $140.8.
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Fair value

The fair values of the company’s long term debt and other long term obligations are based principally on market prices, where
available, or discounted cash flow calculations. The estimated fair values of the company’s long term debt and other long term
obligations compared to their carrying values are as follows:

December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
Long term debt — holding company DOIrrOWINGS .........c.eovvireeiineisineseeees 1,236.9 1,317.4 869.6 711.1
Long term debt — subsidiary company DOrroWINgS ...........covvvrevreneiinenncneenns 891.3 917.4 889.1 748.7
Other long term obligations — holding company...........ccccccoeriiireininciieinens 173.5 171.3 187.7 181.2
2,301.7 2,406.1 1,946.4 1,641.0

Credit facilities

Northbridge maintains a five-year, unsecured, revolving credit facility with a Canadian chartered bank maturing in 2012 for up to
Cdn$50.0. As at December 31, 2009, there was Cdn$1.2 utilized under this credit facility, all of which was in support of letters of
credit. OdysseyRe maintains a five-year $200.0 credit facility with a syndicate of lenders maturing in 2012. As at December 31, 2009,
there was $54.9 utilized under this credit facility, all of which was in support of letters of credit, which included $21.0 in letters of
credit that were cancelled effective January 15, 2010.

7. Significant Commutations

During the fourth quarter of 2009, TIG Insurance Company (“TIG”) commuted a reinsurance contract. As a result of the
commutation, TIG received cash proceeds of $86.5 (in January 2010) and recorded a reduction of recoverable from reinsurers of $69.0
and a pre-tax gain of $17.5 in the consolidated financial statements.

During the third quarter of 2009, TIG commuted two reinsurance contracts. As a result of the commutations, TIG received cash
proceeds of $37.2 in the fourth quarter of 2009 and expects to receive the remaining balance of $12.5 in the first quarter of 2010 and
recorded a reduction of recoverable from reinsurers of $70.8 and a pre-tax charge of $21.1 in the consolidated financial statements.

On June 26, 2008, Crum & Forster commuted an aggregate stop loss reinsurance contract. As a result of the commutation,
Crum & Forster received cash proceeds of $302.5 and recorded a reduction of recoverable from reinsurers of $386.7 and a pre-tax
charge of $84.2 in the consolidated financial statements.

8. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (L0ss)

The balances related to each component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) were as follows:

December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Income tax Income tax
Pre-tax (expense)  After-tax Pre-tax (expense) After-tax
amount recovery amount amount recovery amount
Net unrealized gains (losses) on available for sale securities:
BONAS....c.eieiiiee e 181.2 (60.5) 120.7 1335 (41.8) 91.7
Common Stocks and OthEr ...........ccovivinieiee e 877.5 (251.1) 626.4 (199.7) 55.7 (144.0)
1,058.7 (311.6) 747.1 (66.2) 13.9 (52.3)
Currency translation aCCOUNT.........coveveiieiereieeecee e 153.9 (7.9) 146.0 (32.4) (23.1) (55.5)
12126 (319.5) 893.1 (98.6) (9.2) (107.8)

9. Income Taxes

The $100.0 recovery of income taxes in the fourth quarter of 2009 and the effective income tax rate of 17.8% implicit in the
$214.9 provision for income taxes in the twelve months of 2009 differed from the company’s statutory income tax rate of 33.0%
primarily as a result of the effect of non-taxable investment income in the U.S. tax group (including dividend income and interest on
bond investments in U.S. states and municipalities), income earned in jurisdictions where the corporate income tax rate is lower than
the company’s statutory income tax rate, the recognition of the benefit of previously unrecorded accumulated income tax losses, the
release of $30.7 of income tax provisions subsequent to the completion of examinations of the tax filings of prior years by taxation
authorities, and adjustments for prior years partially offset by income taxes on unrealized foreign currency gains on the company’s
publicly issued debt securities.
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The effective income tax rate of 40.6% implicit in the $247.3 provision for income taxes in the fourth quarter of 2008 differed
from the company’s statutory income tax rate of 33.5% primarily as a result of the effect of the unrecorded tax benefit on unrealized
losses arising from other than temporary impairments recorded on common stock and bond investments, and the effect of losses in
jurisdictions where the corporate income tax rate is lower than the company’s statutory income tax rate and where the benefit of
accumulated income tax losses is unrecorded, partially offset by the effect of reduced unrealized foreign exchange gains on public
debt. The effective income tax rate of 30.9% implicit in the $755.6 provision for income taxes in 2008 differed from the company’s
statutory income tax rate of 33.5% primarily as a result of the effect of income earned in jurisdictions where the corporate income tax
rate is lower than the company’s statutory income tax rate and where the benefit of accumulated income tax losses is unrecorded, the
release in the second quarter of $23.3 of income tax provisions subsequent to the completion of an examination by taxation authorities,
and the effect of reduced unrealized foreign exchange gains on public debt, partially offset by the effect of the unrecorded tax benefit
on unrealized losses arising from other than temporary impairments recorded on common stock and bond investments.

10. Contingencies
Lawsuits

(@) During 2006, several lawsuits seeking class action status were filed against Fairfax and certain of its officers and directors in
the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York. The Court made an order consolidating the various
pending lawsuits and granted the single remaining motion for appointment as lead plaintiffs. The Court also issued orders
approving scheduling stipulations filed by the parties to the consolidated lawsuit. On February 8, 2007, the lead plaintiffs
filed an amended consolidated complaint (the “Amended Consolidated Complaint”), which states that the lead plaintiffs
seek to represent a class of all purchasers and acquirers of securities of Fairfax between May 21, 2003 and March 22, 2006
inclusive. The Amended Consolidated Complaint names as defendants Fairfax, certain of its officers and directors,
OdysseyRe and Fairfax’s auditors. The Amended Consolidated Complaint alleges that the defendants violated U.S. federal
securities laws by making material misstatements or failing to disclose certain material information regarding, among other
things, Fairfax’s and OdysseyRe’s assets, earnings, losses, financial condition, and internal financial controls. The Amended
Consolidated Complaint seeks, among other things, certification of the putative class; unspecified compensatory damages
(including interest); unspecified monetary restitution; unspecified extraordinary, equitable and/or injunctive relief; and costs
(including reasonable attorneys’ fees). These claims are at a preliminary stage. Pursuant to the scheduling stipulations, the
various defendants filed their respective motions to dismiss the Amended Consolidated Complaint, the lead plaintiffs filed
their oppositions thereto, the defendants filed their replies to those oppositions and the motions to dismiss were argued
before the Court in December 2007. The Court has not yet issued a ruling on these motions. In November 2009, the Court
granted a motion by the lead plaintiffs to withdraw as lead plaintiffs, and allowed other prospective lead plaintiffs 60 days to
file motions seeking appointment as replacement lead plaintiff. Two entities filed such motions and subsequently asked the
Court to appoint them as co-lead plaintiffs. These motions remain pending. The ultimate outcome of any litigation is
uncertain and should the consolidated lawsuit continue and be successful, the defendants may be subject to an award of
significant damages, which could have a material adverse effect on Fairfax’s business, results of operations and financial
condition. The consolidated lawsuit, if it continues, may require significant management attention, which could divert
management’s attention away from the company’s business. In addition, the company could be materially adversely affected
by negative publicity related to this lawsuit. Any of the possible consequences noted above, or the perception that any of
them could occur, could have an adverse effect upon the market price for the company’s securities. Fairfax, OdysseyRe and
the named officers and directors intend to vigorously defend against the consolidated lawsuit and the company’s financial
statements include no provision for loss.

(b) On July 26, 2006, Fairfax filed a lawsuit seeking $6 billion in damages from a number of defendants who, the complaint (as
subsequently amended) alleges, participated in a stock market manipulation scheme involving Fairfax shares. The
complaint, filed in Superior Court, Morris County, New Jersey, alleges violations of various state laws, including the New
Jersey Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act, pursuant to which treble damages may be available. The
defendants removed this lawsuit to the District Court for the District of New Jersey but pursuant to a motion filed by
Fairfax, the lawsuit was remanded to Superior Court, Morris County, New Jersey. Most of the defendants filed motions to
dismiss the lawsuit, all of which were denied during a Court hearing in September 2007. In October 2007, defendants filed a
motion for leave to appeal to the Appellate Division from the denial of their motions to dismiss. In December 2007, that
motion for leave was denied. Subsequently, two of the defendants filed a motion seeking leave to appeal certain limited
issues to the New Jersey Supreme Court. That motion for leave was denied in February 2008. In December 2007, two
defendants who were added to the action after its initial filing filed motions to dismiss the claims against them. Those
motions were granted in February 2008, with leave being granted to Fairfax to replead the claims against those two
defendants. Fairfax filed an amended complaint in March 2008, which again asserted claims against those defendants. Those
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defendants filed a motion to dismiss the amended complaint, which motion was denied in August 2008. In September 2008,
those two defendants also filed a counterclaim against Fairfax, as well as third-party claims against certain Fairfax
executives, OdysseyRe, Fairfax’s outside legal counsel and PricewaterhouseCoopers. Fairfax has not been served with this
counterclaim. In December 2007, an individual defendant filed a counterclaim against Fairfax. Fairfax’s motion to dismiss
that counterclaim was denied in August 2008. Fairfax intends to vigorously defend against these counterclaims. In
September 2008, the Court granted a motion for summary judgment brought by two defendants, and dismissed Fairfax’s
claims against those defendants without prejudice. Discovery in this action is ongoing. The ultimate outcome of any
litigation is uncertain and the company’s financial statements include no provision for loss on the counterclaim.

Financial guarantee

In August 2009, the company issued a Cdn$25.0 standby letter of credit on behalf of an investee for a term of six months, which
is extendible to one year at the option of the investee for an additional premium. In connection with the standby letter of credit, the
company has pledged short term investments in the amount of Cdn$25.0, representing the company’s maximum loss under the
standby letter of credit assuming failure of any right of recourse the company may have against the investee. The company’s
consolidated balance sheet includes a liability of $2.9 (Cdn$3.0) representing the fair value of the consideration received for issuing
the standby letter of credit. This liability may be recognized in net earnings if the standby letter of credit expires undrawn, may be
increased by the additional consideration received if the term is extended to one year or may be increased to reflect increased credit
risk in the event of a deterioration in the credit quality of the investee. At December 31, 2009, no draw-downs had been made on this
standby letter of credit.

11. Earnings per Share

Net earnings per share is calculated in the following table based upon weighted average common shares outstanding:

Fourth quarter Year ended December 31,
2009 2008 2009 2008
NET BATMINGS. ..ttt sttt st sbe e e s ereebeneas 79.4 346.8 856.8 1,473.8
Preferred share dividends ..........cccoovviiinincee s (4.6) (1.6) (10.5) (10.1)
Excess over stated value of preferred shares purchased for cancellation...... (41.3) — (41.3) (13.9)
Net earnings available to common shareholders — basic ...........c.ccoceveiiennne. 335 345.2 805.0 1,449.8
Interest expense on convertible debt, net of taX.........ccovevvveiiciniciiiens — — — 0.3
Net earnings available to common shareholders —diluted.............cccccco..... 335 345.2 805.0 1,450.1
Weighted average common shares outstanding — basic............ccocevereieenenne. 20,177,461 17,498,052 18,301,133 18,036,670
Effect of dilutive shares:
CoNVErtIDIE DD ... — — — 104,197
Options to purchase treasury Stock acquired ...........cooerreieneiicenscreee 93,946 94,304 96,765 91,890
Total effect of dilutive SNArES ..o 93,946 94,304 96,765 196,087
Weighted average common shares outstanding — diluted............c..ccccevneee. 20,271,407 17,592,356 18,397,898 18,232,757
Net earnings per common share — basiC .........ccccvveverireiieieeisese e $ 166 $ 1973 $ 4399 $ 80.38
Net earnings per common share — diluted .............ccooveiereerncereneiereereeee $ 165 $ 1962 $ 4375 $ 79.53

On February 13, 2008, the company’s 5.0% convertible senior debentures due July 15, 2023 were converted by their holders into
886,888 subordinate voting shares, which were thereafter weighted for inclusion in the calculation of basic earnings per share. The
subordinate voting shares issuable on conversion of the debentures were weighted for inclusion in the calculation of diluted earnings
per share for 2008 from the beginning of 2008 until the date of conversion.
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12. Capital Management

The company’s capital management framework is designed to first protect its policyholders, then to protect its bondholders, and
finally to optimize returns to shareholders. Effective capital management includes measures designed to maintain capital above
minimum regulatory levels, above levels required to satisfy issuer credit ratings and financial strength ratings requirements, and above
internally determined and calculated risk management levels. Total capital at December 31, 2009, comprising shareholders’ equity and
non-controlling interests, was $7,736.6, compared to $6,351.6 at December 31, 2008. The company manages its capital based on the
following financial measurements and ratios:

December 31,

2009 2008

Holding company cash, short term investments and marketable securities, net of short sale and derivative

Lo o] 1o = Vi o] OSSOSO 1,242.7 1,555.0
HOIAING COMPANY TEDL ...ttt b e bbbt ekt bbbttt nbeebennan 1,236.9 869.6
SUBSIAIANY GEDE... ...ttt bbb bbbtk b et b et b bbb 903.4 910.2
Other long term obligations — holding COMPANY .......cciiiiieiiici et 173.5 187.7
QI Lo (=T o OSSO U USROS 2,313.8 1,967.5
INBE EDL ...kt 1,071.1 412.5
ComMON SNAFENOIARIS™ BOUILY .....veveeiiteieeieieie ettt st seebe st e sbe st et esee b e e eneeneereabenee e 7,391.8 4,866.3
PRETEITEM EOUILY ... vttt b et b bbbt bbbt b e bt b e b e e b e b et e e e bt ebeabe b nnan 227.2 102.5
NON-CONTIOIIING INTEIESES ... .iveieeeeeeteeie ettt ettt ettt sttt e e s e e bt s be b e e et e s e e s e ebeebe st e sbe b e s e eneesenteeaeneen 117.6 1,382.8
Total equity and NON-CONTOIIING INTEIESTS ....c.viveieiiiecti ettt be b sre 7,736.6 6,351.6
Net debt/total equity and NON-CONLIOIING INTEIESES.......ceiiiiiieieii et ae e 13.8% 6.5%
Net debt/net total CAPITAIY............c..ovieeeeeeeee ettt ettt a st s sttt s et s s st senses e 12.2% 6.1%
Total AEDL/IOLAl CAPITAID..........oceevicveeees ettt ettt ettt a et ena st ee st en s s s s e st enaesnans 23.0% 23.7%
INEEIESE COVETAGE™ ......e.ieceeecteee ettt ettt a st a s st s st n et s et a st n e s snen 8.2x 16.4x

(1) Nettotal capital is calculated by the company as the sum of total shareholders’ equity, non-controlling interests and net debt.
(2) Total capital is calculated by the company as the sum of total shareholders’ equity, non-controlling interests and total debt.

(3) Interest coverage is calculated by the company as the sum of earnings (loss) from operations before income taxes and interest expense divided
by interest expense.

13. Financial Risk Management

The company has an enterprise-wide approach to the identification, measurement, monitoring and management of risks faced
across the organization. The key financial instrument risks are classified as underwriting, credit, market and liquidity risk, as disclosed
in note 18 of the company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2008. There have been no significant
changes to the company’s exposure to these risks or the framework used to monitor, evaluate and manage them other than as outlined
in the Risk Management section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
contained in the company’s Interim Report for the fourth quarter and year ended December 31, 2009.

14. Segmented Information

The company is a financial services holding company which, through its subsidiaries, is engaged in property and casualty
insurance, conducted on a primary and reinsurance basis, and runoff operations. Effective from January 7, 2009, the date of the
acquisition of Polish Re, all of the assets of Polish Re ($194.6 at December 31, 2009) have been included in the Reinsurance — Other
reporting segment. Northbridge, Fairfax Asia and OdysseyRe’s identifiable assets increased during 2009 primarily as a result of the
appreciation of the value of their portfolio investments. There were no other significant changes in the identifiable assets by reporting
segment as at December 31, 2009 compared to December 31, 2008. The Other reporting segment is comprised of revenues and
expenses of Ridley since its acquisition on November 4, 2008.
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An analysis of net earnings by reporting segment for the fourth quarter and year ended December 31 is presented below:

Quarter ended December 31, 2009

Insurance Reinsurance Eliminations
Crum & Fairfax Ongoing Corporate and
Northbridge _Forster _ Asia  OdysseyRe _ Other operations _Runoff _Other andother adjustments Consolidated

Net premiums earned............ 256.4 191.6 329 483.0 151.2 1,115.1 — — — — 1,115.1
Underwriting expenses (288.6) (204.9) (28.1) (466.7) (1535) (1,141.8) — — — — 1,141.8
Underwriting profit (loss)...... (32.2) (133) _48 16.3 (2.3) (26.7) — — — — (26.7)
Interest income 24.2 22.6 3.2 66.1 11.4 127.5 14.6 — 3.8 — 145.9
Dividends.........coovvieiieieinnnene 6.6 6.0 1.2 10.9 0.8 255 2.6 — 2.1 — 30.2
Earnings (loss) on

investments, at equity 0.3 1.7 (9.0) 2.2 — (4.8) — — 6.4 — 1.6
Investment expenses............... (2.6) (6.4) (0.7) (7.5) (1.4) (18.6) (3.2) — (0.7) 17.2 (5.3)
Interest and dividends............ 28.5 23.9 (5.3) 71.7 10.8 129.6 14.0 — 11.6 17.2 172.4
Other

ReVENUE........ccceveveriiiiiiee, — — — — — — — 1501 17.2 (17.2) 150.1
Expenses . — — — — — — (53.9) _(142.0) — — (195.9)

— — — — — — (53.9) 8.1 17.2 (17.2) (45.8)

Operating income (loss)

before: ... 3.7) 10.6 (0.5) 88.0 8.5 102.9 (39.9) 8.1 28.8 — 99.9
Net gains (losses) on

investments (6.0) (4.0) 1.4 (26.5) (7.6) (42.7) (7.8) — 21.3 (1.1) (30.3)
Interest expense — (7.0) — (7.5) 1.2) (15.7) — 0.2) (33.4) — (49.3)
Corporate overhead and

Other ..o (5.5) _03 (5.2 (6.0) (16.4) — — (20.7) — (37.1)
Pre-tax income (loss) ............. (15.2) 0.9 1.2 48.8 (6.3) 28.1 (47.7) 7.9 (4.0) (1.1) (16.8)
INCOMe taxes .........ccevvvrevrnne 100.0
Non-controlling interests ....... (3.8)
Net earnings .........cocccveeernnne 79.4
Quarter ended December 31, 2008

Insurance Reinsurance Eliminations
Crum & Fairfax Ongoing Corporate and
Northbridge Forster Asia OdysseyRe _ Other operations _ Runoff Other  _and other _adjustments _Consolidated

Net premiums earned........... 239.2 237.3 22.0 504.0 1135 1,116.0 — — — — 1,116.0
Underwriting expenses ........ (261.8) (246.8) (27.3) (475.2)  (153.3) _ (1,164.4) — — — — (1,164.4)
Underwriting profit (loss).... (22.6) (9.5) (5.3) 28.8 (39.8) (48.4) — — — — (48.4)
Interest income..........c.coe.e.. 15.7 31.2 0.7 60.8 10.5 118.9 14.8 — 8.1 — 141.8
Dividends.......cccocoveiricrinnne 8.7 7.6 14 10.9 0.3 28.9 3.2 — (2.3) — 29.8
Earnings (loss) on

investments, at equity........ 0.6 (7.6) (4.1) 9.7 — (20.8) (5.5) — 2.0 — (24.3)
Investment expenses............ (2.4) (1.9) (0.4) 0.5 (0.7) (4.9) (0.5) — (0.1) 4.2 (1.3)
Interest and dividends 22.6 29.3 (2.4) 62.5 10.1 122.1 12.0 — 7.7 4.2 146.0
Other

ReVeNUEe ......coceeriricne — — — — — — 6.3 99.4 4.2 (4.2) 105.7
EXPENSES ... — — — — — —  (109.9) (98.0) — — (207.9)

— — — — — — (103.6) 1.4 4.2 (4.2) (102.2)

Operating income (loss)

before: ..o — 19.8 7.7) 91.3 (29.7) 73.7 (91.6) 14 11.9 — (4.6)
Net gains (losses) on

iNVeStMents.........ccccoevennae (56.3) 194.9 4.8 157.8 22.6 323.8 164.4 — 207.9 (15.1) 681.0
Interest eXpense..........ccov..... — (7.0) (8.4) (2.2) (17.6) — (0.4) (22.3) — (40.3)
Corporate overhead and

Other...covirecce (2.9) (4.6) (2.8) (2.7) (1.3) (14.3) — — (12.8) — (27.1)
Pre-tax income (10sS) ........... (59.2) 203.1 (5.7) 238.0 (10.6) 365.6 72.8 1.0 184.7 (15.1) 609.0
INCOME taxes ......ccovervrvrennen (247.3)
Non-controlling interests...... (14.9)
Net earnings .........coccvveeveeenee 346.8
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Year ended December 31, 2009

Insurance Reinsurance Eliminations
Crum & Fairfax Ongoing Corporate and
Northbridge _Forster _ Asia  OdysseyRe _Other operations _Runoff _Other andother adjustments Consolidated
Net premiums earned.......... 969.2 781.3 116.0 1,927.4 628.1 4,422.0 — — — — 4,422.0
Underwriting expenses ....... (1,026.3) (813.3) (95.8) (1,863.1)  (616.2) (4,414.7) — — — — (4,414.7)
Underwriting profit (loss)... (57.1) (32.0) 20.2 64.3 11.9 7.3 — — — — 7.3
Interest income..........c.c...... 96.8 90.6 10.2 258.9 38.9 495.4 55.0 — 14.9 — 565.3
Dividends 24.9 344 5.6 52.0 25 119.4 11.4 — 6.7 — 1375
Earnings (loss) on
investments, at equity ....... 0.1 4.7 (4.6) 6.5 0.4 7.1 — — 16.2 — 23.3
Investment expenses........... (8.8) (15.8) (2.2) (33.8) (4.3) (64.9) (12.0) — (1.4) 64.9 (13.4)
Interest and dividends......... 113.0 113.9 9.0 283.6 37.5 557.0 54.4 — 36.4 64.9 712.7
Other
Revenue... . — — — — — — —  556.4 64.9 (64.9) 556.4
EXPENSES ..c.vovvveieieiirieiins — — — — — — (152.4) _(544.0) — — (696.4)
— — — — — — _(152.4) 124 64.9 (64.9) (140.0)
Operating income (loss)
before: ...coeveercerene 55.9 81.9 29.2 3479 494 564.3 (98.0) 12.4 101.3 — 580.0
Net gains (losses) on
investments ..o 94.4 229.1 17.8 353.6 (25.8) 669.1 129.2 — 147.3 1.1) 9445
Interest expense...........c...... — (27.8) — (31.0) (5.1) (63.9) — (1.0) (101.4) — (166.3)
Corporate overhead and
Other ..o (19.8) (3.3 (2.3) (25.8) (13.1) (64.3) — — (88.3) — (152.6)
Pre-tax income (10sS) .......... 130.5 279.9 44.7 644.7 5.4 1,105.2 31.2 11.4 58.9 (11) 1,205.6
Income taxes .......c.coeeverenne (214.9)
Non-controlling interests .... (133.9)
Net earnings .........coccveeeeenee 856.8
Year ended December 31, 2008
Insurance Reinsurance Eliminations
Crum & Fairfax Ongoing Corporate and
Northbridge _ Forster Asia__ OdysseyRe _ Other operations _Runoff _ Other _andother _adjustments _Consolidated
Net premiums earned........... 1,076.1 1,005.0 84.6 2,076.4 269.6 4,511.7 — — — — 4,511.7
Underwriting expenses ........ (1,114.0) (1,182.2) (17.7) _(2,104.1) (314.6) _(4.792.6) — — — — (4,792.6)
Underwriting profit (loss).... (37.9) (177.2) 6.9 (27.7) (45.0) (280.9) — — — — (280.9)
Interest income 94.4 107.4 5.6 256.2 30.1 493.7 71.2 — 421 — 607.0
Dividends.........cccovieiniiernnnnns 23.0 23.8 2.1 311 11 81.1 10.0 — (15.1) — 76.0
Earnings (loss) on
investments, at equity........ 0.6 (32.2) 4.9 (13.2) 1.4 (48.3) 4.2) — 3.1 — (49.4)
Investment expenses (10.1) (12.8) (1.2) (23.8) (2.5) (50.4) (8.8) — (1.3) 53.3 (7.2)
Interest and dividends.......... 107.9 86.2 1.6 250.3 30.1 476.1 68.2 — 28.8 53.3 626.4
Other
REVENUE .....cocevvireiceiinnn — — — — — — 17.4 99.4 53.3 (53.3) 116.8
EXPENSES .....ocveviviiriiieicine — — — — — — (1928) (98.0) — — (290.8)
— — — — — — (175.4) 1.4 53.3 (53.3) (174.0)
Operating income (loss)
before: ... 70.0 (91.0) 8.5 222.6 (14.9) 195.2  (107.2) 14 82.1 — 1715
Net gains (losses) on
iNVestments..........cccceveveene. 25.7 605.7 3.0 740.1 28.1 1,402.6 499.8 — 689.1 (20.8) 2,570.7
Interest eXpPense.......c.covveee. — (28.3) — (34.2) (2.6) (65.1) — (0.4) (93.1) — (158.6)
Corporate overhead and
Other ..o (14.5) (8.8) (5.5) (13.9) (1.9) (44.6) — — (94.7) — (139.3)
Pre-tax income (loss) . 81.2 477.6 6.0 914.6 8.7 1,488.1 392.6 1.0 583.4 (20.8) 2,444.3
INCOMe taxes .......c.ccoevvrvrvnne. (755.6)
Non-controlling interests...... (214.9)
Net earnings .........cccevvveeee. 1,473.8

A reconciliation of total revenue of the reporting segments to the company’s consolidated revenue for the fourth quarter and year
ended December 31 is presented below:

Revenue of reporting segments:

NEt PreMIUMS BAIMEM. ... c.viieiiiieitiiiesiee ettt sttt st e et e e beetesresaenen
Interest and dIVIAENUS ..........ooiiiiee et
Other revenue per reportable segment.
Net gains (losses) on investments
Total coNSOIIAAtEA FEVENUE .......ccuiiiiitiieeieee ettt be e
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Fourth quarter

Year ended December 31,

2009 2008 2009 2008
1,115.1 1,116.0 4,422.0 4,511.7
172.4 146.0 712.7 626.4
150.1 105.7 556.4 116.8
(30.3) 681.0 9445 2,570.7
14073 2,048.7 _6,635.6 7,825.6



15. US GAAP Reconciliation

The consolidated financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with Canadian GAAP, which differ in
some respects from those applicable in the United States, as described in note 20 on pages 75 to 80 of the company’s 2008 Annual

Report (updated as follows for the changes described below).

The following table presents the net earnings and the comprehensive income in accordance with US GAAP:

Net earnings, Canadian GAAP
Non-controlling interests........c.ccoevevvevveieiiesernnn.
Recoveries on retroactive reinsurance
Equity aCCOUNTING......ccoiiieieieieiceee e
Repurchase of subsidiary SECUNLIESY .............ccevevirueierieeece e,
Northbridge step aCqUISTIONS ............cvevreeireeeeie sttt
OdysseYRe Step aCUISTEION!" ..........cveviieeeeieeee ettt
OLher AITFEIENCES ..ottt sttt e sbe st e eneeneas
TAX BTFBCES 1.ttt

NEt €ArNINGS, US GAAP ... bbbttt se ettt ebeane s

Net earnings attributable to non-controlling interests, US GAAP ........cccoveeiiiiiiieiene e

Net earnings attributable to parent company, US GAAP ...t

Earnings per SNAre, US GAAP ...ttt ettt sttt e eneane

Earnings per diluted Share, US GAAP...........ov ittt ane

Other comprehensive income (10ss), Canadian GAAP..........ccoveiiiie i

Non-controlling iNterestS..........ccoeveereneneneieieenins

Northbridge step acquisitions"™ ...........c..cccoeevverrreerenn.

OdysseyRe step acquisition™ ............c..ccoeeerieeeerienans

Equity aCCOUNLING......ceiiieeicieecceere e

Pension liability adjustment..

TaX ffeCtS ...
Other comprehensive income (loss), US GAAP
Other comprehensive (income) loss attributable to non-controlling interests, US GAAP..........
Other comprehensive income (loss) attributable to parent company, US GAAP .........c.ccceeeee.

Net €arNINGS, US GAAP ...ttt b ettt be bbb et e e e e ereaneas
Other comprehensive income (loss), US GAAP
Comprehensive INCOME, US GAAP ...ttt e
Comprehensive (income) loss attributable to non-controlling interests, US GAAP...................
Comprehensive income attributable to parent company, US GAAP ...

Fourth guarter

Year ended December 31,

2009 2008 2009 2008
794 3468 856.8 1,473.8
38 14.9 133.9 214.9
37 10.7 14.9 308
10.7 (7.2) 36 (7.2)
03 — (16.9) —
2.7 — (1.9) —
17.0 — 17.0 —
— — — 8.8
(11.2) (2.7) (11.0) (9.6)
106.4 3625 996.4 17115
(2.8) (12.7) (136.1) (216.2)
103.6 349.8 860.3 1,495.3

$ 286 $ 1090 $ 4418 $ 8157
$ 285 $ 1979 $ 4395 $ 8071

(74.2) (90.4) 968.1 (468.3)
(1.9) (49.1) 106.2 (77.1)
(4.8) — (7.1) —
(18.3) — (18.3) —
145 — (3.7) —
(8.3) 321 (8.3) 321
2.1 (6.8) (3.8) (6.8)
(90.9)  (114.2) ~ 1,033.1 (520.1)
36 49.1 (104.5) 77.1
(87.3) (65.1) 928.6 (443.0)
106.4 3625 996.4 1,7115
(90.9) _ (114.2) _ 1,033.1 (520.1)
155 2483 2,029.5 1,191.4
08 36.4 (240.6) (139.1)
16.3 284.7 1,788.9 1,052.3

The following table presents the balance sheet amounts in accordance with US GAAP, setting out individual amounts where

different from the amounts reported under Canadian GAAP:

December 31, 2009

December 31, 2008

Canadian Canadian
GAAP__ Differences US GAAP GAAP Differences US GAAP
Assets
Holding company cash, short term investments and marketable securities .... 1,251.6 .7 1,249.9 1,564.2 — 1,564.2
Portfolio investments:
COMIMON SEOCKS ... iveie ittt ettt ettt e st e e st be e s s b e e e s ebbe e s sabe e e sebaaeesanes 4,853.1 (144.9) 4,708.2 3,816.9 (257.8) 3,559.1
Investments, at equity 475.4 124.8 600.2 219.3 251.9 471.2
All other portfolio investments..........c.ccoceveevininennne 14,750.1 — 14,750.1 14,378.8 — 14,378.8
FUture iNCOME taXeS......cvcvvvvieriiiie et 318.7 89.3 408.0 699.4 56.1 755.5
Goodwill and intangible assets"”"" 438.8 (265.4) 173.4 123.2 29.6 152.8
AL OTNEE @SSELS ...ttt e e s e e s bee e s sanas 6,315.1 — 6,315.1 6,503.6 — 6,503.6
28,402.8 (197.9) _28,204.9 _27,305.4 79.8 _27,385.2
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities...........ccocvvvviveieiiiciei e 1,202.2 130.8 1,333.0 1,326.5 152.0 1,478.5
All Other labIlItIES.......covv i 19.299.6 — 19,299.6 19,457.5 — 19,4575
20,501.8 130.8 20,632.6 _20,784.0 152.0 _20,936.0
Mandatorily redeemable shares of TRG.........cccceiviiininiice 164.4 — 164.4 169.8 — 169.8
Non-controlling iNterests™ ..o, 117.6 (117.6) — 1.382.8 (1,382.8) —
282.0 (117.6) 164.4 1,552.6 _(1,382.8) 169.8
EQUILY MUY ettt 7,619.0 (211.1) _ 74079 _ 49688 _ 13106 _ 6279.4
_28,402.8 (197.9) _28,204.9 _27,305.4 79.8 27,385.2
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The difference in consolidated shareholders’ equity was as follows:

December 31, 2009

December 31, 2008

Non - Non -
Parent controlling Parent controlling
Total company interests Total company interests
Shareholders’ equity based on Canadian GAAP ..........cccccevvveveieieiniecenn 7,619.0 7,619.0 — 4968.8 4,968.8 —
Non-controlling interests™ ............cccocevveeviererrrernn. 117.6 — 117.6 1,382.8 —  1,3828
Accumulated other comprehensive income (10SS) ..........ccccccevviinnniicinen (60.6) (58.9) @7 (19.4) (19.4) —
Cumulative reduction in retained earnings under US GAAP ...........cco..... (268.1) (268.1) — (52.8) (50.6) (2.2)
Equity based 0N US GAAP ... 7,407.9 7,292.0 115.9 6,279.4 _4,898.8 1,380.6
The difference in consolidated accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) was as follows:
December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Non - Non -
Parent  controlling Parent controlling
Total company interests Total company  __interests
Pension liability adjuStMENt ... (37.6) (35.1) (2.5) (29.3) (29.3) —
Northbridge step acquisitions'".... (7.1) (7.1) — — — —
OdysseyRe step acquisition™"...... (18.3) (18.3) — — — —
Equity accounting............ccc...... (3.7) (3.7) — — — —
Related deferred iINCOME tAXES......ccveviiriiirie e 6.1 5.3 _08 9.9 9.9 —
(60.6) (58.9) 1.7 (19.4) (19.4) =

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) relating to defined benefit pension and other post retirement

benefit plans consisted of:

December 31, 2009

December 31, 2008

Non - Non -
Parent  controlling Parent controlling
Total company _interests Total company  _ interests
NEt ACLUAMTAI 10SS ... (44.7) (41.6) (3.1) (34.3) (34.3) —
Prior service costs........ 35 2.9 0.6 3.7 3.7 —
Transitional amounts ... 3.6 3.6 i 1.3 1.3 —
TOUAL .t (37.6) (35.1) (2.5) 29.3 (29.3) —
The cumulative reduction in retained earnings under US GAAP was as follows:
December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Non - Non -
Parent  controlling Parent controlling
Total company interests Total company  __interests
Northbridge step aCqUISIIONS™...........coceveevereeeceeeeeesesee et (150.4)  (150.4) — — — —
OdysseyRe step acquisition™ .........cc..cooveerreirerenennnn, (78.1) (78.1) — — — —
Recoveries on retroactive reinsurance (69.2) (69.2) — (78.9) (78.9) —
EQUILY 8CCOUNTING.....c.viieiiieiiiieiteriee et (2.6) (2.6) — (6.1) (3.9) (2.2)
Purchase price allocation on the acquisition of TIG Re (now part of
OdySSEYRE) N 1999 ......iiiiciiiecie e 32.2 32.2 — 32.2 32.2 e
(2681) _(2681) @ — (528)  (506) (22

(i)  Under Canadian GAAP, the repurchase by OdysseyRe of its common shares during 2009 as described in note 5 was accounted for as a step
acquisition. Under US GAAP, pursuant to the adoption by the company on January 1, 2009 of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(““SFAS™) No. 160, Non-controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements — an amendment of ARB No. 51 (now known as Financial
Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification (““FASB ASC”) 810-10, Consolidation (““FASB ASC 810-10")) (described
below), changes in ownership interests of a subsidiary that do not result in a loss or acquisition of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. Under Canadian GAAP, the excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the cost of the acquisition is recognized in
consolidated net earnings. As a result, the gain of $16.9 recognized in connection with the repurchase of common shares by OdysseyRe under

Canadian GAAP was charged to cumulative reduction in retained earnings under US GAAP.

(i)  Under Canadian GAAP, the privatization of Northbridge was accounted for as two separate step acquisitions of the outstanding common
shares of Northbridge. Under US GAAP, pursuant to the adoption by the company on January 1, 2009 of FASB ASC 810-10, changes in
ownership interests of a subsidiary that do not result in a loss or acquisition of control are accounted for as equity transactions. Under
Canadian GAAP, the step acquisition accounting for the privatization of Northbridge recognized fair value adjustments to the assets and
liabilities acquired and goodwill (note 5). These fair value adjustments to assets and liabilities and goodwill are not recognized under US
GAAP. As a result, an amount of $147.9 was charged to the cumulative reduction in retained earnings under US GAAP representing the excess
of the cost of the acquisition of $546.4 over the carrying value of the non-controlling interest of $398.5. In addition, fair value adjustments of
$2.7 which decreased pre-tax net earnings and $4.8 which increased other comprehensive income under Canadian GAAP in the fourth quarter
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of 2009 are not recognized in comprehensive income under US GAAP. Fair value adjustments of $1.9 and $7.1 which increased pretax net
earnings and other comprehensive income under Canadian GAAP for the year ended December 31, 2009 are not recognized in comprehensive
income under US GAAP.

(iii) Under Canadian GAAP, the privatization of OdysseyRe was accounted for as a step acquisition of the outstanding common shares of
OdysseyRe. Under US GAAP, pursuant to the adoption by the company on January 1, 2009 of FASB ASC 810-10, changes in ownership
interests of a subsidiary that do not result in a loss or acquisition of control are accounted for as equity transactions. Under Canadian GAAP,
the step acquisition accounting for the privatization of OdysseyRe recognized fair value adjustments to the assets and liabilities acquired and
goodwill (note 5). These fair value adjustments to assets and liabilities and goodwill are not recognized under US GAAP. As a result, an
amount of $89.2 was charged to the cumulative reduction in retained earnings under US GAAP representing the excess of the cost of the
acquisition of $1,017.0 and liabilities assumed related to the amendment of OdysseyRe’s employee compensation plans of $22.4 over the
carrying value of the non-controlling interest of $950.2. In addition, fair value adjustments of $17.0 which decreased pretax net earnings and
$18.3 which increased pretax other comprehensive income under Canadian GAAP in the fourth quarter of 2009 and for the year ended
December 31, 2009 are not recognized in comprehensive income under US GAAP.

(iv) On January 1, 2009, the company adopted FASB ASC 810-10. FASB ASC 810-10 provides guidance on the treatment of a non-controlling
interest after acquisition in a business combination. This new standard requires: a non-controlling interest to be presented clearly in equity,
but separately from the parent’s equity; the amount of consolidated net income and other comprehensive income attributable to the parent and
to a non-controlling interest to be clearly identified and included in the consolidated statements of income and consolidated statements of other
comprehensive income respectively; and accounting for changes in ownership interests of a subsidiary that do not result in a loss or
acquisition of control as an equity transaction. In accordance with the transitional guidance, the company has applied FASB ASC 810-10 on a
prospective basis under US GAAP, except for the adjustment on a retroactive basis of net income and comprehensive income to include the
portion attributed to the non-controlling interests and the reclassification of the non-controlling interests to equity. Under Canadian GAAP,
non-controlling interests are excluded from shareholders’ equity and net earnings.

(v) OnJanuary 1, 2009, the company adopted SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), Business Combinations (now known as FASB ASC 805-10, Business
Combinations (““FASB ASC 805-10"")), which replaces SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations (““SFAS 141’). FASB ASC 805-10 retains the
fundamental requirements of SFAS 141 to identify an acquirer and to use the acquisition method of accounting for each business combination.
This new standard requires: measurement of share consideration issued at fair value at the acquisition date; recognition of contingent
consideration at fair value at the date of acquisition with subsequent changes in fair value generally reflected in net earnings; and the acquirer
to expense acquisition-related costs as incurred. A non-controlling interest must be measured at fair value. Under Canadian GAAP, a non-
controlling interest is recorded at the proportionate share of the carrying value of the acquiree. In accordance with the transitional guidance,
the company has applied FASB ASC 805-10 on a prospective basis under US GAAP.

Statements of Cash Flows

The following table presents the statements of cash flows in accordance with US GAAP, setting out individual amounts where
different from the amounts reported under Canadian GAAP:

Fourth guarter 2009 Year ended December 31, 2009
Canadian Canadian
GAAP Differences US GAAP. GAAP Differences US GAAP.

Operating activities
Cash provided by (used in) operating actiVities........cc.cocererieieiirienieinreienns (169.9) — (169.9) (719.2) — (719.2)

Investing activities

Purchases of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired” . (1,015.9) 1,015.9 — (1,6436) 11,6185 (25.1)

All other investing actiVities..........c.coceveivrveennnenn, . (1,031.1) — (1,031.1) 909.2 — 909.2
Cash provided by (used in) investing actiVities ...........ccocvveveriiisiesie e (2,047.0) _1,0159 _(1,031.1) _ (7344) _1,6185 884.1
Financing activities

Purchases of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired™...........cc.cccoeevrrvererrrrnnne. — (1,015.9) (1,015.9) — (1,6185) (1,618.5)

All other financing activities ..........c.ccoceeeveieieinnne. (39.8) — (39.8) 993.0 — 993

Cash provided by (used in) financing activities (39.8) _(1,015.9) _(1,055.7) 993.0 _(1,618.5) (625.'5)

Foreign currency translation............cccocveiiineiiieiesc e (14.8) — (14.8) 91.8 — 91.8
Increase (decrease) in cash and eqUIVAIENTS...........ccceovveieriericinece (2,271.5) —  (2,2715)  (368.8) — (368.8)
Cash and cash equivalents — beginning of period 4,428.4 — _44284 _2525.7 — 2525.7
Cash and cash equivalents — end of period...................... . 2,569 — _2156.9 _2,156.9 — 2,156.9

(i) Under Canadian GAAP, the privatizations of Northbridge, OdysseyRe and Advent were accounted for as investing activities. Under US GAAP,
pursuant to the adoption by the company on January 1, 2009 of FASB ASC 810-10, changes in ownership interests of a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss or acquisition of control are accounted for as equity transactions and presented in the statement of cash flows as a financing
activity. There were no significant differences on the consolidated statements of cash flows under US GAAP as compared to Canadian GAAP
for the fourth quarter and year ended December 31, 2008.
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Other accounting pronouncements adopted in 2009

On December 16, 2009, the company adopted FASB Staff Positions (“FSP”) FAS 132(R)-1, Employers’ Disclosures about
Postretirement Benefit Plan Assets (now known as FASB ASC 715-20, Retirement Benefits — Defined Benefit Plans (“FASB ASC
715-20)). FASB ASC 715-20 requires enhanced disclosures regarding the major categories of plan assets, concentrations of risk,
inputs and valuation techniques used to measure the fair value of plan assets and the effect of using unobservable inputs (Level 3
classification under FASB ASC 820-10). The adoption of FASB ASC 715-20 did not have any significant impact on the company’s
consolidated financial position and results of operations under US GAAP. Additional disclosures about pension plan assets and post
retirement benefit plan assets will be included in the company’s 2009 annual consolidated financial statements.

On October 1, 2009, the company adopted Accounting Standards Update No. 2009-05, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures
(Topic 820) — Measuring Liabilities at Fair Value (“ASU 2009-05"). The amendments in ASU 2009-05 provide clarification that, in
circumstances in which a quoted price in an active market for the identical liability is not available, a reporting entity is required to
measure fair value using another valuation technique that is consistent with the principles of Topic 820. Two examples which are
provided in Topic 820 would be an income approach, such as a present value technique, or a market approach, such as a technique that
is based on the amount at the measurement date that the reporting entity would pay to transfer the identical liability or would receive
to enter into the identical liability. ASU 2009-05 clarifies that when estimating the fair value of a liability, a reporting entity is not
required to include a separate input or adjustment to other inputs relating to the existence of a restriction that prevents the transfer of
the liability. ASU 2009-05 also clarifies that both a quoted price in an active market for the identical liability at the measurement date
and the quoted price for the identical liability when traded as an asset in an active market when no adjustments to the quoted price of
the asset are required are Level 1 fair value measurements. The adoption of ASU 2009-05 did not have any significant impact on the
company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations and disclosures under US GAAP.

In August 2009, the company adopted Accounting Standards Update No. 2009-04, Accounting for Redeemable Equity
Instruments, (“ASU 2009-04"). The amendments in ASU 2009-04 provide the SEC staff’s views on the accounting for redeemable
equity instruments. The adoption of ASU 2009-04 did not have any significant impact on the company’s financial position or results
of operations under US GAAP.

On July 1, 2009, the company adopted SFAS No. 168, the FASB Accounting Standards Codification and the Hierarchy of
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles — a replacement of FASB Statement No. 162 (“SFAS 168”) (now known as FASB ASC
105-10, Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“FASB ASC 105-107")). The Codification is officially the single source of
authoritative non-governmental US GAAP, superseding FASB, American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Emerging Issues
Task Force, and related accounting literature. Henceforth, only one level of authoritative GAAP exists: all other accounting literature
are considered non-authoritative. The Codification reorganizes the thousands of GAAP pronouncements into roughly 90 accounting
topics and displays them using a consistent structure. Also included in the Codification is relevant Securities and Exchange
Commission guidance organized using the same topical structure in separate sections within the Codification. As FASB ASC 105-10
is not intended to change or alter existing US GAAP, the adoption of FASB ASC 105-10 did not have any significant impact on the
company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations under US GAAP.

On April 1, 2009, the company adopted SFAS No. 165, Subsequent Events (now known as FASB ASC 855-10, Subsequent
Events (“FASB ASC 855-10")), which established the general standards of accounting for and disclosure of events that occur after the
balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued or available to be issued. FASB ASC 855-10 is effective for interim or
annual financial periods ending after June 15, 2009 and is applied prospectively. The company has evaluated subsequent events after
the balance sheet date of December 31, 2009 through February 18, 2010, the date the financial statements were issued. During this
period, the company did not identify any subsequent events requiring recognition or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements
other than the completion of a public offering of 8,000,000 Series E preferred shares for net proceeds of $183.1 (Cdn$195.3) as
described in note 6 and the offer to acquire all of the outstanding shares of Zenith common stock, other than those shares not already
held by Fairfax and its affiliates as described in note 5.

On April 1, 2009, the company adopted the following three FSPs issued on April 9, 2009, which are intended to provide
additional application guidance and enhance disclosures regarding fair value measurements and impairments of securities:

(i) FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2, Recognition and Presentation of Other Than Temporary Impairments (now known as FASB
ASC 320-10, Investments — Debt and Equity Securities (“FASB ASC 320-107)) amends the other than temporary
impairment guidance in US GAAP for debt securities to make the guidance more operational and to improve the
presentation and disclosure of other than temporary impairments on debt and equity securities in the financial statements.
The recognition provision within FASB ASC 320-10 applies only to debt securities that are other than temporarily impaired.
If the company intends to sell or it is more likely than not that it will be required to sell a security in an unrealized loss
position prior to recovery of its cost basis, the security is other than temporarily impaired and the full amount of the
impairment is recognized as a loss through earnings. If the company asserts that it does not intend to sell and it is more
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likely than not that it will not be required to sell an other than temporarily impaired security before recovery of its cost basis,
the impairment must be separated into credit and non-credit components with the credit portion of the other than temporary
impairment recognized as a loss through earnings and the non-credit portion recognized in other comprehensive income.
FASB ASC 320-10 is effective for interim and annual reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009. The adoption of FASB
ASC 320-10 effective April 1, 2009 did not affect the company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations
under US GAAP. FASB ASC 320-10 requires that the company record, as of the beginning of the interim period of
adoption, a cumulative effect adjustment to reclassify the non-credit component of a previously recognized other than
temporary impairment on debt securities which are still held as investments at the date of adoption from retained earnings to
accumulated other comprehensive income. The company reviewed other than temporary impairments it had previously
recorded through earnings on debt securities held at April 1, 2009 and determined that all of these other than temporary
impairments were related to specific credit losses, resulting in no cumulative effect adjustment to opening retained earnings
or accumulated other comprehensive income as of April 1, 2009.

(i) FSP FAS 157-4, Determining Fair Value When the Volume and Level of Activity for the Asset or Liability Have
Significantly Decreased and Identifying Transactions That Are Not Orderly (now known as FASB ASC 820-10, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures (“FASB ASC 820-10")) provides additional guidance on estimating the fair value of an asset
or liability when the volume and level of activity for the asset or liability have significantly decreased and on identifying
transactions that are not orderly. FASB ASC 820-10 is effective for interim and annual reporting periods ending after
June 15, 2009. The adoption of FASB ASC 820-10 effective April 1, 2009 did not have a material impact on the company’s
consolidated financial position or results of operations under US GAAP.

(iii) FSP FAS 107-1 and Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) 28-1, Interim Disclosures about Fair VValue Measurement, which
amends FASB Statement No. 107, Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments, and APB Opinion No. 28, Interim
Financial Reporting, (now known as FASB ASC 825-10, Financial Instruments (“FASB ASC 825-10™)) requires disclosures
about the fair value of financial instruments for interim reporting periods. FASB ASC 825-10 also requires companies to
disclose the methods and significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value of financial instruments in financial
statements on an interim basis and to describe any changes during the period. FASB ASC 825-10 is effective for interim and
annual reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009. The adoption of FASB ASC 825-10 effective April 1, 2009 did not
have a material impact on the company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations under US GAAP. The
company commenced disclosure of the fair value of its long term debt and other long term obligations in note 6 in its interim
financial reports.

On January 1, 2009, the company adopted FSP FAS 141(R)-1, Accounting for Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assumed in a
Business Combination that Arise from Contingencies (now known as FASB ASC 805-10, Business Combinations — Overall (“FASB
ASC 805-10") and FASB ASC 805-20, Business Combinations — Identifiable Assets and Liabilities, and Any Non-Controlling
Interests (“FASB ASC 805-207)), which amends the provisions related to the initial recognition and measurement, subsequent
measurement and disclosure of assets and liabilities arising from contingencies in a business combination. The adoption of FASB
ASC 805-10 and FASB ASC 805-20 on January 1, 2009 did not affect the company’s consolidated financial position or results of
operations under US GAAP.

On January 1, 2009, SFAS No. 161, Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities — an Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 133 (now known as FASB ASC 815-10, Derivatives and Hedging (“FASB 815-10")) became effective. The intent of
FASB 815-10 is to improve the financial reporting of derivative instruments and hedging activities by requiring enhanced disclosures
about (a) how and why an entity uses derivative instruments, (b) how derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted
for under FASB 815-10 and its related interpretations, and (c) how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity’s
financial position, financial performance and cash flows. FASB 815-10 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15,
2008. Since FASB 815-10 requires only additional disclosures concerning derivatives and hedging activities, the adoption of FASB
815-10 on January 1, 2009 did not have a material impact on the company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations
under US GAAP. The enhanced disclosures required by FASB 815-10 were included in note 18 of the consolidated financial
statements in the company’s 2008 Annual Report.

On January 1, 2009, the company adopted FSP APB 14-1, Accounting for Convertible Debt Instruments That May Be Settled in
Cash upon Conversion (Including Partial Cash Settlement) (now known as FASB ASC 470-20, Debt — Debt with Conversion and
Other Options (“FASB ASC 470-20"), FASB ASC 815-15, Derivatives and Hedging — Embedded Derivatives (“FASB ASC 815-15")
and FASB ASC 825-10, Financial Instruments (“FASB ASC 825-10")), and applied it on a retrospective basis to its 5.0% convertible
senior debentures due 2023. These debentures were converted by their holders into subordinate voting shares of the company on
February 13, 2008. With the adoption of this new guidance, Canadian GAAP and US GAAP are converged with respect to accounting
for convertible debt with options to settle partially or fully in cash. The application of this new guidance resulted in the elimination of
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the previous US GAAP adjustment, decreasing common stock under Canadian GAAP by $6.6 and with a corresponding increase in
the cumulative reduction of net earnings under US GAAP.

Recent accounting pronouncements

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 167, Amendments to FASB Interpretation No. 46(R) (now known as FASB ASC 810-
10, Consolidation), to replace the quantitative-based risks and rewards calculation for determining which enterprise has a controlling
financial interest in a variable interest entity with an approach focused on identifying which enterprise has (1) the power to direct the
activities of a variable interest entity that most significantly impact the entity’s economic performance and (2) the obligation to absorb
losses of the entity or the right to receive benefits from the entity. It also requires an additional reconsideration event when
determining whether an entity is a variable interest entity when any changes in fact and circumstances occur and ongoing assessments
of whether an enterprise is the primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity. Additional disclosures about an enterprise’s
involvement in variable interest entities are also required. FASB ASC 810-10 will be effective as of the beginning of the reporting
entity’s first annual reporting period that begins after November 15, 2009, for interim periods within that first annual reporting period
and for interim and annual reporting periods thereafter. The company is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of FASB ASC
810-10 on its consolidated financial position, results of operations and disclosures under US GAAP.

16. Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities

Changes in the company’s operating assets and liabilities in the consolidated statements of cash flows were comprised as follows:

Fourth quarter Year ended December 31,
2009 2008 2009 2008
ProviSion FOF ClAIMS.........cuiiiiiiiiie bbbt (326.4) (66.8) (661.3) 24.8
UNEAINEA PrEMIUMS....oviiiieiiietere ettt bbbttt eb e (163.2)  (177.2) (135.4) (200.0)
Accounts receivable and other 119.0 100.8 50.0 292.1
Recoverable from FeINSUEIS..........cvviiiieiiieeeecee e 291.3 20.6 514.7 582.5
Funds withheld payable tO FeINSUIETS ...........ciiiiiriieisec e (6.3) 4.1 (0.2) (25.6)
Accounts payable and accrued lHabilities.........ccooveiiiiiiiei e (19.0) (77.5) 125 (146.0)
INCOME TAXES PAYADIE ...t (74.2) 334.0 (579.4) 614.0
OB bbb 15.8 21.0 34.3 50.9
Change in operating assets and labilties .........c.cvoviiiiiieieie e (163.0) 159.0 (764.8) 1,192.7
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
(as of February 18, 2010) (Figures and amounts are in US$ and $ millions except per share amounts and as otherwise indicated.
Figures may not add due to rounding.)

This management’s discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with notes 1 and 2 to the consolidated financial
statements included herein and with the notes to the Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations for the year ended December 31, 2008 contained in the company’s 2008 Annual Report.

The combined ratio is the traditional measure of underwriting results of property and casualty insurance companies, but is
regarded as a non-GAAP measure. The combined ratio is calculated by the company as the sum of the loss ratio (claims losses and
loss adjustment expenses expressed as a percentage of net premiums earned) and the expense ratio (commissions, premium acquisition
costs and other underwriting expenses expressed as a percentage of net premiums earned).

Sources of Revenue

Revenues reflected in the consolidated financial statements for the fourth quarters and years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008
are shown in the table that follows (Other revenue comprises animal nutrition revenue earned by Ridley Inc. (“Ridley™)).

Fourth quarter Year ended December 31,
2009 2008 2009 2008
Net premiums earned
Insurance — Canada (Northbridge) .........ccccvvevvinciiciennns 256.4 239.2 969.2 1,076.1
—U.S. (Crum & FOrster).....cccoeivnerieinnerinnnnns 191.6 237.3 781.3 1,005.0
— Asia (Fairfax ASIa) .....ccccooeivvereennieneneennns 32.9 22.0 116.0 84.6
Reinsurance — OdySSEYRE ......cccovvevvveiiiineieie e, 483.0 504.0 1,927.4 2,076.4
— Other ..o 151.2 1135 628.1 269.6
RUNOFT <. — 6.3 — 17.4
1,115.1 1,122.3 4,422.0 4,529.1
Interest and dividendsS ..........cccoeviiiiiiiiie 172.4 146.0 712.7 626.4
Net gains (10Sses) on iNVESIMENtS ..........ccoevrereiiensenee (30.3) 681.0 944.5 2,570.7
Other FEVENUE.........eieieiieeeie et 150.1 99.4 556.4 99.4

1,407.3 2,048.7 _6,635.6 7,825.6

Revenue in the fourth quarter of 2009 decreased to $1,407.3 from $2,048.7 in the fourth quarter of 2008, principally as a result of
the significant year-over-year decline in net investment gains, partially offset by the inclusion of Polish Re and Ridley and increased
interest and dividends. Net premiums earned in the fourth quarter of 2009 decreased by 0.6% to $1,115.1 from $1,122.3 in the fourth
quarter of 2008, reflecting declines in net premiums earned by Crum & Forster and OdysseyRe, partially offset by increased net
premiums earned by Northbridge (increased in U.S. dollar terms, but decreased in Canadian dollars) and Fairfax Asia and as a result
of the inclusion of Polish Re. Gross premiums written and net premiums written increased in the fourth quarter of 2009 compared to
the fourth quarter of 2008, with increases at Northbridge (increased in U.S. dollar terms, but decreased in Canadian dollars), Fairfax
Asia and Other Reinsurance (due to the inclusion of Polish Re), insignificant changes at OdysseyRe, and decreases at Crum & Forster.
Consolidated net premiums written by the company’s insurance and reinsurance operations in the fourth quarter of 2009 increased
3.4% to $990.7 from $958.3 in the fourth quarter of 2008, reflecting the year-over-year increases at Northbridge ($10.9, or 4.6%, with
the increase principally attributable to currency translation), Fairfax Asia ($12.5, or 78.1%) and Other Reinsurance ($34.7, or 44.4%,
principally due to the inclusion of Polish Re), partially offset by decreases at Crum & Forster ($19.0, or 9.9%) and OdysseyRe ($6.7,
or 1.5%).

Revenue in the twelve months of 2009 decreased to $6,635.6 from $7,825.6 in the twelve months of 2008, principally as a result
of decreased net gains on investments and a 2.4% decline in net premiums earned, partially offset by the inclusion of Polish Re and
the entire year’s revenues of Advent, the increase in Other revenue relating to Ridley and a 13.8% increase in interest and dividends.
The decline in net premiums earned in the twelve months of 2009 reflected declines at Northbridge ($106.9, or 9.9%), Crum & Forster
($223.7, or 22.3%) and OdysseyRe ($149.0, or 7.2%), partially offset by increases at Fairfax Asia ($31.4, or 37.1%) and as a result of
the inclusion of Polish Re ($83.3) and the entire year’s premiums of Advent ($289.6, including $91.4 related to reinsurance-to-close
premiums). Consolidated gross premiums written in the twelve months of 2009 rose 0.6% relative to the prior year, primarily due to
the inclusion of Advent ($386.1, including $110.0 of reinsurance-to-close premiums in the first quarter) and Polish Re ($88.4). Overall
declines in net written and net earned premiums in the twelve months reflected the impact of economic and competitive conditions,
including the foreign currency translation effects of U.S. dollar appreciation year-over-year relative to other currencies, and were
partially offset by the inclusion of the net written and net earned premiums of Polish Re and of Advent for the entire year.

Interest and dividend income increased in the fourth quarter of 2009 relative to the fourth quarter of 2008 (by $26.4, or 18.1%),
primarily reflecting the impact of higher yielding municipal and other tax exempt debt securities and corporate bonds purchased in the
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fourth quarter of 2008 and in 2009 with the proceeds of sale of lower yielding government debt securities, as well as the inclusion of
the interest and dividend income of Polish Re. Interest income on a tax-equivalent basis increased significantly in the fourth quarter of
2009 compared to the fourth quarter of 2008 (tax advantaged bond holdings of $4,550.2 as at December 31, 2009 compared to
$4,104.6 as at December 31, 2008).

Interest and dividend income increased in 2009 relative to 2008 (by $86.3, or 13.8%), primarily reflecting the impact of higher
yielding municipal and other tax exempt debt securities and corporate bonds purchased in the fourth quarter of 2008 and in 2009 with
the proceeds of sale of lower yielding government debt securities, as well as the inclusion of the interest and dividend income of
Polish Re. Interest income on a tax-equivalent basis increased significantly in 2009 compared to 2008 (tax advantaged bond holdings
of $4,550.2 as at December 31, 2009 compared to $4,104.6 as at December 31, 2008).

Other revenue of $150.1 (2008 - $99.4) and $556.4 (2008 - $99.4) and other expenses of $142.0 (2008 - $98.0) and $544.0 (2008
- $98.0) for the fourth quarter and year ended December 31, 2009 respectively represent the revenue and the operating and other costs
respectively of Ridley.

Fourth Quarter and Twelve Months Results

The company’s sources of net earnings and combined ratios by business segment were as set out below for the fourth quarters and
years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008. Fourth quarter and twelve months of 2009 results include the results of operations of
Advent, Ridley and Polish Re and reflect the company’s 100% interest in Northbridge. In September 2008 the company commenced
consolidation of Advent following an increase in the company’s investment in Advent, and in November 2008 the company
commenced consolidation of Ridley following the acquisition of a 67.9% interest in Ridley, both as described in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements in the company’s 2008 Annual Report. On January 7, 2009, the company commenced consolidation
of Polish Re following the acquisition of a 100% interest in Polish Re, as described in note 5. The results for Polish Re are included in
the Reinsurance — Other business segment. In February 2009 the company completed the acquisition of the 36.4% of the outstanding
common shares of Northbridge not already owned by Fairfax, as described in note 5. During the fourth quarter of 2009 the company
completed the acquisition of the outstanding common shares of OdysseyRe and Advent not already owned by Fairfax, as described in
note 5.

Fourth quarter Year ended December 31,
2009 2008 2009 2008
Combined ratios
Insurance — Canada (Northbridge) .......ccocovvvieniiiienncese e 112.6% 109.4% 105.9% 103.5%
—U.S. (Crum & FOISIEr) ...cvvuiiiiiiiisiriesc e 106.9% 104.0% 104.1% 117.6%
— Asia (FairfaX ASIa) ....cccocvveverieieeieeerese e 85.3% 123.9% 82.6% 91.8%
ReiNSUrance — OdYSSEYRE ....c..ovvvveviririieieeeiesee e see st sre e ee e nae e 96.6% 94.3% 96.7% 101.3%
= Other e 101.5% 134.9% 98.1% 116.6%
(010 1Sl ] [T F= LT [P 102.4% 104.3% 99.8% 106.2%
Sources of net earnings
Underwriting
Insurance — Canada (Northbridge) ........c.cooeeiiiiiiennec e (32.2) (22.6) (57.1) (37.9)
—U.S. (Crum & FOISIEr) ...cuvvviiiiiiici e (13.3) (9.5) (32.0) (177.2)
— Asia (Fairfax ASIa) .......ccovvereiniieinesenee e 4.8 (5.3) 20.2 6.9
ReINSUrance — OAYSSEYRE .....ccoieieerieieiesieesie et 16.3 28.8 64.3 (27.7)
= Other e e (2.3) (39.8) 11.9 (45.0)
Underwriting profit (I0SS) ......ocvvveiiiiiiiiiisesesesee s (26.7) (48.4) 7.3 (280.9)
Interest and dIVIAENAS .....c.ooevveiiirieice e 129.6 122.1 557.0 476.1
OPErating INCOME. ... .ccueiiirieieeeeeee e ste e ste e e e et s sre e sne e e e enaenrens 102.9 73.7 564.3 195.2
Net gains (10SSes) 0N INVESIMENTS ......cvvivveiveeeieiere e (43.8) 308.7 668.0 1,381.8
RUNOTT ... (47.7) 72.8 31.2 392.6
ONEr™ ..o 8.1 1.4 12.4 1.4
INEEIESE EXPENSE. ..ttt e (49.3) (40.3) (166.3) (158.6)
Corporate overhead and Other ... 13.0 192.7 96.0 631.9
Pre-taX iNCOME (10SS) .....c.viveieiiriiieiinieieesi s (16.8) 609.0 1,205.6 2,444.3
INCOME TAXES ...vvevivieietisieiete sttt b e 100.0 (247.3) (214.9) (755.6)
NON-CONLrOIIING INTEIESES ...vovviviieeieiiie s (3.8) (14.9) (133.9) (214.9)
NEL BAIMINGS ...ttt ettt et ns 79.4 346.8 856.8 1,473.8

(1) Other comprises the pre-tax income before interest and other of the Ridley animal nutrition business for the three and twelve months ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008.
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The company’s insurance and reinsurance operations reported an underwriting loss of $26.7 in the fourth quarter of 2009
compared to an underwriting loss of $48.4 in the fourth quarter of 2008. The combined ratio of those operations in the fourth quarter
of 2009 was 102.4% compared to 104.3% in the fourth quarter of 2008, with Northbridge, Crum & Forster, Fairfax Asia, OdysseyRe
and Reinsurance — Other producing combined ratios of 112.6%, 106.9%, 85.3%, 96.6% and 101.5% respectively. Fourth quarter 2009
results included 1.3 combined ratio points ($14.5) of net adverse development of prior years’ reserves, principally at Group Re and
Northbridge, partially offset by net favourable development at Fairfax Asia and Crum & Forster. Catastrophe losses, net of
reinstatement premiums, included in the fourth quarter 2009 underwriting results represented 3.5 combined ratio points ($38.4)
primarily related to storm activity and flooding in Turkey and the Philippines, compared to 8.6 combined ratio points ($95.8) in the
fourth quarter of 2008 principally related to Hurricane Ike in the U.S.

In 2009, the company’s insurance and reinsurance operations generated an underwriting profit of $7.3 and a combined ratio of
99.8% compared to an underwriting loss of $280.9 and a combined ratio of 106.2% in 2008. Underwriting results in 2009 included the
benefit of 0.6 combined ratio points ($26.3) of net favourable development of prior years’ reserves principally at Crum & Forster,
Northbridge, OdysseyRe and Fairfax Asia, partially offset by net adverse development at Group Re and Advent. Underwriting results
in 2008 included the impact of a reinsurance commutation in the second quarter by Crum & Forster ($84.2 pre-tax, representing 1.9
combined ratio points of adverse prior years’ reserve development) and the settlement of an asbestos-related lawsuit in the first quarter
by Crum & Forster ($25.5 pre-tax, representing 0.6 of a combined ratio point of adverse prior years’ reserve development).
Underwriting results in 2008 included the benefit of 0.3 combined ratio points ($14.2) of net favourable development of prior years’
reserve development, comprised of the 2.4 combined ratio points of adverse reserve development resulting from the Crum & Forster
reinsurance commutation and lawsuit settlement, offset by 2.7 combined ratio points of otherwise net favourable reserve development
primarily at Crum & Forster, Northbridge and OdysseyRe. Catastrophe losses, principally related to storm activity in Europe and
severe weather in the U.S., contributed 3.8 combined ratio points ($165.6) to underwriting results in 2009, compared to the impact of
10.3 combined ratio points ($462.0) in the twelve months of 2008, primarily related to U.S. hurricanes, southern China snowstorms,
European windstorms, Australian floods and the China earthquake.

The company reported net earnings of $79.4 ($1.66 per share, $1.65 per diluted share) in the fourth quarter of 2009 compared to
net earnings of $346.8 ($19.73 per share, $19.62 per diluted share) in the fourth quarter of 2008. The year-over-year decrease in net
earnings was primarily attributable to net investment losses in the fourth quarter of 2009 compared to the significant net investment
gains in the fourth quarter of 2008, principally related to short equity and equity index total return swaps. Fourth quarter 2009 results
also included the effects of improved underwriting profit as a result of reduced catastrophe losses in 2009 (after the significant U.S.
hurricane losses in 2008), increased interest and dividend income, a decreased runoff operating loss, increased subsidiary corporate
overhead expenses, and the benefit of a $100.0 corporate income tax recovery. Net losses on investments of $30.3 in the fourth quarter
of 2009 were primarily related to $108.2 of net losses on bonds, $14.6 of net losses on credit default swaps and other derivatives and
$8.6 of other than temporary impairments recorded on common stocks and bonds, partially offset by $81.7 of net gains on common
stocks and equity derivatives and $23.2 of net gains on preferred stocks. Net gains on investments of $681.0 in the fourth quarter of
2008 included $1,034.8 of net gains on common stocks and equity derivatives, $271.4 of net gains on bonds and $56.7 of net gains
related to credit default swaps and other derivatives, partially offset by $627.4 of other than temporary impairments recorded on
common stocks and bonds and $59.7 of net losses related to foreign currency.

In 2009, net earnings were $856.8 ($43.99 per share, $43.75 per diluted share) compared to $1,473.8 ($80.38 per share, $79.53
per diluted share) in 2008. Net earnings in 2009 reflected improved underwriting profit as a result of reduced catastrophe losses in
2009 (after the significant U.S. hurricane losses in 2008), increased interest and dividend income and net gains on investments of
$944.5 (including $937.9 of net gains on bonds, $463.3 of net gains on common stocks and equity derivatives and $26.6 of net gains
on preferred stocks, partially offset by $340.0 of other than temporary impairments recorded on common stocks and bonds, $147.2 of
net losses related to credit default swaps and other derivatives, and $17.6 of net losses related to foreign currency) compared to net
gains on investments of $2,570.7 in 2008 (including $2,096.8 of net gains on common stocks and equity derivatives, $1,305.7 of net
gains related to credit default swaps and other derivatives and $218.9 of net gains on bonds, partially offset by $1,011.8 of other than
temporary impairments recorded on common stocks and bonds and $45.4 of net losses related to foreign currency).

Primarily as a result of the company’s third quarter equity issuance, net earnings and the effect on accumulated other
comprehensive income of a net increase in unrealized gains on available for sale securities, common shareholders’ equity at
December 31, 2009 increased to $7,391.8 or $369.80 per basic share from $278.28 per basic share at the end of 2008, representing an
increase per basic share in 2009 of 32.9% (without adjustment for the $8.00 per common share dividend paid in the first quarter of
20009, or 35.4% adjusted to include that dividend).

Operating expenses in the fourth quarter of 2009 in the consolidated statement of earnings include only the operating expenses of
the company’s insurance, reinsurance and runoff operations and corporate overhead. Operating expenses in the fourth quarter of 2009
included the operating expenses of Polish Re (which was not included in the fourth quarter of 2008). The $3.0 increase in fourth
quarter 2009 operating expenses (after excluding fourth quarter 2009 Polish Re operating expenses) related primarily to increased
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expenses at Northbridge and expenses related to the privatization transactions at OdysseyRe and Advent, partially offset by decreased
operating expenses at Crum & Forster and Runoff.

Operating expenses in 2009 in the consolidated statement of earnings include only the operating expenses of the company’s
insurance, reinsurance and runoff operations and corporate overhead. Operating expenses in 2009 included the operating expenses of
Advent (which was not included in the first eight months of 2008) and Polish Re (which was not included in 2008). The $25.8
decrease in 2009 operating expenses (after excluding the operating expenses for the first eight months of 2009 for Advent and for
2009 for Polish Re) related primarily to reduced corporate overhead expenses at Fairfax (primarily reduced legal expenses and
technology costs) and decreased operating expenses at Northbridge, Crum & Forster and Runoff, partially offset by increased
privatization-related corporate overhead expenses at OdysseyRe.

Net Earnings by Business Segment

The company’s sources of net earnings shown by business segment were as set out below for the fourth quarters and years ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008. The intercompany adjustment for gross premiums written eliminates premiums on reinsurance ceded
within the group, primarily to OdysseyRe, nSpire Re and Group Re. The intercompany adjustment for net gains on investments
eliminates gains or losses on purchase and sale transactions within the consolidated group.

Quarter ended December 31, 2009

Crum & Fairfax Other Ongoing Corporate &
Northbridge Forster Asia OdysseyRe Reinsurance _Operations Runoff Other® Intercompany Other Consolidated

Gross premiums written............. 328.6 2105 717 497.8 1132 12218 (0.5) — (55.6) — 1,165.7
Net premiums written ...... 245.8 172.6 285 431.0 112.8 990.7 (0.2 — — — 990.5
Net premiums earned....... 256.4 1916 329 483.0 151.2 1,115.1 — — — — 1,115.1
Underwriting profit (loss) (32.2) (13.3) 4.8 16.3 (2.3) (26.7) — — — —_ (26.7)
Interest and dividends................ 28.5 23.9 (5.3) 71.7 10.8 129.6 — — — — 129.6
Operating income (loss)

before: ... 8.7) 10.6 (0.5) 88.0 8.5 102.9 — — — — 102.9
Net gains (losses) on

INVESEMENtS ....c.cevvririicene (6.0) (4.0 1.4 (26.5) (7.6) (42.7) (7.8) — (1.1) — (51.6)
Runoff operating loss... — — — — — —  (39.9) — — — (39.9)
Other™........coovvveennne. — — — — — — — 8.1 — — 8.1
Interest eXpPense........coovvererenne — (7.0) — (7.5) (1.2) (15.7) — (0.2) — (33.4) (49.3)
Corporate overhead and other.... (5.5) — _03 (5.2) (6.0) (16.4) — — — 29.4 13.0
Pre-tax income (10SS) ................. (15.2) (0.4) 1.2 48.8 (6.3) 28.1  (47.7) 79 (1.1) (4.0) (16.8)
Income taxes .......ccoeeuenne. 100.0
Non-controlling interests . (3.8)
Net earnings .......cccoveeeverererenennns 79.4
Quarter ended December 31, 2008

Crum & Fairfax Other Ongoing Corporate &
Northbridge Forster Asia OdysseyRe Reinsurance Operations Runoff Other® Intercompany Other Consolidated

Gross premiums written............. 3134 225.7 585 494.0 95.1 1,186.7 6.9 - (43.9) — 1,149.7
Net premiums written ...... 234.9 191.6 16.0 437.7 78.1 958.3 5.9 - — — 964.2
Net premiums earned....... 239.2 237.3 22.0 504.0 1135 1,116.0 6.3 - — — 1,122.3
Underwriting profit (loss) (22.6) (9.5) (5.3) 28.8 (39.8) (48.4) — — — — (48.4)
Interest and dividends................. 22.6 29.3 (2.4) 62.5 10.1 122.1 — - — — 122.1
Operating income (loss)

(011 0] (TR — 19.8 7.7) 91.3 (29.7) 73.7 — — — — 73.7
Net gains (losses) on

INVEStMENtS.....ccoovvvvveeeeies (56.3) 194.9 4.8 157.8 22.6 3238 164.4 — (15.1) — 473.1
Runoff operating loss................. — — — — — — (91.6) — — — (91.6)
Other®.........ccveeunee. — — — — — — — 14 — — 14
Interest expense — (7.0) — (8.4) (2.2) (17.6) — (0.4) — (22.3) (40.3)
Corporate overhead and other.... (2.9) (4.6) _(2.8) (2.7) (1.3) (14.3) — e — 207.0 192.7
Pre-tax income (10SS) .......c.c....... (59.2) 203.1 (5.7) 238.0 (10.6) 365.6 728 1.0 (15.1) 184.7 609.0
Income taxes .......c.c.ceevee. (247.3)
Non-controlling interests . (14.9)
Net earnings .......cccoeeeererrnnenns 346.8
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Year ended December 31, 2009

Crum & Fairfax Other Ongoing Corporate &
Northbridge Forster Asia OdysseyRe Reinsurance Operations Runoff Other® Intercompany Other Consolidated

Gross premiums written............. 1,250.5 863.8 285.8 2,195.0 688.3 5,283.4 11 — (190.5) — 5,094.0
Net premiums written ................ 928.7 7164 1279 1,893.8 619.8 4,286.6 (0.5 — — — 4,286.1
Net premiums earned....... 969.2 781.3 116.0 19274 628.1 4,422.0 — — — — 4422.0
Underwriting profit (loss) (57.1) (32.0) 20.2 64.3 11.9 73 — — — — 7.3
Interest and dividends...... 113.0 113.9 9.0 283.6 37.5 557.0 — — — — 557.0
Operating income before: .......... 55.9 819 29.2 347.9 494 564.3 — — — — 564.3
Net gains (losses) on

investments............. 94.4 2291  17.8 353.6 (25.8) 669.1 129.2 — (1.1) — 797.2
Runoff operating loss... — — — — — — (98.0) — — — (98.0)
Other®........oovvvrnnrenn. — — — — — — — 124 — — 12.4
Interest eXpPense........coovvercnenne — (27.8) — (31.0) (5.1) (63.9) — (1.0 — (101.4) (166.3)
Corporate overhead and other.... (19.8) (3.3) _(2.3) (25.8) (13.1) (64.3) — — — 160.3 96.0
Pre-tax income (10SS) .........c....... 130.5 279.9 447 644.7 5.4 1,105.2 31.2 114 (1.1) 58.9 1,205.6
Income taxes .........c.cceeee. (214.9)
Non-controlling interests . (133.9)
Net earnings .......cccoveeeverererenennns 856.8
Year ended December 31, 2008

Crum & Fairfax Other Ongoing Corporate &
Northbridge Forster Asia OdysseyRe Reinsurance  _ Operations Runoff Other® Intercompany Other Consolidated

Gross premiums written............. 1452.1 1,019.6 227.0 2,294.5 245.8 5,239.0 12.6 — (190.2) — 5,061.4
Net premiums written .. 1,099.5 878.2 86.5 2,030.8 226.1 4321.1 111 — — — 4,332.2
Net premiums earned....... 1,076.1 1,005.0 84.6 2,076.4 269.6 4511.7 17.4 — — — 4,529.1
Underwriting profit (loss) (37.9) (177.2) 6.9 (27.7) (45.0) (280.9) — — — — (280.9)
Interest and dividends................ 107.9 86.2 1.6 250.3 30.1 476.1 — — — — 476.1
Operating income (loss)

DEfOre:. ..o 70.0 (91.0) 8.5 222.6 (14.9) 195.2 — — — — 195.2
Net gains (losses) on

INVEStMENtS......coovovevveeeiien, 25.7 605.7 3.0 740.1 28.1 1,402.6  499.8 — (20.8) — 1,881.6
Runoff operating loss... — — — — — — (107.2) — — — (107.2)
Other®.........cooovvirnnn. — — — — — — — 1.4 — — 1.4
Interest eXPense.......ccovevvereeeeenens — (28.3) — (34.2) (2.6) (65.1) — (0.4) — (93.1) (158.6)
Corporate overhead and other.... (14.5) (8.8) (5.5) (13.9) (1.9) (44.6) — — — 676.5 631.9
Pre-tax income (10SS) .......c.co..... 81.2 477.6 6.0 914.6 8.7 1,488.1 392.6 1.0 (20.8) 583.4 2,444.3
INCOME taXES ...ovvvveveriiiirieieiine (755.6)
Non-controlling interests . (214.9)
Net earnings .......ccovvveveerererennenns 1,473.8

(1) Other comprises the pre-tax income of the Ridley animal nutrition business.
Underwriting and Operating Income

Set out and discussed below are the underwriting and operating results of Fairfax’s insurance and reinsurance operations on a
company-by-company basis for the fourth quarters and years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.

Canadian Insurance — Northbridge

Fourth guarter Year ended December 31,
2009 2008 2009 2008
Underwriting profit (10SS)........cccoveviviicieniiieisciessee e (32.2) (22.6) (57.1) (37.9)
CombINed ratio .......ccooeiiiiirie e 112.6% 109.4% 105.9% 103.5%
Gross Premiums WELEN .....ccveeeeeercc e 328.6 313.4 1,250.5 1,452.1
Net Premiums WITEEN ......oovoiiiiiiiiiee s 245.8 234.9 928.7 1,099.5
Net Premiums €arNEd ..........covvirieiiiieiiie s 256.4 239.2 969.2 1,076.1
Underwriting profit (I0SS) .......ccoevviiriiiiniieeece s (32.2) (22.6) (57.1) (37.9)
Interest and diVIAENdS ..........ccooeiiiiiieier e 28.5 22.6 113.0 107.9
Operating income (10SS)............c.... (3.7 — 55.9 70.0
Net gains (losses) on investments (6.0) (56.3) 944 25.7
Pre-tax income (loss) before interest and other............c..cccceevevenee. (9.7 (56.3) 150.3 95.7

Northbridge’s underwriting performance in the fourth quarter of 2009 produced an underwriting loss of $32.2 and a combined
ratio of 112.6%, compared to an underwriting loss of $22.6 and a combined ratio of 109.4% in the fourth quarter of 2008.
Underwriting results in the 2009 fiscal year deteriorated relative to the results in 2008, with an underwriting loss of $57.1 and a
combined ratio of 105.9% compared to an underwriting loss of $37.9 and a combined ratio of 103.5% in 2008. Results in the twelve
months of 2008 included net losses of $25.2 related to Hurricane Ike. Northbridge’s fourth quarter 2009 underwriting results generally
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reflected the continuing weakness in commercial lines pricing and market conditions and the impact of economic conditions on
Northbridge’s insured customers, and specifically included the impact of several large incurred losses in its small-to-medium account
and trucking segments. Northbridge’s combined ratio for the fourth quarter of 2009 was adversely affected by a year-over-year
deterioration in its expense ratio (28.3% in the fourth quarter of 2009, compared to 25.0% in the fourth quarter of 2008), as a result of
a 7.0% decline in net premiums earned relative to a 2.6% decline in general operating expenses in Canadian dollar terms.
Northbridge’s reported combined ratio for the twelve months of 2009 was similarly adversely affected, with a year-over-year increase
in its expense ratio to 30.2% in 2009 from 28.3% in 2008, as a result of a 3.6% decline in net premiums earned and a 2.1% increase in
general operating expenses in Canadian dollar terms.

Fourth quarter 2009 underwriting results included 5.2 combined ratio points ($13.4) of net adverse development of prior years’
reserves, principally attributable to net adverse development of casualty and commercial auto liability claims and the impact on loss
reserves of the imposition of an additional sales tax in certain Canadian provinces, partially offset by net favourable development of
non-marine energy and Canadian casualty reserves in its large account segment, U.S. third party liability reserves in its transportation
segment, and general liability reserves in its small-to-medium account segment. Underwriting results in the fourth quarter of 2008
included 10.1 combined ratio points ($24.2) of net favourable development of prior years’ reserves, primarily related to better than
expected development across most lines of business on the most recent accident years, partially offset by adverse development on pre-
2003 casualty claims.

Underwriting results in 2009 included 1.5 combined ratio points ($14.1) of net favourable development of prior years’ reserves,
principally attributable to net favourable development of non-marine energy reserves in its large account segment, U.S. third party
liability reserves in its transportation segment, and across most lines and accident years in its small-to-medium account segment,
partially offset by adverse development of pre-2003 casualty and commercial auto liability claims and the impact on loss reserves of
the imposition of an additional sales tax in certain Canadian provinces, compared to 5.9 combined ratio points ($63.3) of net
favourable development of prior years’ reserves in 2008, principally attributable to better than expected development across most lines
of business for the most recent accident years.

Catastrophe losses, primarily related to wind and flood activity, added 1.1 combined ratio points ($2.9) to fourth quarter 2009
underwriting results and 1.3 combined ratio points ($13.1) in the twelve months of 2009. Catastrophe losses, primarily related to wind
and hail storms, added 0.9 combined ratio points ($2.2) to fourth quarter 2008 underwriting results and 3.4 combined ratio points
($36.2, including $25.2 related to Hurricane Ike) in the twelve months of 2008.

The impact of economic conditions on Northbridge’s insured customers, Northbridge’s disciplined response to the soft
underwriting market conditions and increased competition for new and renewal business contributed to a decline in gross premiums
written during the fourth quarter and the twelve months of 2009 in Canadian dollar terms compared to the fourth quarter and the
twelve months of 2008 of 9.5% and 7.8% respectively. Net premiums written decreased by 9.7% in the fourth quarter and 9.6% in the
twelve months of 2009 in Canadian dollar terms.

Net losses on investments in the fourth quarter of 2009 of $6.0 (compared to net losses of $56.3 in the fourth quarter of
2008) included $26.0 of net losses related to foreign currency and $6.0 of net losses on common stocks and equity derivatives,
partially offset by $24.0 of net gains on bonds and $5.4 of net gains on preferred stocks. Net losses on investments of $56.3 in the
fourth quarter of 2008 included $146.4 of other than temporary impairments recorded on common stocks and bonds, $63.3 of net
losses on bonds and $15.0 of net losses related to credit default swaps, partially offset by $129.4 of net gains on common stocks and
equity derivatives and $39.0 of net gains related to foreign currency.

Net gains on investments in 2009 of $94.4 (compared to net gains of $25.7 in 2008) included $142.2 of net gains on bonds, $28.9
of net gains on common stocks and equity derivatives and $8.9 of net gains on preferred stocks, partially offset by $54.1 of other than
temporary impairments recorded principally on common stocks and bonds and $33.1 of net losses related to foreign currency. Net
gains on investments of $25.7 in 2008 included $250.2 of net gains on common stocks and equity derivatives, $132.7 of net gains
related to credit default swaps and $26.8 of net gains related to foreign currency, partially offset by $279.0 of other than temporary
impairments recorded on common stocks and bonds and $104.9 of net losses on bonds.

A year-over-year increase in interest and dividends in the fourth quarter, primarily as a result of increased bond yields, and a
decline in net investment losses, partially offset by the decline in underwriting results, produced a pre-tax loss before interest and other
of $9.7 in the fourth quarter of 2009, compared to a pre-tax loss before interest and other of $56.3 in the fourth quarter of 2008. The
impact of increased net gains on investments and interest and dividends, partially offset by the deterioration in underwriting results,
contributed to increased pre-tax income before interest and other of $150.3 in 2009, compared to pre-tax income before interest and
other of $95.7 in 2008.

Northbridge’s cash resources in the fourth quarter of 2009 decreased by $94.2, compared to a decrease of $89.5 in the fourth

quarter of 2008, primarily as a result of cash of $72.9 used in investing activities in the fourth quarter of 2009 ($10.3 of cash provided
in the fourth quarter of 2008). Cash used in operating activities in the fourth quarter of 2009 was $17.3 compared to $15.8 in the
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fourth quarter of 2008. Cash used in financing activities in the fourth quarter of 2009 declined to $4.0 compared to $33.2 used in the
fourth quarter of 2008, primarily for repurchases by Northbridge of its common shares.

Northbridge’s cash resources decreased by $75.6 in 2009, compared to a decline of $230.1 in 2008. Cash used in operating
activities in 2009 was $80.6 compared to cash provided by operating activities of $144.0 in 2008, with the change primarily due to
reduced underwriting cash flows. Cash provided by investing activities was $100.4 in 2009 compared to cash used of $192.0 in 2008,
reflecting greater cash used in 2008 to close certain equity index short positions, as during the second quarter of 2008 the company
changed its approach to hedging by substituting equity index total return swaps for short sales. Increased cash used in financing
activities in 2009 of $155.2 compared to $94.5 used in 2008 primarily reflected the share redemption by Northbridge in 2009 related
to the completion of the going private transaction as described in note 5.

U.S. Insurance — Crum & Forster”

Fourth quarter Year ended December 31,
2009 2008 2009 2008

Underwriting profit (10SS)........ccoveivireiinieinseensee e (13.3) (9.5) (32.0) (177.2)
CoMDBINEd FALIO ..o 106.9% 104.0% 104.1% 117.6%
GroSS PremiumS WITEEEN .......c.viireeiiiiriesieiees e 210.5 225.7 863.8 1,019.6
Net Premiums WITEEN ......oovviiiiiiiiieee s 172.6 191.6 716.4 878.2
Net Premiums €arNed ..........covvireiiiieireneese s 191.6 237.3 781.3 1,005.0
Underwriting profit (10SS) ......cvcveiverierevine e (13.3) (9.5) (32.0) (177.2)
Interest and diVIAENAS ........ccoveiiereiineee e 23.9 29.3 113.9 86.2
Operating iNCOME (10SS) ....cvivvrerieirierieiserieese e 10.6 19.8 81.9 (91.0)
Net gains (10sses) 0N iNVESIMENLS .........coovvvriiiireiieee e (4.0) 194.9 229.1 605.7
Pre-tax income before interest and other ...........ccccooeiiieiiiiiens 6.6 214.7 311.0 514.7

(1) These results differ from those published by Crum & Forster Holdings Corp. primarily due to differences between Canadian and US GAAP.

Crum & Forster reported an underwriting loss of $13.3 and a combined ratio of 106.9% in the fourth quarter of 2009, generally
reflecting the impact of the weak U.S. economy, the continuing challenging conditions in commercial lines markets, and underwriting
actions undertaken by the company. Competitive market conditions and underwriting actions by the company had similarly
contributed to unfavourable underwriting results for Crum & Forster in the fourth quarter of 2008, and produced an underwriting loss
of $9.5 and a combined ratio of 104.0%. Crum & Forster’s combined ratio for the fourth quarter of 2009 was adversely affected by a
year-over-year deterioration in its expense ratio (34.6% in the fourth quarter of 2009, compared to 30.3% in the fourth quarter of
2008) as a result of the 19.3% decline in net premiums earned relative to a 1.6% decline in underwriting operating expenses ($37.7 in
the fourth quarter of 2009, compared to $38.3 in the fourth quarter of 2008). Fourth quarter 2009 underwriting results included the
benefit of 3.9 combined ratio points ($7.4) of net favourable development of prior years’ reserves, principally related to favourable
emergence in workers’ compensation and specialty lines, partially offset by adverse emergence in latent claims. Fourth quarter 2008
results included 0.8 of a combined ratio point ($1.9) of net adverse prior years’ reserve development in latent claims and general
liability lines, partially offset by net favourable development in workers’ compensation. Catastrophe losses of $4.9, primarily related
to storm activity in the U.S. northeast, added 2.6 combined ratio points to the fourth quarter of 2009 underwriting results, compared to
$1.1 and 0.5 of a combined ratio point in the fourth quarter of 2008, primarily related to Hurricanes Ike and Gustav.

Crum & Forster reported an underwriting loss of $32.0 and a combined ratio of 104.1% in 2009 compared to an underwriting loss
of $177.2 and a combined ratio of 117.6% in 2008 (including the impact of $74.3 of catastrophe losses attributable to Hurricanes Ike
and Gustav, an $84.2 charge related to a second quarter reinsurance commutation and the $25.5 impact of a settlement of an asbestos-
related lawsuit in the first quarter of 2008). The results in 2009 generally reflected the impact of the weak U.S. economy, the
continuing challenging conditions in commercial lines markets, and underwriting actions taken by the company. Crum & Forster’s
combined ratio for the year was adversely affected by a year-over-year deterioration in its expense ratio (34.9% in 2009, compared to
31.8% in 2008) as a result of the 22.3% decline in net premiums earned relative to a 5.8% decline in underwriting operating expenses
($158.4 in 2009, compared to $168.1 in 2008). The underwriting results in 2009 included the benefit of 3.2 combined ratio points
($25.0) of net favourable development of prior years’ reserves, principally related to favourable emergence in specialty lines and
workers’ compensation, partially offset by adverse emergence in commercial auto and latent claims. Included in the $59.0 of net
adverse prior years’ reserve development in underwriting results in 2008 were the unfavourable impacts of the reinsurance
commutation ($84.2 or 8.4 combined ratio points) and the lawsuit settlement ($25.5 or 2.5 combined ratio points), partially offset by
otherwise net favourable prior years’ reserve development of 5.0 combined ratio points ($50.7), related primarily to workers’
compensation, umbrella and specialty lines. Reduced catastrophe losses of $11.6 added 1.5 combined ratio points to the 2009
underwriting results compared to $93.7 and 9.3 combined ratio points in 2008 (primarily related to Hurricanes Ike and Gustav).

The impact of the weak U.S.economy and Crum & Forster’s continuing disciplined response to the challenging market

conditions, including increasing competition for new and renewal business and declining pricing, contributed to year-over-year
declines in gross premiums written and net premiums written in most lines of business (standard commercial property, general liability
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and commercial automobile lines, in particular), partially offset by growth in accident and health and certain specialty lines, resulting
in overall decreases in gross premiums written and net premiums written of 6.7% and 9.9% respectively for the fourth quarter of 2009
compared to the fourth quarter of 2008. Net premiums earned decreased by 19.3% in the fourth quarter of 2009 compared to the fourth
quarter of 2008. Reflecting the above mentioned factors, gross premiums written and net premiums written declined by 15.3% and
18.4% respectively in 2009 compared to 2008. Net premiums earned decreased by 22.3% in 2009 compared to 2008.

During the fourth quarter of 2009 Crum & Forster recorded net losses on investments of $4.0 (including $19.3 of net losses on
bonds and $4.9 of other than temporary impairments recorded on common stocks and bonds, partially offset by $20.8 of net gains on
common stocks and equity derivatives) compared to $194.9 of net gains on investments in the fourth quarter of 2008 (including
$192.1 of net gains on common stocks and equity derivatives, $110.4 of net gains on bonds and $12.2 of net gains related to credit
default swaps and other derivatives, partially offset by $118.8 of other than temporary impairments recorded on common stocks and
bonds). The year-over-year deterioration in underwriting results, decreased interest and dividend income and significantly lower net
investment gains reduced Crum & Forster’s pre-tax income before interest and other to $6.6 in the fourth quarter of 2009 from $214.7
in the fourth quarter of 2008.

Crum & Forster recorded significantly lower net gains on investments of $229.1 in 2009 (including $240.6 of net gains on bonds
and $106.2 of net gains on common stocks and equity derivatives, partially offset by $106.1 of other than temporary impairments
recorded on common stocks and bonds, $9.8 of net losses related to credit default swaps and other derivatives, and $4.3 of net losses
related to foreign currency) compared to $605.7 of net gains on investments in 2008 (including $418.0 of net gains on common stocks
and equity derivatives, $289.1 of net gains related to credit default swaps and other derivatives and $95.6 of net gains on bonds,
partially offset by $198.0 of other than temporary impairments recorded on common stocks and bonds). The significant year-over-year
decline in net investment gains was partially offset by improved underwriting results and higher interest and dividends, and
contributed to decreased pre-tax income before interest and other of $311.0 in 2009 compared to $514.7 in 2008.

Lower premium collections related to declining written premiums continued to adversely affect Crum & Forster’s operating cash
flow in the fourth quarter. Cash used in operating activities in the fourth quarter of 2009 was $92.9 compared to cash used in operating
activities of $164.9 in the fourth quarter of 2008. Cash provided by investing activities of $21.0 in the fourth quarter of 2009
compared to $110.4 of cash provided by investing activities in the fourth quarter of 2008, with the year-over-year change primarily
reflecting decreased net sales of securities to fund the reduced negative operating cash flow. Cash used in financing activities in the
fourth quarter of 2009 comprised $15.0 of dividends paid to Fairfax, compared to $205.2 used in the fourth quarter of 2008 (primarily
increased dividends to Fairfax). As a result, Crum & Forster’s cash resources in the fourth quarter of 2009 decreased by $86.9,
compared to a decrease of $259.7 in the fourth quarter of 2008.

Crum & Forster’s cash resources increased by $79.3 in 2009, compared to a $718.2 decline in 2008. Cash used in operating
activities in 2009 was $402.4 compared to cash provided by operations of $100.9 in 2008, with the year-over-year change primarily
attributable to lower premium collections related to the decline in premiums written, higher income tax payments and steady or only
modestly declining outlays for paid losses, ceded reinsurance costs and fixed operating expenses in 2009 and the impact of the $302.5
cash proceeds of the reinsurance commutation received in 2008. Cash provided by investing activities during 2009 was $596.7
compared to $479.6 of cash used in 2008 (which included $642.1 used to close certain equity index short positions, as during the
second quarter of 2008 the company changed its approach to equity hedging by substituting equity total return swaps for short sales).
Cash used in financing activities of $115.0 in 2009 and $339.5 in 2008 primarily related to dividends paid to Fairfax.

For more information on Crum & Forster’s results, please see its annual report on Form 10-K which will be posted on its website
at www.cfins.com.

Fairfax Asia
Fourth quarter Year ended December 31,

2009 2008 2009 2008
Underwriting profit (I0SS)........ccccoeviviiiiiniiieisciessee e 4.8 (5.3) 20.2 6.9
CombINed ratio .......ccoiviiieree e 85.3% 123.9% 82.6% 91.8%
Gross Premiums WELEN .....ccvceeeeiece s 71.7 58.5 285.8 227.0
Net Premiums WITEEN ......oovviiiiiiiiiece s 28.5 16.0 127.9 86.5
Net Premiums €arNEd ..........covvirveiiireisinese s 32.9 22.0 116.0 84.6
Underwriting profit (I0SS) .......cooevviiriininiireeecese s 4.8 (5.3) 20.2 6.9
Interest and diVidends ...........coovriiiiiiiinc e (5.3) (2.4) 9.0 1.6
Operating iNCOME (10SS) ......vevivirireiirieisirieee e (0.5) (7.7) 29.2 8.5
Net gains 0N INVESIMENTS .......cccovrviiiirieiseece s 1.4 4.8 17.8 3.0
Pre-tax income (loss) before interest and other............c..ccoceeveuenee. 0.9 (2.9) 47.0 11.5

Underwriting results for Fairfax Asia in the fourth quarter of 2009 featured an underwriting profit of $4.8 and a combined ratio of
85.3% reflecting favourable underwriting results at First Capital and Falcon, compared to an underwriting loss of $5.3 and a combined
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ratio of 123.9% in the fourth quarter of 2008, reflecting favourable underwriting results at First Capital, partially offset by
unfavourable results at Falcon. In the fourth quarter of 2009, increased business activity at First Capital and Falcon resulted in a 22.6%
increase in gross premiums written and a 78.1% increase in net premiums written. The 2009 fourth quarter results included 26.0
combined ratio points ($8.6) attributable to net favourable development of prior years’ reserves, primarily related to favourable
emergence at Falcon (compared to 9.8 combined ratio points ($2.2) of net adverse development of prior years’ reserves in the fourth
quarter of 2008). Interest and dividends loss in the fourth quarter of 2009 of $5.3 (compared to interest and dividends loss of $2.4 in
the fourth quarter of 2008) included equity in losses of investees, principally ICICI Lombard. Net gains on investments in the fourth
quarter of 2009 of $1.4 primarily related to net gains on common stocks at Falcon. Net gains of $4.8 in the fourth quarter of 2008
primarily related to net gains on common stocks at First Capital. Improved underwriting results, partially offset by reduced
contributions from net investment gains and interest and dividends, resulted in increased fourth quarter pre-tax income before interest
and other of $0.9 in 2009 compared to a pre-tax loss before interest and other of $2.9 in the fourth quarter of 2008.

Fairfax Asia reported improved underwriting profit of $20.2 and a combined ratio of 82.6% in 2009 (underwriting profit of $6.9
and a combined ratio of 91.8% in 2008), reflecting favourable underwriting results at First Capital and unfavourable results at Falcon.
Increased business activity in 2009 at First Capital and Falcon, principally relating to increased commercial auto and marine hull
business, resulted in a 25.9% increase in gross premiums written and a 47.9% increase in net premiums written. The twelve months
results of 2009 included 7.0 combined ratio points ($8.1) of net favourable development of prior years’ reserves, primarily related to
net favourable emergence at Falcon (compared to 4.0 combined ratio points ($3.4) of net adverse development in the twelve months of
2008). Increased interest and dividends in 2009 of $9.0 (compared to interest and dividends of $1.6 in 2008) primarily related to the
effects of reinvestment in higher yielding fixed income securities. Net gains on investments in 2009 of $17.8 included $9.8 of net
gains on bonds and $10.6 of net gains on common stocks, partially offset by $1.1 of other than temporary impairments on common
stocks and bonds. Significantly increased underwriting profit, increased interest and dividends (due to reinvestment of the portfolio
into higher yielding fixed income securities) and net gains on investments in 2009 compared to 2008 resulted in increased pre-tax
income before interest and other of $47.0 compared to $11.5.

Reinsurance — OdysseyRe®

Fourth quarter Year ended December 31,
2009 2008 2009 2008

Underwriting profit (10SS).......c.cccovvvieiiniiieiisie e 16.3 28.8 64.3 (27.7)
CoMDBINEA FALIO ..o 96.6% 94.3% 96.7% 101.3%
GroSS Premilums WITEEEN .......c.vviriiiiirieseses e 497.8 494.0 2,195.0 2,294.5
Net Premiums WITEEN ......oooeviiriiiiccee s 431.0 437.7 1,893.8 2,030.8
Net Premiums €arNEd ..........covvirieiireis s 483.0 504.0 1927.4 2,076.4
Underwriting profit (10SS) .......cccvrveverireiinineneeeneceese s 16.3 28.8 64.3 (27.7)
Interest and divVIdendS .........ccocorveieiireieience e 71.7 62.5 283.6 250.3
OPErating INCOME.......cueiiireiiiirieise ettt sans 88.0 91.3 347.9 222.6
Net gains (10Sses) 0N INVESIMENLS ........coovivreiiirieirecc s (26.5) 157.8 353.6 740.1
Pre-tax income before interest and other ..o, 61.5 249.1 701.5 962.7

(1) These results differ from those published by Odyssey Re Holdings Corp. primarily due to differences between Canadian and US GAAP.

During the fourth quarter of 2009 the company completed the acquisition of the outstanding common shares of OdysseyRe not
already owned by Fairfax, as described in note 5.

In the fourth quarter of 2009, OdysseyRe reported underwriting profit of $16.3 and a combined ratio of 96.6%, compared to an
underwriting profit of $28.8 and a combined ratio of 94.3% in the fourth quarter of 2008. The fourth quarter of 2009 included a higher
level of large risk losses, primarily within the London Market division, as well as an increase in the expense ratio due largely to a
decline in net premiums earned. The 2009 fourth quarter combined ratio also included 4.9 combined ratio points ($23.3) related to
current period catastrophe losses (net of reinstatement premiums), principally related to flooding in Turkey and storm activity in the
Philippines and Europe. The 2008 fourth quarter combined ratio included 7.5 combined ratio points ($37.3) related to current period
catastrophe losses (net of reinstatement premiums), primarily related to Hurricane lke in the U.S. and the southern China snowstorms.
Fourth quarter 2009 underwriting results were modestly impacted by less than 0.1 of a combined ratio point ($0.2) of net favourable
prior period reserve development, comprised of net favourable development in the U.S. Insurance, EuroAsia and London Market
divisions, partially offset by net adverse development in the Americas division. Fourth quarter 2008 underwriting results included 2.0
combined ratio points ($9.9) of net favourable prior period reserve development, principally comprised of net favourable reserve
development in the U.S. Insurance, London Market and EuroAsia divisions, partially offset by net adverse development in the
Americas division, primarily related to asbestos reserve strengthening.
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Improved underwriting performance in 2009 produced underwriting profit of $64.3 and a combined ratio of 96.7%, compared to
an underwriting loss of $27.7 and a combined ratio of 101.3% in 2008. Underwriting results in the twelve months included the impact
of catastrophe losses of 6.1 combined ratio points ($116.1) in 2009, principally related to storm activity and flooding in Europe and
Turkey, and 11.8 combined ratio points ($242.2) in 2008 primarily related to Hurricanes lke and Gustav in the U.S., the southern
China snowstorms, windstorm Emma in central Europe, flood losses in eastern Australia and the China earthquake. OdysseyRe’s
twelve month results in 2009 were favourably impacted by 0.6 of a combined ratio point ($11.3) of net favourable reserve
development, including net favourable development in the EuroAsia, London Market and U.S. Insurance divisions, partially offset by
a strengthening of asbestos reserves in the Americas division. Twelve months results in 2008 were favourably impacted by 0.5 of a
combined ratio point ($10.1) of prior years’ reserve development (net favourable development in the U.S. Insurance, EuroAsia and
London Market divisions, partially offset by net adverse development in the Americas division).

OdysseyRe continued to experience broad competitive pressures in the fourth quarter of 2009 in the global reinsurance and
insurance markets in which its divisions compete. Gross premiums written in the fourth quarter of 2009 increased 0.8% to $497.8
from $494.0 in the fourth quarter of 2008, and included increases of 11.3% and 5.3% in the EuroAsia and London Market divisions
respectively, partially offset by decreases of 4.4% and 5.3% in the Americas and U.S. Insurance divisions respectively. Net premiums
written during the fourth quarter of 2009 declined 1.5% to $431.0 from $437.7 in the fourth quarter of 2008, and net premiums earned
decreased 4.2% to $483.0 from $504.0. OdysseyRe’s gross premiums written declined 4.3% to $2,195.0 in 2009 compared to 2008.
Net premiums written declined 6.7% to $1,893.8 in 2009, and net premiums earned declined 7.2% to $1,927.4. Gross premiums
written in 2009 declined in the London Market (10.2%), EuroAsia (6.3%) and Americas (3.9%) divisions, and increased in the
U.S. Insurance division (1.4%). Premiums written expressed in U.S. dollars for the EuroAsia and London Market divisions were
reduced by the year-over-year strengthening of the U.S. dollar.

Interest and dividend income in the fourth quarter of 2009 increased 14.7% compared to the fourth quarter of 2008, primarily
reflecting the impact of higher yielding municipal and other tax exempt debt securities and corporate bonds purchased in the fourth
quarter of 2008 and in 2009 with the proceeds of the sale of lower yielding government debt securities. OdysseyRe had net investment
losses of $26.5 in the fourth quarter of 2009 (including $79.7 of net losses on bonds, partially offset by $36.2 of net gains on common
stocks and equity derivatives, $11.6 of net gains related to foreign currency and $7.5 of net gains on preferred stocks) compared to net
investment gains of $157.8 in the fourth quarter of 2008 (including $251.6 of net gains on common stocks and equity derivatives,
$202.8 of net gains on bonds and $35.3 of net gains related to credit default swaps, partially offset by $265.0 of other than temporary
impairments recorded on common stocks and bonds and $70.4 of net losses related to foreign currency). The decreases in net gains on
investments and underwriting profit, partially offset by increased interest and dividends, resulted in decreased pre-tax income before
interest and other of $61.5 in the fourth quarter of 2009 compared to $249.1 in the fourth quarter of 2008.

Interest and dividend income in 2009 increased 13.3% compared to 2008, primarily reflecting the impact of higher yielding
municipal and other tax exempt debt securities and corporate bonds purchased in the fourth quarter of 2008 and in 2009 with the
proceeds of the sale of lower yielding government debt securities. Net investment gains of $353.6 in 2009 ($394.6 of net gains on
bonds, $99.0 of net gains on common stocks and equity derivatives and $7.3 of net gains on preferred stocks, partially offset by
$119.1 of other than temporary impairments recorded on common stocks and bonds and $31.4 of net losses related to credit default
swaps and other derivatives) declined from net investment gains of $740.1 in 2008 ($554.6 of net gains on common stocks and equity
derivatives, $352.2 of net gains related to credit default swaps, and $233.2 of net gains on bonds, partially offset by $370.1 of other
than temporary impairments recorded on common stocks and bonds and $33.4 of net losses related to foreign currency). This decline
in net investment gains, partially offset by increased underwriting profit and interest and dividend income, produced pre-tax income
before interest and other of $701.5 in 2009 compared to $962.7 in 2008.

OdysseyRe’s cash resources decreased in the fourth quarters of 2009 and 2008 by $581.6 and $1,194.3 respectively, primarily as
a result of net purchases of investments, principally state and municipal bonds and equities. Cash used in operating activities in the
fourth quarter of 2009 was $55.3 compared to $135.0 in the fourth quarter of 2008. Cash used in investing activities of $552.6 in the
fourth quarter of 2009 compared to $898.7 in the fourth quarter of 2008. Cash provided by financing activities of $2.0 in the fourth
quarter of 2009 increased compared to cash used of $4.8 in the fourth quarter of 2008, related primarily to a reduction of dividends
paid by OdysseyRe.

OdysseyRe’s cash resources increased in 2009 by $185.7 and decreased in 2008 by $142.2. Cash used in operating activities in
2009 was $1.3 compared to $107.6 of cash provided by operating activities in 2008, with the change primarily attributable to higher
income tax payments (substantially related to significant investment gains realized in 2008) and decreased underwriting cash flows,
including higher paid losses and lower premiums collections. Cash provided by investing activities of $238.7 in 2009 decreased from
$318.6 in 2008. Cash used in financing activities of $114.3 in 2009 and $389.8 in 2008 related primarily to repurchases by OdysseyRe
of its common shares and dividends paid on its preferred and common shares.

For more information on OdysseyRe’s results, please see its annual report on Form 10-K which will be posted on its website
www.odysseyre.com.
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Reinsurance — Other

For the quarters ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

2009 2008

GroupRe_ _Advent?  Polish Re Intercompany _Total Group Re Advent” _ Total
Underwriting profit (I0SS) ........ccocvvririeiennnneccesses _(8.2) _65 _(0.6) — _(2.3) (26.2) (13.6) (39.8)
Combined ratio ................. .. 1106% _873% 1025% — 1015% 150.3%  121.9% _134.9%
Gross premiums written.. "68.8 287 201 (4.4 1132 46.5 48.6 95.1
Net premiums written ..... _68.8 26.4 17.6 — 1128 46.6 31.5 78.1
Net premiums earned.......... _78.0 51.3 21.9 — 151.2 52.0 61.5 1135
Underwriting profit (loss)... (8.2) 6.5 0.6) — (2.3) (26.2) (13.6) (39.8)
Interest and dividends......... _52 3.9 1.7 — 10.8 3.7 6.4 10.1
Operating income (10SS)......cccccv.vn.e.. (3.0 10.4 11 — 8.5 (22.5) (7.2) (29.7)
Net gains (losses) on investments..............c.ccc...... 10.1 (1.5) 4.0 — (7.6) 34.6 (12.0) 22.6
Pre-tax income (loss) before interest and other............cccccccoeveee. (13.1) 8.9 — 0.9 12.1 (19.2) (7.1)
For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

2009 2008

GroupRe  _Advent?  Polish Re Intercompany _Total Group Re  _Advent® Total
Underwriting profit (I0SS) ........ccocuvniviieiennnsneeeeeees (10.3) 216 _06 — _119 (22 71 (22.3) (45.0)
Combined ratio ................. 104.0%  _92.5% 99.2% — _98.1% 128.2% _116.6%
Gross premiums written.. 263.7 386.1 884 (49.9) 688.3 185 4 60.4 245.8
Net premiums written ..... 263.7 277.0 79.1 — 619.8 185.5 40.6 226.1
Net premiums earned...... 255.2 289.6 833 — 628.1 190.8 78.8 269.6
Underwriting profit (loss) (10.3) 21.6 0.6 — 11.9 (22.7) (22.3) (45.0)
Interest and dividends. 15.6 17.8 _41 — 375 22.4 7.7 30.1
Operating income (loss).. 53 394 4.7 — 49.4 0.3) (14.6) (14.9)
Net gains (losses) on inve (22.5) (11.0) _1.7 — (25.8) 40.5 (12.4) 28.1
Pre-tax income (loss) before interest and other............ccc.cocoeeeee. (17.2) 28.4 124 — 23.6 40.2 (27.0) 13.2

(1) These results for Advent differ from those published by Advent Capital (Holdings) PLC primarily due to differences between Canadian GAAP
and IFRS as adopted by the European Union.

In the third and fourth quarters of 2008, the company increased its investment in Advent to 66.7% and commenced consolidation
of Advent’s assets and liabilities and results of operations. In the first quarter of 2009, the company acquired a 100% interest in Polish
Re, and Polish Re’s assets and liabilities and results of operations were included in the company’s consolidated financial reporting.
During the fourth quarter of 2009, the company completed the acquisition of the outstanding common shares of Advent, other than
those shares not already owned by the company and its affiliates. These transactions are described in greater detail in note 5.

In the fourth quarter of 2009, the Reinsurance — Other segment produced a combined ratio of 101.5% and an underwriting loss of
$2.3, compared to a combined ratio of 134.9% and an underwriting loss of $39.8 in the fourth quarter of 2008, with 2008 underwriting
results reflecting the significant impact of U.S. hurricane losses. Fourth quarter 2009 underwriting results included 11.4 combined
ratio points ($17.2) of net adverse development of prior years’ reserves, primarily comprising net adverse development at Group Re
(compared to fourth quarter 2008 net adverse development of 4.6 combined ratio points or $5.3) related to 2002 and prior years’ losses
ceded by Northbridge. The fourth quarter of 2009 included current period catastrophe losses of 4.8 combined ratio points ($7.3 net of
reinstatement premiums) primarily related to Advent’s property catastrophe reinsurance business, compared to 47.1 combined ratio
points ($55.2 net of reinstatement premiums) for Advent and Group Re in the fourth quarter of 2008, primarily related to Hurricanes
Ike and Gustav.

Improved underwriting results for the Reinsurance — Other segment in 2009 included a combined ratio of 98.1% and underwriting
profit of $11.9, compared to 116.6% and an underwriting loss of $45.0 respectively in 2008, with 2008 underwriting results reflecting
the significant impact of U.S. hurricane losses. Net adverse development of prior years’ reserves of 5.1 combined ratio points ($32.2)
primarily related to Group Re’s 2002 and prior years’ losses ceded by Northbridge and increased losses at Advent primarily related to
Hurricane lke (compared to net favourable development in 2008 of 1.2 combined ratio points or $3.2). With fewer large catastrophe
events in 2009 compared to 2008, current period catastrophe losses in 2009 totaled 4.0 combined ratio points ($24.8 net of
reinstatement premiums) and related principally to Advent’s property catastrophe business, compared to 32.9 combined ratio points
($89.9 net of reinstatement premiums) for Advent and Group Re in 2008, primarily related to Hurricanes Ike and Gustav.

Gross premiums written and net premiums written in the fourth quarter of 2009 by the Reinsurance — Other segment compared to
the fourth quarter of 2008 increased at Group Re and as a result of the acquisition of Polish Re, partially offset by a reduction at
Advent. Improved underwriting results and increased interest and dividend income, partially offset by decreased net gains on
investments, and including the effect of the inclusion of the results of Advent and Polish Re, produced pre-tax income before interest
and other of $0.9 compared to a pre-tax loss before interest and other of $7.1 in the fourth quarter of 2008.
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Gross premiums written and net premiums written in 2009 by the Reinsurance — Other segment compared to 2008 increased
significantly as a result of the consolidation of Advent and Polish Re and increased activity at Group Re. Advent’s net premiums
written (as well as its net premiums earned and net claims incurred) included $91.4 of reinsurance-to-close premiums related to the
closure of Syndicate 2 into Syndicate 3330, an increase in Syndicate 3330 capacity from approximately 45% to 100%, and an increase
in Syndicate 780 capacity from 80.4% to 83.7%. Increased gross premiums written by Group Re in 2009 included $42.3 related to a
quota share contract with Advent (40% of Advent’s property reinsurance business) and increased third party business, principally
related to property catastrophe covers. Increased underwriting profit and interest and dividend income, partially offset by decreased
net gains on investments, and including the effect of the inclusion of the results of Advent and Polish Re, produced increased pre-tax
income before interest and other of $23.6 compared to $13.2 in 2008.

In 2009 Fairfax invested $39.9 and incurred $2.4 in start-up costs related to Fairfax Brasil, which expects to offer a
comprehensive range of commercial property and casualty coverages to the Brazilian market in 2010, subject to receipt of final
regulatory approval from the Brazilian insurance regulator.

Runoff
Fourth quarter Year ended December 31,
2009 2008 2009 2008

GroSS Premilums WITEEEN .......cviireiiiirieseees e (0.5) 6.9 1.1 12.6
Net Premiums WITEEN ......ocvoviiriiiirccc s (0.2) 59 (0.5) 11.1
Net Premiums €arNed ..........ccoceiiririeiieiee e e — 6.3 — 17.4
LOSSES ON ClAIMS ... (34.1) (70.0) (57.6) (83.2)
OPErating EXPENSES ...c.veveivieererierierestesterestesteresesteesessesessessesessessens (19.8) (39.9) (94.8) (109.6)
Interest and divVIdendS .........ccccovveieiirieieiereie e 14.0 12.0 54.4 68.2
OPErating [0SS .....vcvveiriieiriiieire e (39.9) (91.6) (98.0) (107.2)
Net gains (10Sses) 0N INVESIMENTS ......cvcvvvviveiereeerere e e (7.8) 164.4 129.2 499.8
Pre-taX inCOME (10SS) .....cvvvveiririiieireeeisiee s (47.7) 72.8 31.2 392.6

The Runoff segment reported a pre-tax loss of $47.7 in the fourth quarter of 2009 (compared to pre-tax income of $72.8 in the
fourth quarter of 2008), primarily reflecting a significant year-over-year decrease in net investment gains, partially offset by a
decreased operating loss of $39.9 compared to an operating loss of $91.6 in the fourth quarter of 2008. The reduced operating loss
reflected decreased incurred losses and lower operating expenses resulting from operating cost reduction initiatives undertaken in
2008 and 2009. Incurred losses of $34.1 in the fourth quarter of 2009 included $78.6 of strengthening of loss reserves in U.S. Runoff
(including $36.3 of strengthening of workers’ compensation and latent reserves and $59.8 of reinsurance recoverable balances written
off, partially offset by the favourable impact ($17.5) of a gain on a reinsurance commutation (as described in note 7)), partially offset
by $44.5 of net favourable development of reserves across all lines in European Runoff. Incurred losses of $70.0 in the fourth quarter
of 2008 included reserve strengthening of $65.2 in U.S. Runoff, primarily related to prior years’ U.S. workers’ compensation reserves,
partially offset by modest net favourable development of prior years’ reserves in Europe. Fourth quarter 2009 net losses on
investments of $7.8 included $8.5 of net losses on bonds, $1.8 of net losses related to credit default swaps and other derivatives and
$0.9 of net losses on common stocks and equity derivatives, partially offset by $3.5 of net gains related to foreign currency. Fourth
quarter 2008 net gains on investments of $164.4 were principally comprised of $136.0 of net gains on bonds, $68.2 of net gains on
common stocks and equity derivatives and $23.7 of net gains related to credit default swaps, partially offset by $60.1 of other than
temporary impairments recorded on common stocks and bonds and $3.5 of net losses related to foreign currency.

The Runoff segment reported pre-tax income of $31.2 in 2009 compared to $392.6 in 2008, reflecting a decreased operating loss
of $98.0 and lower net gains on investments of $129.2. Decreased operating expenses, decreased incurred losses and a decline in
interest and dividend income resulted in a decreased operating loss of $98.0 in 2009 compared to an operating loss of $107.2 in 2008.
Incurred losses of $57.6 in 2009 included $100.2 of net strengthening of loss reserves in U.S. Runoff (including $36.8 of
strengthening of workers’ compensation and latent reserves, $59.8 of reinsurance recoverable balances written off, and net losses of
$3.6 resulting from third quarter commutation losses of $21.1 and fourth quarter commutation gains of $17.5 (as described in note 7)),
partially offset by $42.6 of net favourable development of reserves across all lines in European Runoff. Incurred losses of $83.2 in
2008 included $68.0 primarily related to strengthening of prior years’ U.S. workers’ compensation claims reserves and losses of $13.0
on reinsurance commutations, partially offset by modest net favourable development of prior years’ reserves in Europe. Reduced
operating expenses in 2009 reflected the impact of operating cost reduction initiatives undertaken in 2008 and 2009 (operating
expenses in 2008 included $11.9 in related severance and other costs). Net investment gains in 2009 of $129.2 included $96.2 of net
gains on bonds, $92.1 of net gains on common stocks and equity derivatives and $6.0 of net gains related to foreign currency, partially
offset by $35.4 of net losses related to credit default swaps and other derivatives and $29.8 of other than temporary impairments
recorded on common stocks and bonds. Net gains on investments of $499.8 in 2008 were principally comprised of $311.5 of net gains
related to credit default swaps, $142.8 of net gains on common stocks and equity derivatives and $126.5 of net gains on bonds,
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partially offset by $76.5 of other than temporary impairments recorded on common stocks and bonds and $5.4 of net losses related to
foreign currency.

Other®

Fourth quarter Year ended December 31,

2009 2008 2009 2008

REVENUE ...t 150.1 99.4 556.4 99.4
EXPEINSES ...ttt (142.0) (98.0) (544.0) (98.0)

Pre-tax income before interest and other ...........cccccoecveiiiiceee e, 8.1 1.4 12.4 14
INEErESt EXPENSE. .....eivviiriiticririe e (0.2) (0.4) (1.0 (0.4)

Pre-tax INCOME ... vttt sae e e s 7.9 1.0 11.4 1.0

(1) These results differ from those published by Ridley Inc. primarily due to the reversal of purchase accounting adjustments which arose on the
acquisition of Ridley.

The Other business segment comprises the animal nutrition business (Ridley).

During the fourth quarter of 2008, the company acquired a 67.9% interest in Ridley, and Ridley’s assets and liabilities and results
of operations were included in the company’s consolidated financial reporting. Ridley’s financial results in the fourth quarter and
twelve months of 2009 reflected the impact of improved gross profits and increased sales volumes across all of Ridley’s reporting
segments. Improved operating margins reflected the successful achievement of cost reductions and expense management initiatives.
Ridley is one of North America’s leading commercial animal nutrition companies.

Other Elements of Net Earnings

Consolidated interest and dividend income in the fourth quarter of 2009 increased 18.1% to $172.4 from $146.0 in the fourth
quarter of 2008, and in the twelve months of 2009 increased 13.8% to $712.7 from $626.4 in the twelve months of 2008, primarily due
to the inclusion of Advent and Polish Re in 2009 and the impact of purchases of higher yielding municipal and other tax exempt debt
securities and corporate bonds in the fourth quarter of 2008 and in 2009 with the proceeds of sale of lower yielding government debt
securities.

Consolidated net losses on investments in the fourth quarter of 2009 of $30.3 included $108.2 of net losses on bonds, $14.6 of net
losses related to credit default swaps and other derivatives, and $8.6 of other than temporary impairments recorded on common stocks
and bonds, partially offset by $81.7 of net gains on common stocks and equity derivatives and $23.2 of net gains on preferred stocks.
Consolidated net gains on investments of $681.0 in the fourth quarter of 2008 included $1,034.8 of net gains on common stocks and
equity derivatives, $271.4 of net gains on bonds and $56.7 of net gains related to credit default swaps and other derivatives, partially
offset by $627.4 of other than temporary impairments recorded on common stocks and bonds and $59.7 of net losses related to foreign
currency.

Consolidated net gains on investments in 2009 of $944.5 included $937.9 of net gains on bonds, $463.3 of net gains on common
stocks and equity derivatives and $26.6 of net gains on preferred stocks, partially offset by $340.0 of other than temporary
impairments recorded on common stock and bond investments, $147.2 of net losses related to credit default swaps and other
derivatives and $17.6 of net losses related to foreign currency. Consolidated net gains on investments in 2008 of $2,570.7 included
$2,096.8 of net gains on common stocks and equity derivatives, $1,305.7 of net gains related to credit default swaps and other
derivatives and $218.9 of net gains on bonds, partially offset by $1,011.8 of other than temporary impairments recorded on common
stocks and bonds and $45.4 of net losses related to foreign currency.

Fairfax holds significant investments in equities and equity-related securities, which the company believes will significantly
appreciate in value over time. The market value and the liquidity of these investments are volatile and may vary dramatically either up
or down in short periods, and their ultimate value will therefore only be known over the long term. During the third quarter of 2009, as
a result of the rapid increase in the valuation level of worldwide equity markets, the company determined to protect a portion of its
equity and equity-related holdings against a potential decline in equity markets by way of short positions effected through equity index
total return swaps. At the inception of the short positions, the resulting equity hedge represented approximately one-quarter of the
company’s equity and equity-related holdings. At year-end, as a result of decreased equity and equity-related holdings and increased
short positions, the equity hedges had increased to approximately 30%. The company believes that the equity hedges will be
reasonably effective in protecting that proportion of the company’s equity and equity-related holdings to which the hedges relate;
however, due to a lack of a perfect correlation between the hedged items and the hedging items, combined with other market
uncertainties, it is not possible to estimate the reasonably likely future impact of the company’s economic hedging programs related to
equity risk.
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As of December 31, 2009, the company owned $5.9 billion notional amount of credit default swaps with an average term to
maturity of 2.4 years, an original cost of $114.8 and a fair value of $71.6. As the average remaining life of a contract declines, the fair
value of the contract (excluding the impact of credit spreads) will generally decline. The initial premium paid for each credit default
swap contract was recorded as a derivative asset and was subsequently adjusted for changes in the unrealized market value of the
contract at each balance sheet date. Changes in the unrealized market value of the contract were recorded as net gains (losses) on
investments in the company’s consolidated statements of net earnings at each balance sheet date, with a corresponding adjustment to
the carrying value of the derivative asset.

The purchased credit protection positions held by the company at December 31, 2008 comprised a diversified portfolio of
industry-standard credit default swap contracts referenced to approximately two dozen entities in the global financial services
industry. At the inception of a purchase of credit protection in the form of a credit default swap (or in very limited instances, at regular
intervals during the term of the credit default swap contract), the company paid a cash premium to the counterparty for the right to
recover any decrease in value of the underlying debt security that resulted from a credit event related to the referenced issuer for a
period ranging from five to seven years from the contract’s inception. The credit events, as defined by the respective credit default
swap contracts establishing the rights to recover amounts from the counterparties, are comprised of ISDA standard credit events which
are: bankruptcy, obligation acceleration, obligation default, failure to pay, repudiation/moratorium and restructuring. All credit default
swap contracts held at December 31, 2008 had been entered into with Citibank, Deutsche Bank AG, Barclays Bank PLC or the Bank
of Montreal as the counterparty, with contracts referenced to certain issuers held with more than one of these counterparties. As the
company’s only exposure to loss on these contracts stems from the initial premium paid in cash to enter into the contract at inception,
there are no requirements for the company to post collateral with respect to these contracts. With the exception of the Bank of
Montreal (with which the company has placed only one small contract), the bank counterparties are required to post government debt
securities as collateral in support of their total obligation owed to the company for all credit default swap contracts outstanding once
such total obligation, aggregated for all contracts with that counterparty, exceeds a threshold amount (except for Citibank where there
was no threshold), as defined in the individual master agreements with each counterparty.

During the fourth quarter of 2009, the company sold nil (2008 — $3,363.9) notional amount of credit default swaps for proceeds of
nil (2008 — $378.0) and recorded net gains on sale of nil (2008 — $43.8) and net mark-to-market losses of $10.0 (2008 — $4.6) in
respect of positions remaining open at year end. During 2009, the company sold $3,042.9 (2008 — $11,629.8) notional amount of
credit default swaps for proceeds of $231.6 (2008 — $2,048.7) and recorded net gains on sale of $46.2 (2008 — $1,047.5) and net mark-
to-market losses of $160.8 (2008 — net gains of $238.9) in respect of positions remaining open at year end. Sales of credit default swap
contracts during 2009 and 2008 caused the company to reverse any previously recorded unrealized market value changes since the
inception of the contract and to record the actual amount of the final cash settlement through net gains (losses) on investments in the
consolidated statements of net earnings.

The following table and accompanying commentary summarize the sales of credit default swaps since the inception of this
investment position, and show the cumulative realized and unrealized gains on credit default swaps as of December 31, 2009. Note
that non-GAAP measures are used in this illustrative summary, as explained below.

Excess of sale
proceeds over

Notional Original Sale original

amount acquisition cost proceeds acquisition cost
FY 2007 ..ot s 965.5 25.7 199.3 173.6
FY 2008 ...t s 11,629.8 245.8 2,048.7 1,802.9
QL 2009 ..o e 2,902.6 45.5 223.0 1775
Q2 2009 ... e 140.3 1.4 8.6 7.2
Q32009 ... e — — — —
Q4 2009 ... e — — — —
Cumulative sales Since INCEPLION ........cccvevevievievicie e 15,638.2 318.4 2,479.6 2,161.2
Remaining credit default swap positions at December 31, 2009 ...... 5,926.2 114.8 71.6" (43.2)¥
Cumulative realized and unrealized from inception ..............cc.cc...... 21,564.4 433.2 2,651.2 2,118.0

(1) Market value as of December 31, 2009.
(2) Unrealized loss (measured using original acquisition cost) as of December 31, 2009.

The company has sold $15.64 billion notional amount of credit default swaps since inception with an original acquisition cost of
$318.4 for cash proceeds of $2.48 billion and a cumulative gain (measured using original acquisition cost) of $2.16 billion. As of
December 31, 2009, the remaining $5.93 billion notional amount of credit default swaps had a market value of $71.6 and an original
acquisition cost of $114.8, representing an unrealized loss (measured using original acquisition cost) of $43.2.
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The credit default swaps are extremely volatile, with the result that their market value and their liquidity may vary dramatically
either up or down in short periods, and their ultimate value will therefore only be known upon their disposition. The timing and
amount of changes in fair value of fixed income securities and recoverable from reinsurers are by their nature uncertain. As a result of
these data limitations and market uncertainties, it is not possible to estimate the reasonably likely future impact of the company’s
economic hedging programs related to credit risk.

Consolidated interest expense increased 22.3% to $49.3 in the fourth quarter of 2009 from $40.3 in the fourth quarter of 2008
(and increased 4.9% to $166.3 in 2009 from $158.6 in 2008), primarily reflecting the additional interest expense incurred following
the company’s third quarter issuance of Cdn$400.0 of senior unsecured notes, partially offset by decreased interest expense as a result
of lower subsidiary debt in 2009 compared to 2008. Consolidated interest expense is comprised of the following:

Fourth quarter Year ended December 31,

2009 2008 2009 2008
[ 1 D TR 334 22.3 101.4 89.1
(010§ AT/ 0] ) (=] T 7.0 7.0 27.8 28.3
OUYSSEYRE ...ttt 75 8.4 31.0 34.2
F N \VZ=] 1) SRR 1.2 2.2 5.1 2.6
RIAIBY ..t e 0.2 0.4 1.0 0.4
CunNINGNam LiNGSEY .....coveiueriirieiisiereeie e — — — 4.0

49.3 40.3 166.3 158.6

Corporate overhead and other consists of the expenses of all of the group holding companies, net of the company’s investment
management and administration fees and the investment income, including net gains (losses) on investments, earned on holding
company cash, short term investments and marketable securities, and is comprised of the following:

Fourth quarter Year ended December 31,
2009 2008 2009 2008
Fairfax corporate overhead ............ccoevviniiiieiicsce 20.7 12.8 88.3 94.7
Subsidiary holding companies corporate overhead.............ccc..c..... 16.4 14.3 64.3 44.6
Holding company interest and dividends............c.ccccovneinincinnnnn (11.6) (7.7 (36.4) (28.8)
Holding company net gains on inVestments............ccoeoevneivncnnenns (21.3) (207.9) (147.3) (689.1)
Investment management and administration fees.............c.coeeennen. (17.2) (4.2) (64.9) (53.3)
(13.0) (192.7) (96.0) (631.9)

Fairfax corporate overhead expense in the fourth quarter of 2009 increased to $20.7 from $12.8 in the fourth quarter of 2008,
primarily as a result of increased compensation expense, partially offset by decreased legal expenses. Subsidiary holding companies
corporate overhead expense in the fourth quarter of 2009 increased to $16.4 from $14.3 in the fourth quarter of 2008, primarily due to
increased compensation and legal expenses, including expenses related to the OdysseyRe privatization. Interest and dividends earned
on holding company cash, short term investments and marketable securities increased in the fourth quarter of 2009 compared to the
fourth quarter of 2008 as a result of the increased average holding company portfolio during the year. Net gains on investments at the
holding company of $21.3 in the fourth quarter of 2009 (2008 — $207.9) included $27.2 of net gains on common stocks and equity
derivatives, $10.3 of net gains related to foreign currency and $7.9 of net gains on preferred stocks, partially offset by $14.0 of net
losses on bonds and $8.2 of net losses related to credit default swaps and other derivatives. Net gains on investments at the holding
company of $207.9 in the fourth quarter of 2008 included $372.9 of net gains on common stocks and equity derivatives, partially
offset by $35.4 of other than temporary impairments recorded on common stocks and bonds, $132.0 of net losses on bonds, $8.0 of net
losses related to foreign currency and $5.3 of net losses related to credit default swaps and other derivatives.

Fairfax corporate overhead expense in 2009 declined to $88.3 from $94.7 in 2008, primarily reflecting lower legal expenses,
partially offset by increased compensation expenses. Subsidiary holding companies corporate overhead expenses increased from $44.6
in 2008 to $64.3 in 2009, principally as a result of increased compensation and legal expenses, including expenses related to the
OdysseyRe privatization. Interest and dividend income increased in 2009, reflecting increased average holdings of cash, short term
investments and marketable securities during the year. Net investment gains were $147.3 in 2009 (including $121.1 of net gains on
common stocks and equity derivatives, $68.2 of net gains on bonds, $8.2 of net gains related to foreign currency and $7.9 of net gains
on preferred stocks, partially offset by $72.0 of net losses related to credit default swaps and other derivatives and $10.8 of other than
temporary impairments recorded on common stocks and bonds), compared to net investment gains of $689.1 in 2008 (including
$693.0 of net gains on common stocks and equity derivatives and $209.4 of net gains related to credit default swaps and other
derivatives, partially offset by $77.2 of other than temporary impairments recorded on common stocks and bonds, $142.8 of net losses
on bonds and $15.2 of net losses related to foreign currency).
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The $100.0 recovery of income taxes in the fourth quarter of 2009 and the effective income tax rate of 17.8% implicit in the
$214.9 provision for income taxes in the twelve months of 2009 differed from the company’s statutory income tax rate of 33.0%
primarily as a result of the effect of non-taxable investment income in the U.S. tax group (including dividend income and interest on
bond investments in U.S. states and municipalities), income earned in jurisdictions where the corporate income tax rate is lower than
the company’s statutory income tax rate, the recognition of the benefit of previously unrecorded accumulated income tax losses, the
release of $30.7 of income tax provisions subsequent to the completion of examinations of the tax filings of prior years by taxation
authorities, and adjustments for prior years, partially offset by income taxes on unrealized foreign currency gains on the company’s
publicly issued debt securities.

The effective income tax rate of 40.6% implicit in the $247.3 provision for income taxes in the fourth quarter of 2008 differed
from the company’s statutory income tax rate of 33.5% primarily as a result of the effect of the unrecorded tax benefit on unrealized
losses arising from other than temporary impairments recorded on common stock and bond investments, and the effect of losses in
jurisdictions where the corporate income tax rate is lower than the company’s statutory income tax rate and where the benefit of
accumulated income tax losses is unrecorded, partially offset by the effect of reduced unrealized foreign exchange gains on public
debt. The effective income tax rate of 30.9% implicit in the $755.6 provision for income taxes in 2008 differed from the company’s
statutory income tax rate of 33.5% primarily as a result of the effect of income earned in jurisdictions where the corporate income tax
rate is lower than the company’s statutory income tax rate and where the benefit of accumulated income tax losses is unrecorded, the
release in the second quarter of $23.3 of income tax provisions subsequent to the completion of an examination by the taxation
authorities, and the effect of reduced unrealized foreign exchange gains on public debt, partially offset by the effect of the unrecorded
tax benefit on unrealized losses arising from other than temporary impairments recorded on common stock and bond investments.

The company’s non-controlling interests in its consolidated statements of earnings arose from the following subsidiaries:

Fourth quarter Year ended December 31,
2009 2008 2009 2008
OUYSSEYRE ..ottt 2.4 46.0 130.1 209.9
NOFADFIAGE ......veoocveeeeeee e — (19.3) 2.7 18.4
AGVENL. ..o (0.1) (12.0) 0.8 (13.6)
RIIBY ... 1.5 0.2 0.3 0.2
3.8 14.9 133.9 214.9

During the fourth quarter of 2009, the company completed the acquisition of the outstanding common shares of OdysseyRe and
Advent not already owned by Fairfax, as described in note 5.

During 2009 (prior to the OdysseyRe privatization), OdysseyRe purchased on the open market approximately 1.8 million of its
common shares pursuant to its previously announced common share repurchase programme, increasing the company’s ownership of
OdysseyRe to 72.6% as at September 30, 2009. During the first quarter of 2009, the company completed the previously announced
Northbridge going-private transaction, increasing the company’s ownership of Northbridge to 100% (this transaction is described in
note 5). Upon increasing the company’s total interest in Advent to 58.5% in the third quarter of 2008 from 44.5%, the company
commenced the consolidation of Advent’s results of operations and the related non-controlling interest in its consolidated statements
of earnings. During the fourth quarter of 2008 and the first six months of 2009, the company purchased an additional 8.1% and 0.1%
interest in Advent respectively, increasing the company’s total ownership interest in Advent to 66.7% (27.1 million common shares).
On July 17, 2009, the company announced a formal offer to acquire all of the outstanding common shares of Advent, other than those
shares already owned by Fairfax and its affiliates, for 220 U.K. pence in cash per common share. Upon acquiring a 67.9% interest in
Ridley in the fourth quarter of 2008 (an additional 3.1% interest was acquired in 2009), the company commenced the consolidation of
Ridley’s results of operations and the related non-controlling interest in its consolidated statements of earnings.

Financial Condition

Holding company cash, short term investments and marketable securities at December 31, 2009 totaled $1,251.6 ($1,242.7 net of
$8.9 of holding company short sale and derivative obligations), compared to $2,340.6 at September 30, 2009 ($2,328.9 net of $11.7 of
holding company short sale and derivative obligations) and $1,564.2 at December 31, 2008 ($1,555.0 net of $9.2 of holding company
short sale and derivative obligations). Significant cash movements at the Fairfax holding company level during 2009 included the
receipt of $983.0 of net proceeds on the issuance of subordinate voting shares in the third quarter, the receipt of $358.6 of net proceeds
on the issuance of unsecured senior notes in the third quarter, the receipt of $225.0 of net proceeds on the issuance of Series C
preferred shares in the fourth quarter, the receipt of $115.4 in cash dividends from subsidiaries, the payment of $1.0 billion in respect
of the company’s privatization of OdysseyRe (as described in note 5) in the fourth quarter, the payment of $374.0 (Cdn$458.4) in
respect of the company’s privatization of Northbridge in the first quarter (as described in note 5), the payment of $157.5 in corporate
income taxes, the payment of $151.3 of common and preferred share dividends, the investment of $65.9 to acquire a 15% equity
interest in Alltrust Insurance Company of China Ltd. (“Alltrust”) in the third quarter, the $57.0 cash consideration paid in the first
quarter to acquire Polish Re, the additional investment of $49.0 in Cunningham Lindsey Group Limited in the first quarter (in
conjunction with that company’s acquisition of the international business of GAB Robins), the investment of $39.9 during the year in
the start-up insurance operations of Fairfax Brasil, the holding company’s share of $12.3 in the third quarter privatization of Advent,
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the payment of $143.8 to redeem Series A and B preferred shares, the $135.7 of cash used to repurchase the company’s common
shares and the repayment of $12.8 at maturity in the first quarter of the company’s 6.15% secured loan. The carrying values of holding
company short term investments and marketable securities vary with changes in the fair values of those securities.

Subsidiary cash and short term investments decreased by $2,263.7 to $3,244.8 at December 31, 2009 from $5,508.5 at
December 31, 2008, with the decrease primarily related to additional investments in bonds, common stocks and other investments,
cash used in operating activities including cash used for corporate income tax payments, and cash used to complete the privatizations
of Northbridge and Advent and to repurchase common stock of OdysseyRe.

Consolidated cash resources decreased by $2,271.5 during the fourth quarter of 2009, primarily as a result of $2,047.0 of cash
used in investing activities ($1.0 billion related to the OdysseyRe privatization, and net new investments in municipal and state
government bonds and preferred stocks funded by the proceeds of sale of short term investments and common stocks), $169.9 of cash
used in operating activities, and $39.8 of cash used in financing activities (including the issuance of Series C preferred shares, the
redemption of the Series A and Series B preferred shares, and the repurchase of $112.4 of the company’s common shares).
Consolidated cash resources decreased by $1,813.8 in the fourth quarter of 2008, primarily as a result of $469.9 of cash used in
operating activities, $1,106.4 of cash used in investing activities and $53.9 of cash used in financing activities.

Consolidated cash resources decreased by $368.8 in 2009, primarily as a result of $734.4 of cash used in investing activities
(including the privatizations of OdysseyRe, Northbridge and Advent, the acquisition of Polish Re and investments in Alltrust and
Cunningham Lindsey), $719.2 of cash used in operating activities (reflecting declining premiums and steady or only modestly
declining paid losses and fixed operating expenses at certain operating companies), and $993.0 provided by financing activities
(including issuances of common stock, senior notes and the Series C preferred shares, partially offset by cash used to redeem the
Series A and Series B preferred shares, repurchase Fairfax common shares, and pay common and preferred share dividends).
Consolidated cash resources decreased by $586.8 in 2008, primarily as a result of $1,069.8 of net cash used in financing activities,
including the payment of common share and preferred dividends and repurchases by Fairfax, Northbridge and OdysseyRe of their
common and preferred shares, partially offset by $119.9 of cash provided by operating activities and $587.9 of cash provided by
investing activities.

The net $425.1 decline in recoverable from reinsurers to $3,809.1 at December 31, 2009 from $4,234.2 at December 31, 2008
related primarily to a significant reduction in U.S. runoff reinsurance recoverables as a result of ongoing collections, uncollectible
reinsurance balances written off and commutation activity (as described in note 7), reduced underwriting activity as a result of the
impact of weak economic conditions and of the softening underwriting cycle and increasingly competitive market conditions
(particularly at Crum & Forster), and recoveries from reinsurers of ceded losses related to 2008 hurricanes, partially offset by
increased reinsurance utilization by OdysseyRe’s insurance operations, the acquisition of Polish Re and the foreign currency
translation effects of U.S. dollar depreciation subsequent to the 2008 year-end.

The net $18.7 increase in provision for claims to $14,747.1 at December 31, 2009 from $14,728.4 at December 31, 2008 related
primarily to the foreign currency translation effects of the depreciation since December 31, 2008 of the U.S. dollar relative to most of
the major foreign currencies in which Fairfax’s insurance and reinsurance companies transact their business and to the consolidation
of Polish Re, substantially offset by continued progress by the runoff operations, claims payments related to 2008 hurricanes, and
reduced underwriting activity as a result of the weak economic conditions, the softening underwriting cycle and competitive market
conditions.

Portfolio investments comprise investments carried at fair value and investments carried at equity-accounted values (at
December 31, 2009, these latter primarily included the company’s investments in ICICI Lombard, International Coal Group and
Cunningham Lindsey Group), the aggregate carrying value of which was $20,078.6 at December 31, 2009 ($20,030.3 net of
subsidiary short sale and derivative obligations), compared to an aggregate carrying value at December 31, 2008 of $18,415.0
($18,394.8 net of subsidiary short sale and derivative obligations). The net $1,635.5 increase in the aggregate carrying value of
portfolio investments (net of subsidiary short sale and derivative obligations) at December 31, 2009 compared to December 31, 2008
primarily reflected the increase in net realized and unrealized gains in 2009 (including net investment gains on subsidiary portfolio
investments of $797.2 and the $1,019.8 improvement in the net unrealized gains on subsidiary available for sale investments), and also
reflected subsidiary uses of cash, funded by subsidiary portfolio investments, that included $665.8 of subsidiary corporate income tax
payments (substantially related to significant investment gains realized in 2008), $172.4 paid by Northbridge to complete its
privatization, and $72.6 paid by OdysseyRe to repurchase its common shares. Major changes to portfolio investments in 2009
included a net increase of $2.64 billion in bonds, a net decrease in cash and short term investments (principally U.S. Treasury
securities) of $2.27 billion and a net increase of $1.04 billion in common stocks. During the third quarter of 2009, as a result of the
rapid increase in the valuation level of equity markets, the company determined to protect a portion (approximately one-quarter, or
$1.5 billion notional amount relative to $6,517.9 of equity and equity-related holdings) of its equity and equity-related investments
against a decline in equity markets by way of short positions effected through S&P 500 index-referenced total return swap contracts
entered into at an average S&P 500 index value of 1,062.52. At year-end, as a result of decreased equity and equity-related holdings
and increased short positions, the equity hedges had increased to approximately 30%. The unrecorded excess of fair value over the
carrying value of investments carried at equity was $170.8 at December 31, 2009 ($356.0 at December 31, 2008).
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Fairfax holds significant investments in equities and equity-related securities, which the company believes will significantly
appreciate in value over time. The market values and the liquidity of these investments are volatile and may vary dramatically either
up or down in short periods, and their ultimate value will therefore only be known over the long term.

Future income tax assets decreased by $380.7 to $318.7 during 2009, the decrease being primarily attributable to the decrease in
future income taxes as a result of the appreciation of investments in 2009, and the utilization of income tax losses at the Canadian
holding companies and within the U.S. consolidated tax group. Income taxes payable decreased by $585.4 to $70.9 during 2009,
principally reflecting significant income tax payments made in 2009 related to 2008 earnings.

The $315.6 increase in goodwill and intangible assets in 2009 resulted from the privatizations of OdysseyRe and Northbridge and
the acquisition of Polish Re, and foreign currency translation amounts related to the Northbridge and Polish Re goodwill and
intangible assets. As described in note 5, in 2009 the company recorded $159.0 of goodwill (OdysseyRe — $64.6, Northbridge — $80.6,
Polish Re — $13.8) and $128.7 of intangible assets, principally related to the value of customer and broker relationships and brand
names (OdysseyRe — $37.9, Northbridge — $90.8, Polish Re — nil). The carrying value of the goodwill and brand name intangible
assets will be tested annually by the company for impairment commencing in 2010. The customer and broker relationships intangible
assets will be amortized to net earnings over periods ranging from 8 to 20 years.

Non-controlling interests declined in 2009 by $1,265.2 to $117.6 from $1,382.8 at December 31, 2008, principally as a result of
the privatizations of OdysseyRe, Northbridge and Advent. The remaining non-controlling interests balance primarily relates to
OdysseyRe’s preferred stock and Ridley.

Risk Management

The company has an enterprise-wide approach to the identification, measurement, monitoring and management of risks faced
across the organization. The key financial risks are classified as underwriting, credit, market, foreign currency and liquidity risk. The
company’s framework to monitor, evaluate and manage these risks is consistent with that in place as at December 31, 2008 (as
disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements in the company’s 2008 Annual Report).

Underwriting Risk

Underwriting risk is the risk that the total cost of claims, claims adjustment expenses and premium acquisition expenses will
exceed premiums received and can arise as a result of numerous factors, including pricing risk, reserving risk and catastrophe risk.
There were no significant changes to the company’s exposure to underwriting risk or the framework used to monitor, evaluate and
manage underwriting risk at December 31, 2009 compared to December 31, 2008.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from the failure of a counterparty to honour its financial or contractual obligations to the
company. Credit risk arises predominantly with respect to investments in debt instruments, reinsurance recoverables and receivables
and balances due from counterparties to derivative contracts (primarily credit default swaps and total return swaps). Changes to the
company’s exposure to credit risk at December 31, 2009 compared to December 31, 2008 are described in the following sections.

Since 2003, the company has used credit default swap contracts referenced to various issuers in the banking, mortgage and
insurance sectors of the financial services industry as an economic hedge of risks affecting specific financial assets (recoverables from
reinsurers), exposures potentially affecting the fair value of the company’s fixed income portfolio (principally investments in fixed
income securities classified as Corporate and other and U.S. states and municipalities in the company’s consolidated financial
statements) and of broader systemic risk. The company’s holdings of credit default swap contracts have declined significantly in 2009
relative to prior years, largely as a result of significant sales in 2008. In the latter part of 2008, the company revised the financial
objectives of its economic hedging program by determining not to replace its credit default swap hedge position as sales or expiries
occurred based on: (i) the company’s judgment that its exposure to formerly elevated levels of credit risk had moderated and that as a
result the company had made the determination that its historical approaches to managing credit risk apart from the use of credit
default swaps were once again satisfactory as a means of mitigating the company’s exposure to credit risk arising from its exposure to
financial assets; (ii) the significant increase in the cost of purchasing credit protection (reducing the attractiveness of the credit default
swap contract as a hedging instrument); and (iii) the fact that the company’s capital and liquidity had benefited significantly from
approximately $2.5 billion in cash proceeds of sales of credit default swaps realized since 2007. As a result, the effects that credit
default swaps as hedging instruments may be expected to have on the company’s future financial position, liquidity and operating
results may be expected to diminish significantly relative to the effects in recent years. The company may initiate new credit default
swap contracts as an effective hedging mechanism in the future, but there can be no assurance that it will do so.
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The company endeavours to limit counterparty risk through the terms of agreements negotiated with the counterparties to its total
return swap, credit default swap and other derivative securities contracts. Pursuant to these agreements, the company and the
counterparties to these transactions are contractually required to deposit eligible collateral in collateral accounts for either the benefit
of the company or the counterparty depending on the then current fair value or change in fair value of the derivative contracts.

The fair value of the collateral deposited for the benefit of the company at December 31, 2009, all of which consisted of
government securities that may be sold or repledged by the company, was $23.2. The fair value of the collateral deposited for the
benefit of the company at December 31, 2008, all of which consisted of government securities, was $285.1, of which $107.6 was
eligible to be sold or repledged by the company. The company had not exercised its right to sell or repledge collateral at December 31,
2009.

The following table summarizes the effect of the credit default swap hedging instruments and related economically hedged items
on the company’s historical financial position and results of operations as of and for the fourth quarters and years ended December 31,
2009 and 2008:

As of and for the period ended December 31, 2009

Fourth quarter

Year

Other
comprehensive

Other
comprehensive

Exposure / Carrying income Net earnings Net equity income Net earnings Net equity
notional value value (pre-tax) (pre-tax) (pre-tax) (pre-tax) (pre-tax) (pre-tax)
Credit risk exposures:
Bonds:

U.S., Canadian and other government..................... 2,999.6 2,999.6 — — — — — —

U.S. states and municipalities...........ccccoeeeierininnnns 5,497.8 5,497.8 (38.3) (186.6) (224.9) 65.3 308.6 373.9

Corporate and other and mortgage backed

securities-residential.............ccoceeveveviievieinieenne, 2,971.0 2,971.0 (18.6) 83.0 64.4 185.4 599.1 784.5
Derivatives and other invested assets:

Receivable from counterparties to derivatives........ 225.2 225.2 — (2.6) (2.6) — 31 3.1
Accounts receivable and other 1,855.4 1,855.4 — 1.4 14 — (1.9) (1.9
Recoverable from reinsurers....... 3,809.1 3,809.1 — (58.0) (58.0) — (59.7) (59.7)
Cash and short term investments ...........cccoceveeririreennns 3,699.7 3,699.7 — — — — — —

21,057.8 21,057.8 (56.9) (162.8) (219.7) 250.7 849.2 1,099.9
Hedging instruments:
Derivatives and other invested assets:
Credit default SWaps .........ccccovvviniciceciris (5.926.2) (71.6) — (10.0) (10.0) — (114.6) (114.6)
Net exposure and financial effects ..........cccocvveeiiinnnee 15,1316 20,986.2 (56.9) (172.8) (229.7) 250.7 734.6 985.3
As of and for the period ended December 31, 2008
Fourth quarter Year
Other Other
comprehensive comprehensive
Exposure / Carrying income Net earnings Net equity income Net earnings Net equity
notional value value (pre-tax) (pre-tax) (pre-tax) (pre-tax) (pre-tax) (pre-tax)
Credit risk exposures:
Bonds:

U.S., Canadian and other government..................... 3,564.7 3,564.7 — — — — — —

U.S. states and municipalities...........ccccoevereririnnnns 4,104.6 4,104.6 324 157.9 190.3 (26.2) 157.9 131.7

Corporate and other and mortgage backed

securities-residential...........c.ccccoevniriiicninnnnns 985.3 985.3 (15.2) (359.9) (375.1) (23.2) (543.9) (567.1)
Derivatives and other invested assets:
Receivable from counterparties to derivatives
(primarily credit default swaps) .........ccccovveverenne 455.5 455.5 — (8.0) (8.0) — (14.1) (14.1)
Accounts receivable and other ...........cccccovveieieierien. 1,688.7 1,688.7 — (3.6) (3.6) — (4.1) (4.1)
Recoverable from reinsurers....... 4,234.2 4,234.2 — (6.0) (6.0) — (14.8) (14.8)
Cash and short term investments .............ccccevveevevennns 6,333.0 6,333.0 — — — — — —
21,366.0  21,366.0 17.2 (219.6) (202.4) (49.4) (419.0) (468.4)
Hedging instruments:
Derivatives and other invested assets:
Credit default swaps .............. (8,873.0) (415.0) — 39.2 39.2 — 1,286.4 1,286.4
Net exposure and financial effects 12,4930 20,951.0 17.2 (180.4) (163.2) (49.4) 867.4 818.0

The consolidated investment portfolio included $5.5 billion (2008 - $4.1 billion) in U.S. state, municipal and other tax-exempt
bonds, almost all of which were purchased during 2008. Of the $5.4 billion (2008 - $4.0 billion) held in the subsidiary investment
portfolios at December 31, 2009, approximately $3.5 billion (2008 - $3.5 billion) were fully insured by Berkshire Hathaway
Assurance Corp. for the payment of interest and principal in the event of issuer default; the company believes that this insurance
significantly mitigates the credit risk associated with these bonds.

In the normal course of effecting its economic hedging strategy with respect to credit risk, the company expects that there may be
periods where the notional value of the hedging instruments may exceed or be deficient relative to the company’s exposure to the
items being hedged. This situation may arise when management compensates for imperfect correlations between the hedging item and
the hedged item or due to the timing of opportunities related to the company’s ability to exit and enter hedges at attractive prices.

50



Market Risk

Market risk is the potential for a negative impact on the consolidated balance sheet and/or statement of earnings resulting from
adverse changes in the value of financial instruments as a result of changes in certain market-related variables including interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, equity prices and credit spreads. The company is exposed to market risk principally in its investing activities
but also in its underwriting activities to the extent that those activities expose the company to foreign currency risk. The company’s
investment portfolios are managed with a long term, value oriented investment philosophy emphasizing downside protection. The
company has policies to limit and monitor its individual issuer exposures and aggregate equity exposure. Aggregate exposure to single
issuers and total equity positions are monitored at the subsidiary level and in aggregate at the company level.

As at December 31, 2009, the company had aggregate equity and equity-related holdings of $6,156.5 (common stock of $5,088.9,
investments, at equity of $646.2 plus equity-related derivatives of $421.4) compared to aggregate equity and equity-related holdings at
December 31, 2008 with fair value of $4,816.5 (common stocks of $4,241.2 plus investments, at equity of $575.3). As at
December 31, 2009, the company had holdings of bonds exposed to credit risk (primarily bonds included in Corporate and other and
U.S. states and municipalities) with fair value of $8,468.8 compared to $5,089.9 at December 31, 2008. As a result of the significant
increases in the company’s equity and fixed income holdings, the company’s exposure to equity price risk and interest rate risk at
December 31, 2009 had increased compared to December 31, 2008. The company believes that its current financial risk management
framework is able to manage these additional risk exposures.

During much of 2008 and immediately preceding years, the company had been concerned with the valuation level of worldwide
equity markets, uncertainty resulting from credit issues in the United States and global economic conditions. As protection against a
decline in equity markets, the company had held short positions effected by way of equity index-based exchange-traded securities,
short positions in U.S. listed common stocks, equity total return swaps and equity index total return swaps, referred to in the aggregate
as the company’s equity hedges. The company had purchased short term S&P 500 index call options to limit the potential loss on the
short positions effected by the U.S. equity index total return swaps and the equity index-based exchange-traded securities and to
provide general protection against potential losses from the short positions in common stocks and equity total return swaps. In
November 2008, following significant declines in global equity markets, the company revised the financial objectives of its hedging
program on the basis of its assessment that formerly elevated risks in the global equity markets had moderated and subsequently
closed substantially all of its equity hedge positions. During the remainder of the fourth quarter of 2008, the company significantly
increased its investments in equities as a result of the opportunities presented by significant declines in equity valuations. During the
third quarter of 2009, as a result of the rapid increase in the valuation level of equity markets, the company determined to protect a
portion (approximately one-quarter, or $1.5 billion notional amount relative to $6,517.9 of equity and equity-related holdings) of its
equity and equity-related investments against a decline in equity markets by way of short positions effected through S&P 500 index-
referenced total return swap contracts entered into at an average S&P 500 index value of 1,062.52. At December 31, 2009, equity
hedges represented approximately 30% of the company’s equity and equity-related holdings as a result of decreased equity and equity-
related holdings of $6,156.5 and increased short positions (aggregate notional amount of short equity and equity index total return
swap contracts of $1,814.9).

The following table summarizes the effect of equity risk hedging instruments and related hedged items on the company’s
historical financial position and results of operations as of and for the three months and years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008:

As of and for the period ended December 31, 2009

Fourth quarter Year
Other Other
comprehensive comprehensive
Exposure / Carrying income Net earnings Net equity income Net earnings Net equity
notional value value (pre-tax) (pre-tax) (pre-tax) (pre-tax) (pre-tax) (pre-tax)
Equity exposures:
COMMON SEOCKS ...ttt 5,088.9 5,088.9 25.2 114.8 140.0 1,207.5 (91.5) 1,116.0
Investments, at eQUILY........cocovevrveviicieiinecenas 646.2 475.4 3.3 1.6 4.9 3.3 23.3 26.6
Derivatives and other invested assets:
Equity total return swaps — long positions ............ 214.6 1.0 — 244 244 — 84.4 84.4
Equity and equity index call options..................... 79.3 46.0 — (2.3) (2.3) — 8.6 8.6
Equity warrants..........cccecevvenicennnne 127.5 71.6 — _18.9 18.9 — 230.9 230.9
Total equity and equity related holdings 6,156.5 5,682.9 28.5 1574 185.9 1,210.8 255.7 1,466.5
Hedging instruments:
Derivatives and other invested assets:
Equity total return swaps — short positions ........... (232.2) 1.2 — (2.4) (2.4) — (26.8) (26.8)
Equity index total return swaps — short positions . (1,582.7) (9.2 — (81.7) (81.7) — (72.8) (72.8)
(1,814.9) (8.0) — (84.1) (84.1) — (99.6) (99.6)
Net exposure and financial effects ............ccccoeovriennns 4,341.6 56749 __ 285 _133 _1018 12108 156.1 1,366.9
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As of and for the period ended December 31, 2008

Fourth guarter Year
Other Other
comprehensive comprehensive
Exposure / Carrying income Net earnings Net equity income Net earnings Net equity
notional value value (pre-tax) (pre-tax) (pre-tax) (pre-tax) (pre-tax) (pre-tax)
Equity exposures:
COmMMON StOCKS ....cveveviieicicictcceee e 4,241.2 4,241.2 (217.4) (654.1) (871.5) (484.8) (970.3) (1,455.1)
INVESEMENLS, At EQUILY......cveviireeicicirieieceeeee 575.3 219.3 — (24.3) (24.3) — (49.4) (49.4)
Total equity and equity related holdings.................... 4,816.5 4,460.5 (217.4) (678.4) (895.8) (484.8) (1,019.7)  (1,504.5)
Hedging instruments:
Derivatives and other invested assets:
Equity index total return swaps — short positions . — — — 680.2 680.2 — 1,349.4 1,349.4
Equity total return swaps — short positions............ (1.3) — — 374.8 374.8 — 731.6 731.6
S&P 500 index call options.........ccccovvvveeervrnrinnns (518.4) — — — — — (2.3) (2.3)
(519.7) — — 1,055.0 1,055.0 — 2,078.7 2,078.7
Net exposure and financial effects ..........ccccoovvvicienine 4,296.8 4,460.5 (217.4) 376.6 159.2 (484.8) 1,059.0 574.2

In the normal course of effecting its economic hedging strategy with respect to equity risk, the company expects that there may be
periods where the notional value of the hedging instruments may exceed or be deficient relative to the company’s exposure to the
items being hedged. This situation may arise when management compensates for imperfect correlations between the hedging item and
the hedged item or due to the timing of opportunities related to the company’s ability to exit and enter hedges at attractive prices.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or cash flows of a financial instrument or another asset will fluctuate because
of changes in exchange rates and could produce an adverse effect on earnings and equity when measured in a company’s functional
currency. The company is exposed to foreign currency risk through transactions conducted in currencies other than the U.S. dollar,
and also through its net investment in subsidiaries that have a functional currency other than the U.S. dollar. Long and short foreign
exchange forward contracts primarily denominated in the pound sterling and the Canadian dollar are used to manage foreign currency
exposure on foreign currency denominated transactions. Foreign currency denominated liabilities are generally used to manage the
company’s foreign currency exposures to net investments in self-sustaining foreign operations having a functional currency other than
the U.S. dollar. The company’s exposure to foreign currency risk was not materially different at December 31, 2009 compared to
December 31, 2008, with the exception of the financial reporting hedge implemented for the company’s net investment in Northbridge
as described below.

In a net investment hedging relationship, the gains and losses relating to the effective portion of the hedge are recorded in other
comprehensive income. The gains and losses relating to the ineffective portion of the hedge are recorded in net gains (losses) on
investments in the consolidated statement of net earnings. Gains and losses in accumulated other comprehensive income are
recognized in net earnings when the hedged net investment in foreign operations is reduced.

In the first quarter of 2009 Northbridge, which conducts business primarily in Canada, became a wholly owned subsidiary of
Fairfax. As a self-sustaining operation with a Canadian dollar functional currency, the net assets of Northbridge represent a significant
foreign currency exposure to Fairfax. In keeping with the company’s foreign currency risk management objective of mitigating the
impact of foreign currency rate fluctuations on its financial position, upon the completion of its issuance in August 2009 of Cdn$400.0
principal amount of Canadian dollar denominated senior notes due August 19, 2019, the company designated the carrying value of
these notes as a hedge of a portion of its net investment in Northbridge for financial reporting purposes. In the fourth quarter and year
ended December 31, 2009, the company recognized $8.9 and $18.3 respectively of foreign currency movement on the senior notes in
changes in gains and losses on hedges of net investment in foreign subsidiary in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
The financial impact of the foreign currency movements deferred in the currency translation account in accumulated other
comprehensive income will remain deferred until such time that the net investment in Northbridge is reduced.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the potential for loss if the company is unable to meet financial commitments in a timely manner at reasonable
costs as they fall due. It is the company’s policy to ensure that sufficient liquid assets are available to meet financial commitments,

including liabilities to policyholders and debt holders, dividends on preferred shares and investment commitments. Key measures in
this regard as at December 31, 2009 and 2008 are outlined in the capital structure and financial ratios table that follows.
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Capital Structure and Liquidity

The company’s capital structure and financial ratios were as follows:

December 31,

2009 2008
Holding company cash, short term investments and marketable securities, net of short sale
and derivative OBIIGAtIONS ........cvcieiie e nnn 1,242.7 1,555.0
HOIdING COMPANY AEDL.........iiiiiii bbb 1,236.9 869.6
SUBSIAIAIY EDL. ... et 903.4 910.2
Other long term obligations — holding COMPANY .........ccoiiiiiiriii e 1735 187.7
L0210 < o) OSSOSO 2,313.8 1,967.5
N 0 1Yo SO SRURTSPR 1,071.1 4125
Common SNArENOIUETS” BUUILY ...o.veveierieiiiieiee ettt sttt st 7,391.8 4,866.3
o] (= =T I To U] SRS 227.2 102.5
NON-CONEIOITING INEEIESTS. ...ttt sttt bbbt e 117.6 1,382.8
Total equity and NON-CONLIOIIING INTEIESES ....vivveveeeeie e 7,736.6 6,351.6
Net debt/total equity and Non-controlling INEreStS .........ccevevvriereieeieee e 13.8% 6.5%
Net debt/net total CAPITAI™Y) .............co.coveviieiecce e 12.2% 6.1%
Total debt/total caapital‘z) .................................................................................................................... 23.0% 23.7%
INEErESE COVETAGE™ ..ot 8.2x 16.4 x

(1) Net total capital is calculated by the company as the sum of total shareholders’ equity, non-controlling interests and net debt.
(2) Total capital is calculated by the company as the sum of total shareholders’ equity, non-controlling interests and total debt.

(3) Interest coverage is calculated by the company as the sum of earnings (loss) from operations before income taxes and interest expense divided
by interest expense.

Holding company debt (including other long term obligations) at December 31, 2009 increased by $353.1 to $1,410.4 from
$1,057.3 at December 31, 2008, primarily reflecting the company’s third quarter public debt offering of Cdn$400.0 principal amount
of 7.50% unsecured senior notes due August 19, 2019, partially offset by debt repurchases and the repayment of $12.8 at maturity of
its 6.15% secured loan.

Subsidiary debt at December 31, 2009 decreased by $6.8 to $903.4 from $910.2 at December 31, 2008, primarily reflecting a
repayment by Ridley on its secured revolving term loan facilities.

On September 11, 2009, the company completed a public equity offering in which it issued 2,881,844 subordinate voting shares at
$347.00 per share, for net proceeds after commissions and expenses (net of tax of $6.3) of $989.3. The net proceeds were applied to
the company’s completed privatization of OdysseyRe for the cash purchase price of $1,017.0 (as described in note 5).

At December 31, 2009 the company’s consolidated net debt/net total capital ratio increased to 12.2% from 6.1% at December 31,
2008. The increase reflected primarily the decrease in holding company cash, short term investments and marketable securities
(discussed in Financial Condition), the increases in retained earnings and accumulated other comprehensive income, the net increase
in preferred equity as a result of the issuance of Series C preferred shares completed on October 5, 2009 and the redemption of
Series A and Series B preferred shares on December 1, 2009 (as described in note 6), the decrease in non-controlling interests
(primarily resulting from the Northbridge and OdysseyRe privatizations), and the increase in holding company debt as a result of the
third quarter issuance of unsecured senior notes. The consolidated total debt/total capital ratio decreased to 23.0% at December 31,
2009 from 23.7% at December 31, 2008. The improvement related primarily to the effects of the above-mentioned increases in
shareholders’ equity, partially offset by the decrease in non-controlling interests (primarily resulting from the Northbridge and
OdysseyRe privatizations) and the increase in holding company debt.

The company believes that cash, short term investments and marketable securities held at the holding company provide more than
adequate liquidity to meet the holding company’s known obligations in 2010. In addition to these holding company resources, the
holding company expects to continue to receive investment management and administration fees from its insurance and reinsurance
subsidiaries, investment income on its holdings of cash, short term investments and marketable securities, and dividends from its
insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries. During the fourth quarter (on October 5, 2009, as described in note 6) the company received
the net proceeds of $227.2 from the issuance of Series C preferred shares. During the fourth quarter, on October 28, 2009, the
company completed the OdysseyRe privatization for the cash purchase price of $1,017.0 (as described in note 5). On December 1,
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2009, the company redeemed its remaining Series A and Series B preferred shares (as described in note 6) for cash of $143.8. The
holding company’s known significant obligations for 2010 consist of interest and corporate overhead expenses, common and preferred
share dividends and income tax payments. Subsequent to the year-end, significant cash movements included payment of the
company’s annual common share dividend ($201.2) and receipt of the net proceeds of $183.1 (Cdn$195.3) from the issuance of Series
E preferred shares in the first quarter of 2010.

Primarily as a result of the company’s third quarter issuance of subordinate voting shares (net proceeds of $989.3), net earnings of
$856.8 and the effect of increased accumulated other comprehensive income (an increase of $1,000.9 in the year, primarily reflecting
a net increase in unrealized gains on available for sale securities and unrealized foreign currency translation gains), partially offset by
the company’s dividend payments on its common shares and preferred shares during 2009, shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2009
increased by $2,650.2 to $7,619.0 from $4,968.8 at December 31, 2008. Common shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2009 was
$7,391.8 or $369.80 per basic share (excluding the unrecorded $170.8 excess of fair value over the carrying value of investments
carried at equity) compared to $278.28 per basic share (excluding the unrecorded $356.0 excess of fair value over the carrying value
of investments carried at equity) at the end of 2008, representing an increase per basic share in 2009 of 32.9% (without adjustment for
the $8.00 per common share dividend paid in the first quarter of 2009, or 35.4% adjusted to include that dividend). During 2009, the
number of basic shares increased primarily as a result of the company’s September 11, 2009 issuance of 2,881,844 subordinate voting
shares at $347.00 per share, partially offset by the repurchase of 360,100 subordinate voting shares. At December 31, 2009 there were
19,988,870 common shares effectively outstanding.

Contractual Obligations

Details of the company’s material contractual obligations (including financial liabilities and credit and liquidity commitments)
which give rise to commitments of future payments affecting the company’s short term and long term liquidity and capital resource
needs are provided on page 149 of the company’s 2008 Annual Report. The following table provides a payment schedule of current
and future obligations (holding company and subsidiaries) as at December 31, 2009.

Less More

than 1-3 3-5 than

1 year years years 5 years Total
Gross Claims ALY ......ccvireieice e 3,412.7 4,240.0 2,343.0 4,751.4 14,747.1
Long term debt obligations — principal ............ccocviviiiiiieieics s 1.8 181.0 2252 11,7749 2,182.9
Long term debt obligations — INTEFEST.........ccoveiiirieiierieirere s 156.8  306.3 268.0 6478 1,378.9
Operating 1eases — ODHGALIONS ........coociiiiiiiee e 51.7 66.9 36.3 79.4 234.3
Other long term liabilities — principal ..........c.cooviiiiiii e 6.1 10.8 9.5 147.1 1735
Other long term liabilities — INTEIeSt..........coiiiieiieeieee e 15.0 28.3 26.7 44.0 114.0

3,644.1 4,833.3 2,908.7 7,444.6 18,830.7
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™)

Canadian public companies will be required to prepare their financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS™), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), for fiscal years beginning on or
after January 1, 2011. The company will report its financial results for the year ending December 31, 2011 and its quarterly unaudited
interim financial results commencing with the quarter ending March 31, 2011 in accordance with IFRS. The company will also
provide comparative data on an IFRS basis, including an opening balance sheet as at January 1, 2010. With the adoption of IFRS, the
company will no longer provide a reconciliation of its financial results to U.S. GAAP.

In 2008 the company established a steering committee, a project team and working groups to manage the adoption and
implementation of IFRS. The project team developed a conversion plan (described below) and provides regular updates to
management, the Steering Committee and the Audit Committee on the execution of this plan. Education sessions have been, and
continue to be, provided for employees, management and the Audit Committee to increase knowledge and awareness of IFRS and its
impact.

The company’s IFRS conversion plan consists of four phases: Preliminary Impact Assessment, Detailed Planning, Execution and
Post-Implementation Review. The company has completed the first two phases and continues its work on the Execution phase, which
it expects to complete by mid-2010. In working through the Detailed Planning phase, the company reviewed current requirements
under IFRS, identified a number of potential measurement differences between IFRS and Canadian GAAP, and considered accounting
policy choices along with available first-time adopter implementation exemptions. Management has made and continues to make
presentations to the company’s Audit Committee identifying the IFRSs (both current and expected) that it believes will have the most
significant impact on the company’s consolidated financial statements. These presentations include an overview of these various
IFRSs, ongoing changes to IFRSs, alternative accounting policies available under IFRS, optional exemptions for the application of the
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standards available to first-time adopters and the identification of the operating groups expected to be impacted most significantly by
the adoption of IFRS.

With a project of this scale and significance to the company’s financial reporting, it is critical that the company continue to
carefully assess the impact of any changes in requirements and processes on the adequacy of its financial reporting systems and
internal controls, including information technology and disclosure controls. A significant amount of effort to adopt and comply with
IFRS is required.

IFRS uses a conceptual framework similar to Canadian GAAP, but there are significant differences in recognition, measurement
and disclosures that need to be addressed. Throughout the project the company is monitoring discussion papers, exposure drafts and
standards released by the IASB and the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee. The company assesses the
impact of the proposed standards on its financial statements and disclosure as additional information becomes available.

Management’s assessment to date has identified the following areas expected to be most affected by the transition to IFRS based
on IFRSs currently in force: the measurement of financial assets, insurance contracts, and employee benefits.

Many IFRSs are currently undergoing modification or are yet to be issued for the first time. For example, in response to financial
reporting issues emerging from the global financial crisis, the IASB is revising or replacing existing IFRS standards that address many
of these areas. The IASB plans to replace its existing financial instruments standard in several phases. The first phase was recently
completed with the publication of IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments, which addresses the classification and measurement of financial
assets, including investment securities. The new accounting model eliminates the available for sale and held to maturity categories,
and the need to bifurcate embedded derivatives: it measures hybrid contracts as a whole at fair value through profit and loss
(“FVTPL"). Equity instruments are measured at FVTPL by default. An option is available to measure equities that are not held for
trading at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) without recycling of gains and losses to the income statement.
Dividend income on equity instruments measured at FVTOCI would be recognized in the income statement. Fixed income
investments are measured at amortized cost if both of the following criteria are met: 1) the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and 2) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. While this new standard is
not mandatory until January 1, 2013, the company is considering early adoption in an attempt to simplify its accounting of financial
instruments and to streamline its conversion process.

The second phase of the IASB’s financial instruments revision will amend the recognition and measurement requirements for
impairment of financial instruments recorded at amortized cost. The IASB issued an Exposure Draft — Financial Instruments:
Amortized Cost and Impairment on November 5, 2009. If this standard is finalized as currently drafted, only financial assets measured
at amortized cost would be tested for impairment, using an expected credit loss model. Currently, an incurred credit loss model is
applied to determine impairment. The final standard is expected to be issued in the fourth quarter of 2010 with mandatory adoption no
earlier than January 1, 2013.

The third phase of the IASB’s financial instruments revision will address hedge accounting. The 1ASB is scheduled to issue an
exposure draft on this topic in the first quarter of 2010, with the final standard expected to be issued in the second half of 2010.

Another area where the company anticipates that the adoption of IFRS will have a significant impact is accounting for insurance
contracts. The company is limited in its ability to estimate the impact that this standard will have on its financial reporting until a
conclusion on the measurement model used for insurance contracts is reached by the IASB. The Exposure Draft — IFRS 4 — Insurance
Contracts Phase |1 is expected to be issued in May 2010 and the final standard is expected to be issued in June 2011.

Lastly, the IASB (along with the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) in the U.S.) is developing a new accounting
standard for employee benefits with the intent of improving accounting for defined benefit pension costs and obligations. The current
IFRS is similar to both Canadian and US GAAP and allows the use of the corridor method to determine pension expense for defined
benefit pension plans. This approach allows for the deferral and amortization of certain actuarial gains and losses to future accounting
periods when determining pension expense (the “corridor method”). Both the IASB and FASB have agreed that the corridor method
should be eliminated but have not concluded whether these actuarial gains and losses should be recognized in the period in which they
occur directly in other comprehensive income or net earnings. The IASB is scheduled to issue an exposure draft on this topic in the
first quarter of 2010 with the final standard expected to be issued in the first half of 2011.

As a result of the changes described above and anticipated changes to IFRS both prior and subsequent to the company’s transition

date, combined with changing market conditions, the financial impacts of the adoption of IFRS by the company cannot be reasonably
quantified at this time.
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The company has evaluated its financial information systems and the financial reporting impact of the issues identified in the
Preliminary Impact Assessment and Detailed Planning phases. Based on IFRSs currently in force, management has concluded that the
company’s underlying financial information systems and control processes are appropriately designed and properly functioning. It is
conceivable that system requirements may arise that could necessitate significant revision to the company’s systems as a result of the
recently proposed changes for the determination of impairment of financial assets carried at amortized cost and the yet to be defined
requirements expected in Exposure Draft — IFRS 4 — Insurance Contracts Phase I1. Management continues to monitor the ability of the
company’s systems and processes to meet these potential requirements.

The company continues through the Execution phase of its conversion plan, building on the detailed analysis and evaluation of
the financial information systems and the financial reporting impact of the issues identified in the Preliminary Impact Assessment and
Detailed Planning phases. The company’s auditors are in the process of reviewing the company’s analysis and documentation of
identified measurement differences between Canadian GAAP and IFRS. Management believes that the company continues to track
well with its IFRS conversion plan as approved by the Audit Committee.

Lawsuits Seeking Class Action Status

There have been no material developments on this matter beyond the disclosure in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements
in the company’s 2008 Annual Report. For a full description of this matter, please see “Lawsuits” in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Comparative Quarterly Data (unaudited)

December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31, December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31,
2009 2009 2009 2009 2008 2008 2008 2008
REVENUE......coiiiiiisreee s 1,407.3 2,213.4 1,735.5 1,279.4 2,048.7 2,162.9 1,243.5 2,370.5
Net earnings (10SS) .......cccceeverunne 79.4 562.4 275.4 (60.4) 346.8 467.6 27.6 631.8
Net earnings (loss) per share $ 1.66 $ 3104 $ 1565 $ (3.55) $ 19.73 $ 2540 $ 084 $ 3472
Net earnings (loss) per diluted share ...... $ 1.65 $ 30.88 $ 1556 $ (3.55) $ 1962 $ 2527 % 084 $ 3378

Operating results at the company’s insurance and reinsurance operations were improving as a result of company efforts, although
they have recently been affected by an increasingly difficult competitive environment. Individual quarterly results have been (and may
in the future be) affected by losses from significant natural or other catastrophes, by reserve releases and strengthenings and by
settlements or commutations, the occurrence of which are not predictable, and have been (and are expected to continue to be)
significantly impacted by net gains or losses on investments, the timing of which are not predictable.

Fairfax’s 2009 Annual Report is scheduled to be posted on its website www.fairfax.ca after the close of markets on Friday,
March 5, 2010 and will be mailed shortly thereafter to shareholders.

Certain statements contained herein may constitute forward-looking statements and are made pursuant to the “safe harbour™
provisions of the United States Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such forward-looking statements are subject to
known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of
Fairfax to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements. Such factors include, but are not limited to: a reduction in net income if the reserves of our subsidiaries (including
reserves for asbestos, environmental and other latent claims) are insufficient; underwriting losses on the risks our subsidiaries insure
that are higher or lower than expected; the lowering or loss of one of our subsidiaries’ financial or claims paying ability ratings; an
inability to realize our investment objectives; exposure to credit risk in the event our subsidiaries’ reinsurers or insureds fail to make
payments; a decrease in the level of demand for our subsidiaries’ products, or increased competition; an inability to obtain
reinsurance coverage at reasonable prices or on terms that adequately protect our subsidiaries; an inability to obtain required levels
of capital; an inability to access cash of our subsidiaries; risks associated with requests for information from the Securities and
Exchange Commission or other regulatory bodies; risks associated with current government investigations of, and class action
litigation related to, insurance industry practice or any other conduct; the passage of new legislation; and the failure to realize future
income tax assets. Additional risks and uncertainties are described in our most recently issued Annual Report which is available at
www.fairfax.ca and in our Supplemental and Base Shelf Prospectus (under “Risk Factors™) filed with the securities regulatory
authorities in Canada and the United States, which is available on SEDAR and EDGAR. Fairfax disclaims any intention or obligation
to update or revise any forward-looking statements.
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